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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is one of
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturers in the world.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of high-end
knitwear for the customers by the method of combining OEM and
ODM.

The Group’s fabrics production base is located in Ningbo Economic &
Technical Development Zone, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and Tay Ninh Province, Vietnam, and the Group has strategically
set up garment factories in Ningbo and Anging of China, Ho Chi
Minh City and Tay Ninh Province of Vietham and Phnom Penh of
Cambodia. The Group also established sales offices or representative
offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. The Group currently
has over 89,100 employees. The area of the factories is over 5.55
million sg.m. and floor area covers over 4.07 million sg.m., which can
produce various knitwear of about 440,000,000 pieces.

The Group focuses on producing sports wear, casual wear and
lingerie wear for major international renowned clients including
NIKE, UNIQLO, ADIDAS and PUMA. The products’ markets are
widely spread in Mainland China, Japan, Asia Pacific, Europe and
the US.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang Seng Composite
MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010. Shenzhou
International has also been included in MSCI Index since 1 June
2013. Meanwhile, Shenzhou International has been included in
Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series since September
2015. Furthermore, the Group has become a constituent stock of
Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (“HSCEI”) from 5 March 2018
and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Index from 10 September
in the same year. In April 2018, the Group was selected by China
Exchanges Services Company Limited (“CES”) as a constituent
stock of the CES Belt and Road Index, in recognition of the Group’s
contribution to the Belt and Road Initiative.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In 2010, Shenzhou International was recognised by Forbes Asia
as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies. Shenzhou
International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one of the
“Top 100 HK Listed Companies” in 2012, 2015 and 2016. In
addition, Shenzhou International was recognized as one of the
“2015 Best Listed Company in Corporate Governance” by Ta Kung
Pao in November 2015, and was awarded “Best Investor Relations
Listed Company 2017” prize by Ta Kung Pao in 2017. Meanwhile,
Shenzhou International was awarded “The Largest Capitalization
Private Company Award” in Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong
Kong Ranking by Yazhou Zhoukan in 2015 and 2018. In addition,
Shenzhou International was awarded “ENTERPRISE AWARD 2016”
in the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2016. In 2017, 2019
and 2020, Shenzhou International won “Best IR Company (Large-
cap)” at the third, fifth and sixth Hong Kong Investor Relations
Awards organised by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association
(HKIRA).

In addition, Shenzhou International was named as one of the
“Asia’s 50 Top Listed Companies 2018” by Forbes Asia in 2018.
Meanwhile, Shenzhou International was awarded “Listed Companies
Awards 2018 (Apparel)”
2018. Furthermore, Shenzhou International was awarded “ListCo
Excellence Awards 2018” by am 730, PR Asia and Roadshow
in 2018. Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong

by Hong Kong Business Magazine in

Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award for
Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies in 2018, awarded “2018 Golden Lion Award: The Best
Listed Company” by Sina Finance, and awarded “The 8th China
Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards: Best Investment Value Award
for Listed Companies” by Ta Kung Pao. In addition, Shenzhou
International received the “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise 2020”

award under the blue chip category from Economic Digest in 2020.

In 2019 and 2020, Shenzhou International was named as one of the
winners in the “Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2019” and
“Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2020”, respectively, by Hong

Kong Economic Journal.
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Financial Highlights

BELFFTEMHEN

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+_R=+-HLEE/R+-A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

ZZIZE —Z-NE —Z)\E —T—t& —2-E
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
TEMBER Key Financial Information
(AR¥F7) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 23,030,648 22,665,272 20,950,205 18,085,247 15,099,076
MRS RRAIFIE Profit before income tax 5,512,426 5,571,743 5,090,346 4,288,231 3,642,947
FEFB Profit for the year 5,082,645 4,958,536 4,492,543 3,759,951 2,947,680
BREER AEEFE Profit attributable to
owners of the parent 5,106,736 5,095,206 4,540,487 3,762,721 2,947,673
FRBEE Non-current assets 13,297,911 11,360,620 9,411,627 8,886,726 8,980,567
TEEE Current assets 23,553,850 20,494,238 18,140,427 15,206,479 12,835,495
i) =L Current liabilities 8,852,625 5,684,718 4,919,626 4,265,355 3,094,482
MEEERE Net current assets 14,701,225 14,909,520 13,220,801 10,941,124 9,741,013
REE Total assets 36,851,761 31,854,858 27,552,054 24,093,205 21,816,062
BEERRDEE Total assets less current liabilities 27,999,136 26,270,140 22,632,428 19,827,850 18,721,580
gy Total equity 27,270,830 25,191,327 22,454,279 19,824,653 15,309,602
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,227,060 5,060,896 3,565,916 2,471,401 2,105,184
TERBLE Key Financial ratios
EFE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 31.2 30.3 316 314 325
FHITEE%) Net profit margin (%) 22.1 21.9 21.4 20.8 19.5
EREEER%) Gearing ratio (%) 24.2 15.8 1.3 10.9 30.8
ML Current ratio 2.7 3.7 3.7 36 4.1
FEWRT 2 B (H) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 62 58 56 55 56
FEZBES (H) Inventory turnover period (days) 116 122 124 120 124
B3 5E - Note:

1. AXSELEZHEALEE BETERM 1.
TR ARES) B o

Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (bank loans
plus convertible bonds) and total equity.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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REMBEHNDINEEENEEE ANALYSIS OF SALES OF THE GROUP BY
PRODUCTS
HE+-R=t-HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
Z3I%E Z-hE ZZ-N\E “EtE ZE-RE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AREFT % ARETR % ARETFR % AEETT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
RER By products
EHA Sports wear 15,940,917 69.2 16,321,975 72.0 14,275,643 68.1 12,048,896 66.6 9,815,537 65.0
ik Casual wear 4,480,518 19.5 5,387,683 23.8 5,167,355 24.7 4,600,534 25.4 3,886,024 25.7
ARE Lingerie wear 1,032,917 4.5 802,852 35 1,328,006 6.3 1,302,580 7.2 1,293,111 8.6
Hitstam Other knitting 1,576,296 6.8 152,762 0.7 179,201 09 138,237 0.8 104,404 0.7
SHEBE Total sales 23,030,648  100.0 22,665,272 100.0 20,905,205 100.0 18,085,247 100.0 15,099,076 100.0
0.7% 0.9%
150, 8% 35% 63%
19.5% 23.8% 24.7%
69.2% 72.0% 68.1%
0.8% 0.7%
72% 8.6%
25.7%
66.6% 65.0%
. B E)4E Sports . {KEI4E Casual O 7% 3E Lingerie . HAb#t 4 Other knitting
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BHISoHmOMNASEREINEEZE ANALYSIS OF SALES OF THE GROUP BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET

HE+ZA=t—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
Z3I%E —2-nE ZN\E E-tE Z—5E
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AEBTR % ARETR % ARETR % ARETR % ARETR %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

G By market regions
ERHE International sales
S Japan 4,795,807 20.8 3,642,572 15.6 3,236,002 15.5 3,129,042 17.3 3,003,735 19.9
Bl Europe 3,679,117 16.0 3,890,278 17.2 3,795,982 18.1 4,031,077 22.3 3,355,516 22.2
£ us 3,115,229 13.5 3,475,427 15.3 3,252,725 15.5 2,337,908 12.9 1,548,387 10.3
Hth Others 4,117,871 17.9 4,614,239 20.4 4,353,084 20.8 3,742,637 20.7 3,501,563 23.2
ERHEE Domestic sales 1,322,624 31.8 7,142,756 315 6,312,412 30.1 4,844,588 26.8 3,689,875 24.4
HE B Total sales 23,030,648  100.0 22,665,272 100.0 20,950,205 100.0 18,085,247 100.0 15,099,076 100.0
20.8% 31.8% 15.6% 31.5% 15.5% 30.1%
16.0% 17.2% 18.1%
17.9% 20.4% 20.8%
13.5% 15.3% 15.5%
19.9% 24.4%
22.3%
22.2%
23.2%
12.9% 10.3%

‘ B $4 €& Domestic Sales . H ™15 Others . %B US . &M Europe . H7< Japan

BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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(as at 29 March 2021 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
FONEIPREEIZER AR A E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Cunbo
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji
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MRZEZ—E=ZAZ+1B (REEEITHI)) (as at 29 March 2021 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

EFXETELZEY KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
BEREEY Audit Committee

BEREE (F/E) Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

RIRE A E Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

RELAZT (RWE-—F=FH—H¥EZM) Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)
FESEE WM E-—F=F—HEZME) Mr Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
RBAEE (RMZEZ—F=A—H&HMD Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)
REBRLE RZEZ—F=A—H#MD Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

FNEEE Remuneration Committee

RWWESE (F/E) Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (Chairman) (appointed on 1 March 2021)
RZEZ—F=F—BEZI

BRIBAE (F/E) Mr. Chen Xu (Chairman) (resigned on 1 March 2021)
(RZBZ—F=ZA—HFD

ECMAkE Mr. Ma Renhe

BER&E Mr. Jiang Xianpin

FEALT (WS -_—F=HF—H¥EZMT) Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)

RHZEEE Nomination Committee
ERERE (F/E) Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
BEmEE Mr. Jiang Xianpin

RIRE A E Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

FESHE (W _E_—FE=F—HEZME)  Mr Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
RERLE (W2 Z—F=F—H#MD Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

MR EE REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EREERES
EANERDE
R8sk
BRES
27182708%

T3t 40
LK G stEM BN
HEGSHED

ERER
BRI B
EERAEHMH

Cayman lIslands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

Lennon & Lawyers
Morrison & Foerster

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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MZZEZ—F=AZ+NB (RRERITEH))

BR8P BB e

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

RINBRETLREREDE

EBPREBESERLRBRAE
FEET

ERAEHR183
EXilsl
17181712-17165% 54

FEFERIRTT
hEIRTT (BE) BRAF
PERITRRMBRAE
RBRITRMARRE
ERIRTTRNABRAT
PEZRRITIRVDBRLF
PERITRHODABRLF
BERTHERAS
PETERITROBRLF
EBRRERRITRODARAT
BITIRTT (BB) BRAH
EBLBEERITHERAT

KREERERRZER

iPREEERQE

NGIE RS

www.shenzhouintl.com

=153 4 5%

2313

(as at 29 March 2021 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313
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Chairman’s Statement

EE g x FChairman of the Board
E % Ma Jianrong

BEMMRE : Dear Shareholders:

EABREXFMNBEREBIZRBRAT (FZ  On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
NENMEES ((EFg 5 EZE)) » MR Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
EMAANTRENBALS WHIEIZE®E 3 | am pleased to announce the annual results of the Company and
TE[E)) _E_SFE2FEEE MFBRA  its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year of 2020 for
B R BB o shareholders’ review.

12 BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

TECRFE O ONERBHENEERRT
EXGE 2KEFEHREMINEEZLERT
BABRR - REKEXTERT ZERE
EHHEBRBARTE HEEREMR
NEE -ZaEBTEMAMIIERES-
RmilRBEREZEEENER UkAE
RIS IHE I A BT ME RS
PriE TIFRIREET - RIRMA FRIHEE T EA
BEMpVETEE ; I EBIIPHFEIHN
SANHET  BHNEEEMTESEZ 1B
E—F AEEFEBAZETRBEHRNG
B -ER/RRZERBETER R TMH
BeoAERBZEERBIBMZELR T
BEEEANEM Z EMAE E—FRAT
EEZAFEEREN - RBEHE  A5HE
HEBHRESEURRER BN EERS
BRICEEHEXRERENN—HER
HAEEBE—FAIGHME FAERK
RS WP A RV ARG
FREOMZH!

HE_ZTZHF+BA=+—HILHF
E AEBZ2FHEBNEARE
23,030,648,000 0 RZZE—NFELHT
M1.6%; BE_ZEEF+A=+—HILt
FENESRABIBEAE ARG BEANARS
5,106,736,00070 BB EZE T —NF+A
=+—HIEFEEMNH ARS5,095,206,000
T EATHO 2% BREKRBRIARE
340 BE_E_EF+_-_B=+—H
I AERNRERBSEBYANARE
8,227,060,0007T °

In 2020, the global economy was hit hard by the COVID-19
pandemic that major economies in the world except China
all suffered from negative growth. The apparel industry also
encountered a number of challenges: a significant drop in the
global consumption demand, impacts on the stability of the supply
chain, and depreciation of US dollar (USD) due to increased
issuance. Benefiting from the outstanding pandemic control in
Mainland China and the various response measures adopted by the
Group, the Group was able to resume work and production at the
domestic bases in a fast and orderly manner while being devoted
to the pandemic prevention and control works. In addition, given
the assiduous efforts of our Chinese staff stationed overseas, the
overseas bases were able to carry out normal operation. Over
the past year, the Group did not only withstand the impact of the
pandemic, but also laid a foundation and planned ahead for the
future development. The Group further improved the sustainable
development capabilities of the enterprise by expanding the
production capacity of the overseas bases as scheduled and
pushing forward the upgrade and modification of the domestic
bases. During the pandemic, the competitive advantages of the
industry chain of the Group were further evidenced by its stability
and speedy response. The pandemic was a test to our resilience.
| am extremely pleased and encouraged by the achievements
made by the Group over the past year, and | would like to extend
my gratitude to all shareholders for their trust and support in such
difficult times.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, annual sales amount of the
Group was approximately RMB23,030,648,000,
increase of approximately 1.6% as compared to that of 2019. For

representing an

the year ended 31 December 2020, the profit attributable to owners
of the parent was approximately RMB5,106,736,000,
an increase of approximately 0.2% as compared to approximately
RMB5,095,206,000 recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019,
and we have realized earnings per share of RMB3.40. As at 31

representing

December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately RMB8,227,060,000.

Annual Report 2020 £ R
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Chairman’s Statement

ENFTEREHFRERTIAMBRRER
KABDEFEERRERBRESRKRIA0E
o BREPAEIRE ZRKRESK0.908 T
EEGRBRERER2.008T

TETEFE PEMBREERNEOE
BEFILEERT9.6% TEZ@mNHEERBEE
EEAREXRRERETS  BEEZIFRET
hrEEat DRI E  REEMIH
OERRAD TE-EBRTE AR LT
RETREFHEZENT ZERELODR
FHNBRFNBOMK - BEEREEEEMEE
AR OB PEIAREE SIS OREER
TERYB/ N BEEERRHEEIGEE
BURLES » B BRI AR S E X SR A 4R > A
EEENEHNMERBRIELEERZBINT

g o

Given the promising business performance and the strong financial
position of the Group, the Board of the Company has recommended
a final dividend of HKD1.10 per share. Together with the paid interim
dividend of HKDO0.90 per share, the total dividends proposed for the
year will be HKD2.00 per share.

In 2020, China’s export value of textile and garment products
increased by 9.6% year-on-year, primarily benefiting from the
excellent pandemic control and well-established supporting facilities
for the industrial chain in China. However, if the export value of
anti-pandemic supplies was excluded, the export value of garment
products would still decrease. Given the various pressures from
decreasing demand, rising costs and depreciation of USD, most
garment export enterprises experienced greater stress on profits.
As compared with other major garment exporting countries such
as Vietnam, China’s export of garment products was relatively
less susceptible to the pandemic. However, as the impact of the
pandemic on economic activities is subsiding, China’s share in the
major market is likely to continue its downward trend before the
pandemic if its apparel industry is not upgraded at a faster pace.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

HEZABREAERENEEZER 17
¥R RERBERBERERDSESMHE
HAFREZEERBEIEREREIF
MERA THIOE BEMGE RIERE
EHFENTH TECrEREEREELES
HESHNEZEC -WMNE  BBEREFK
RAEXENEBE R BERSLEER
B - EEHFTEKERBELEENENE
To URBRBEEEEEM R - EARAPEMAT
& 13 2 [ A7 3% 1 B A 172 T (RCEP) » @ Isi 4
NEENLEEFRIENASEFHT B
BEANE2KESRERAGTERATET
HohEBEAMADEHMNERBEEEDN
RIZ > KE—PTHEHRNETIENIEE > BE
BENERERCXMBEBMBMETENS
BeohEMNAABREEXNEREE B —
CHXBEESIEXBELRT TNREXHES
ENREF BESIMBEERNNREEXE
FHNEG ZE2FEF LA+ ZH HH
BREEANTHERAG LEAERRETRE
ERKERENPEBNTEEZE MR
b1~ THRAPFN SIBRIES > S E T HBRE
TEERFREE GEEEEAIFERS
TEERNWEEME-

There is a relatively sound foundation for China’s textile and apparel
industry. For its future development, the industry ought to transit
from scale expansion to high-quality supply. Capable enterprises
will focus more on activities in the areas of product innovation,
efficiency improvement, market expansion, international coverage,
environmental protection, etc. To achieve high-quality development,
the industry needs to first prioritize differentiated and value-added
products and enhance the industry value chain through production
innovation. Meanwhile, improvement in production efficiency is
facilitated through a higher level of production automation and
management digitisation, in order to reduce relative production
costs. While an improvement in the regional bilateral or multilateral
trade environment is much anticipated due to China’s participation
in the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership Agreement
(RCEP), there are still relatively great uncertainties in the current
global trade environment. The huge population base and growing
resident spending power in China will further stimulate development
of the domestic market. Enterprises should focus the direction on
the dual domestic and international circulations when expanding
their markets. As China’s textile and apparel industry cooperates and
competes with some countries in Southeast Asia and South Asia, in
addition to enhancing cooperation in the industrial chain, it should
duly expand the overseas coverage, which is even more conducive
to facilitating the integration of industry resources. On 22 September
2020, the Chinese national leader announced to the world at
the General Assembly of the United Nations that the Chinese
government aims to promote low carbonization across the globe.
The environmental protection concepts such as “low carbonization”
and “carbon neutrality” will inevitably bring about profound impacts
on the textile and apparel industry, and the green production mode
may possibly become an important threshold for the development of
the industry.
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Due to the impact of the pandemic, 2020 was the first year
that Vietnam recorded a decrease in its garment export value.
Nonetheless, in recent years, Vietham has vigorously promoted
bilateral and multilateral free trade agreements with relevant
countries or regions and has made remarkable progress. Vietnam
has become one of the major garment exporting countries in the
world. In addition to the CPTPP that it has already joined, the
EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement came into effect on 1 August
2020; the UK-Vietham Free Trade Agreement entered into between
Vietnam and the United Kingdom will officially come into effect at
the beginning of 2021; in addition, the Regional Comprehensive
Economic Partnership Agreement jointly signed by Vietnam, China,
Japan, South Korea, Australia, New Zealand and other ASEAN
countries will officially come into effect upon completion of the
relevant ratification procedures. These free trade agreements will
benefit the development of Vietnam’s textile and apparel industry,
but the increasing pressure on resources and labour costs in
Vietnam will affect the further expansion of the textile and apparel
industry in Vietnam.

During the year, the Company continued to ensure each of its
professional committees has adequate and necessary secured
resources to perform their respective duties. The Board also
cooperated closely and maintained effective communication with
each professional committee, thus achieving impressive results on
various projects that we worked on. All members of the Company
have been in pursuit of excellent corporate governance and a fair
and just decision-making process to ensure maintenance of a highly
transparent administration to provide all shareholders and investors
with an open channel for communication.
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I would like to express my sincerest gratitude to each of our
Directors for their relentless efforts over the past year, and all
members of the management team and all staff members for their
dedicated contribution during the year. Despite the tremendous
impacts caused by the pandemic on business operations, the
Group still managed to achieve historic highs in sales revenue and
operation results. It is also the concerted efforts of all employees
and the spirit of overcoming difficulties together that have given
the Group the confidence to better honour the commitments to
customers. In particular, | hereby would like to, on behalf of the
Board, express my gratitude to the Chinese staff stationed overseas.
Your conscientious work attitude of regarding the workplace as your
home has ensured the orderly operation of the overseas factories. At
the same time, | also hope that all employees will pursue progress,
stay positive and promote the spirit of craftsmanship to provide
customers with better products and services. | would also like to
express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers and suppliers for
their long-term trust in and support to the Company.

Having experienced the impact of the pandemic, the Group has
come to realise the urgency of a new development model more than
ever before, and it requires experience and innovation to facilitate
its business operations. The Group will endeavour to promote the
transformation of the industry towards high-quality development
driven by technology and innovation, in order to further enhance
value of the industry chain, and to promote the transition of the
Company to low-carbon green production.

Each major difficulty an enterprise encounters is an opportunity for
testing itself. Only by leveraging strengths, improving weaknesses
and striving for development against adversity may one resist risks
and create opportunities. The Group will regard improvement in
corporate social value as the backbone for its future development
and will endeavour to create more desirable returns for shareholders.

Ma Jianrong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

In 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak significantly affected the global
economy, exerted unprecedented operating pressure on the global
textile and apparel industry, and even led to the occurrence of
enterprise shutdowns and shrinking production capacity. Due to the
impacts of the pandemic, the consumption demand for garments
slumped and supporting facilities of the supply chain of the global
apparel industry was affected, resulting in a decreasing production
capacity utilization rate of enterprises; the imbalanced global import
and export trade of goods and shortage in cargo containers for
some shipping routes led to a short-term drastic rise in ocean
shipping costs; operation and management of overseas factories
became increasingly difficult due to the restrictions on international
travel of people; Renminbi (RMB) appreciated significantly against
USD during the year due to the effect of increasing liquidity of USD,
causing greater pressure on the profitability of export enterprises;
enterprises additionally increased anti-pandemic expenditures with
an aim to control the pandemic amid the rising pressure on other
operating costs.
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According to statistical data from the China Customs, the total
export value of Chinese textile and garment products (including
textile yarns, fabrics and finished products as well as garments
and apparel accessories, referred the same as below) in 2020
was USD291.22 billion, representing an increase of approximately
9.6% over last year. Out of the total export value, the export value
of textile products amounted to USD153.84 billion, representing
a significant increase of approximately 29.2% over the same
period last year, primarily due to a significant growth in export
of anti-pandemic supplies such as masks; the export value of
garments and apparel accessories amounted to USD137.38 billion,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.4% over the same
period last year, of which USD53.09 billion was the export value
of knitwear, representing a decrease of approximately 12.3% over
the same period last year and accounting for 37.5% of the total
garment export value (2019: 40.0%), as knitwear products were
more susceptible to changes in demand. In 2020, the export value
of garments to the four major markets, namely America, European
Union (27 countries), Japan and the United Kingdom accounted for
55.9 % (2019: 54.1%) of the total garment export value of China
in the same year. Among which, export to America, European
Union (27 countries), Japan and the United Kingdom amounted
to USD30.09 billion, USD27.64 billion, USD14.05 billion and
USD7.24 billion, respectively, representing a decrease of 8.0%, a
decrease of 3.7% , a decrease of 8.5% and an increase of 40.2%,
respectively, over the same period last year. In addition, China
exported approximately USD39.74 billion of textile and garment
products to ASEAN, representing an increase of 1.7% over last
year, of which approximately USD28.69 billion was export of textile
products, representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.3%, and
approximately USD11.05 billion was export of garment products,
representing a year-on-year increase of 13.9%. ASEAN is also a
major garment production and export region, whereas the fabrics
and trims required for producing garments mostly come from China.
Some ASEAN countries consider the textile and apparel industry as
a key development industry and therefore have exerted great effort in
developing the upstream part of the industrial chain in recent years
to reduce reliance on raw materials from China. With the optimization
and development of the apparel industry chain, these countries will
compete more intensively with China’s apparel industry in terms
of export. During the year, COVID-19 caused greater impacts on
the industries of these countries, while Mainland China effectively
controlled the pandemic in a short period of time and benefited from
the complete industry chain and stable supply chain, resulting in a
recovery in the growth of garment export value in the second half of
the year.
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As for the domestic consumption market, according to data released
by the National Bureau of Statistics, in the amount of retail sales
of products manufactured by enterprises above designated size
in 2020, total retail sales of apparels, footwear and headwear and
knitted products amounted to approximately RMB1,236.46 billion,
representing a year-on-year decline of 6.6% (among which, year-on-
year decline of apparels was 8.1%). In addition, the amount of retail
sales of online products in the wearing segment across the country
has seen a year-on-year increase of approximately 5.8%. Although
there was no substantial increase in garment consumption in the
domestic market during the year, the economic recovery after the
impacts of the pandemic subside will bring greater room for growth
in the domestic garment consumption market.

According to statistics information released by China’s General
Administration of Customs, total import and export value of China’s
foreign trade in 2020 was USD4,646.26 billion, representing an
increase of 1.5% as compared with that in 2019. Among which, the
total export value was USD2,590.65 billion, representing an increase
of 3.6% as compared with that in 2019; and total import value was
USD2,055.61 billion, representing a decrease of 1.1% as compared
with that in 2019. Within the year, China’s import and export
surplus amount was USD535.03 billion, representing an increase of
USD113.96 billion or 27.1% as compared to USD421.07 billion in
2019, in which the trade surplus of textile and garment products was
USD272.58 billion, accounting for 50.9% of the total trade surplus of
China. The trade surplus in textile and garment products remained
the main source of foreign exchange growth.
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According to preliminary statistical materials of Vietnam National
Customs, in 2020, the export amount of Vietnam’s textile industry
was approximately USD33.55 billion, representing a decrease of
9.4% as compared with that in the previous year. Among which,
the export amount of textile and garment was approximately
USD29.81 billion, representing a decrease of 9.2% as compared
with that in the previous year, and the export amount of yarn was
approximately USD3.74 billion, representing a decrease of 10.5%
as compared with that in the previous year. Vietnam’s export of
textile and garment products to the United States, Japan and
South Korea amounted to USD13.99 billion, USD3.53 billion and
USD2.86 billion, respectively, representing a decrease of 5.8%,
11.4% and 14.8%, respectively, as compared with the export
amount in 2019. Yarn was mainly exported to China with an export
amount of approximately USD2.15 billion with a decrease of 10.5%
as compared with that in the previous year. In 2020, Vietnam’s
total import value of fabrics from other foreign countries was
approximately USD11.88 billion, representing a decline of 10.5%
as compared with that in the previous year. Among which, the
amount of fabrics imported from Mainland China was approximately
USD7.27 billion, representing a decline of 5.9% as compared with
that in the previous year, accounting for 61.2% of the total amount
of fabric imported to Vietnam. In addition, the amount of fabrics
imported from South Korea and Taiwan was approximately USD1.62
billion and USD1.39 billion respectively, accounting for 13.7%
and 11.7% of the total amount of imported fabrics of Vietnam,
respectively. Vietham has entered into free trade agreements with
a number of countries and regions, including the “Comprehensive
and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership” (CPTPP)
which officially came into effect in Vietnam on 14 January 2019,
the “EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement” (EVFTA) with effect from
1 August 2020, the “UK-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement” (UKVFTA)
entered into between Vietnam and the United Kingdom on 29
December 2020 which officially came into effect at the beginning
of 2021, and the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership
Agreement (RCEP) jointly signed by Vietnam, China, Japan, South
Korea, Australia, New Zealand and other ASEAN countries on 15
November 2020, which shall officially come into effect subject to
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the ratification by the respective legislative bodies of at least six out
of ten ASEAN countries and three out of five non-ASEAN signatory
countries. Despite the fact that Vietnam has joined some free trade
agreements which enabled it to enjoy a better trading environment
than many garment exporting countries, due to the influence of the
pandemic, the textile and apparel industry chain in Vietnam has been
greatly impacted, especially where there were no well-established
supporting facilities for the industry chain. The textile and garment
export value of Vietnam to relevant countries or regions which are
parties to the relevant agreements decreased but not increased.
In 2020, the amount of textile and garments exported by Vietnam
to the European Union (27 countries) and the United Kingdom was
approximately USD3.06 billion and USDO0.56 billion,
decrease of 11.8% and 28.5% as compared with that in the previous
year, respectively. Vietnam recorded USD4.99 billion of export value
of textile and garment products to the CPTPP member countries,

representing a

representing a decline of 10.5% as compared with that in the
previous year. Nonetheless, the relevant free trade agreements will
promote the development of Vietnam'’s textile and apparel industry in
the long run.

After the European Union decided to withdraw part of the tariff
preferences for export products to European Union granted to
Cambodia in February 2020,
decision from 12 August 2020 that import tariffs will be imposed

it announced to start executing this

on some of the garment and footwear products to be imported
from Cambodia to the European Union. Such products accounted
for approximately 20% of the total products to be imported to
the European Union, and the remaining 80% of the products to
be imported to the European Union will still enjoy the zero tariff
preferential treatment. The apparel industry is Cambodia’s pillar
industry and an encouraged industry designated by its government.
The tariff policies of importing countries have a significant impact on
the development of Cambodia’s apparel industry.
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In the first five months of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic caused
a rather significant impact on the domestic and international
economies and RMB depreciated against USD. Subsequently, as
China was one of the first to control the pandemic, its economy
operation continued to improve. Meanwhile, the United States
implemented an ultra-loose monetary policy, under which the Federal
Reserve Board lowered the USD interest rate to a range between
0 and 0.25%. Hence, RMB appreciated rapidly against USD after
June. Throughout the year, the exchange rate of RMB to USD
experienced an appreciation of approximately 6.9% at middle rate,
causing relatively great foreign exchange loss to most exporting
enterprises. Since the reform of the RMB exchange rate formation
mechanism in 2005 and until the end of 2020, the exchange rate
of RMB to USD experienced a cumulative appreciation of 26.8%.
During the year, the People’s Bank of China promoted the use of
loan prime rate (LPR), which broke the implicit lower limit of loan
interest rates and further improved the efficiency of interest rate
transmission. The one-year quoted interest rate in the loan market
dropped from 4.15% to 3.85%,
pressure related to financing costs amid the pandemic. During the

which alleviated enterprises’

year, the People’s Bank of China reduced the reserve requirement
ratio three times and reduced interest rate on excess reserves
requirement, which better facilitated the recovery and development
of the domestic economy.

In 2020, China conducted its seventh national population census.
Although the results of the census have not yet been announced,
it is expected that the population ageing level will further deepen.
According to statistical data of the Ministry of Public Security,
there was a total of 10.035 million babies born in 2020 for whom
household registration with the Ministry of Public Security was
completed, representing a decrease of 1.755 million or 14.9% as
compared with that in the previous year. According to statistical
data of the National Bureau of Statistics, the annual number of
births was 17.86 million in Mainland China in 2016 and gradually
declined since then. Under the influence of the pandemic, despite
the economic growth slowdown and overall decrease in labour
demand of enterprises, the manufacturing industry still encountered
difficulties in the situation of recruiting workers, and labour costs
have increased year by year. The Chinese government has rolled
out a number of supporting policies during the pandemic, including
partial reduction and exemption of social insurance contributions,
which modestly alleviated the short-term pressure of rising labour
costs for enterprises. For the labour-intensive textile and apparel
industry, robotisation and appropriate transnational relocation of the
industry are still the options for future development.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

25



26

BEEwmR A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BREBEERGZTRELAMHNER S 2B FH
EfRfcEEmEI7TE R E R EFHDT
1TERE 2FRIEEE91EBW R EF
WE04% HEEBEEI(USDAZE Z—F
ZBAMAHmNER FE{2020/21FE 2K
MBIEEE#2,4858 M » #8EE2019/20F E 49
EITABE MR [RI841736.5% » 2020/21F E
2R TIERHE B492,5528 18 > 52019/20
FER2,234B MBI TI18E M IEAH
B14.2% 2RIBITENGEEEGFE#R2,084
B O RE—FETRTHN32% EFHE
EE#4%82% ° TAE PRI IS fEEF 249811
BN {h2IKEFE2439%  c AEMNRBIEH
%%1&’\%%%%5%&34%’;_Dgfﬁ}_ix

O E425% 22 FFEMIERG
15215 OEME > B FFIWR16.6%  BEESF
MEREER THEFYEZERZNFE
TE T BEERIENENEHRBERE 2
FEO7.78M > BB R171% EEEH
HAFERICEONS —ARREE EE2
BNADAEMENE > 25EQ T61.8E M
25 3B - B2 _EFRABMUER BEE
BIENES B RS RETXEEZR T I
BIER MEANAEBELEBITEERE
FE4EE EETEABIENER LA
TEERINES) Fiko

According to information released by the National Bureau of
Statistics, in 2020, China’s cotton plantation area was 3.17
million hectares, representing a decrease of 0.17 million hectares
as compared with that in the previous year. The annual cotton
output was 5.91 million tons, representing an increase of 0.4% as
compared with that in the previous year. According to information
released by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)
in February 2021, it is estimated that the global cotton output
is approximately 24.85 million tons in 2020/21,
decrease of approximately 1.74 million tons or approximately
6.5% as compared with that in 2019/20. The global cotton

consumption volume in 2020/21 will be approximately 25.52 million

representing a

tons, representing an increase of approximately 3.18 million tons
or approximately 14.2% as compared with 22.34 million tons in
2019/20. The global cotton carry-over stock is 20.84 million tons,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.2% as compared
with the previous year, and the ratio of inventory to consumption
is approximately 82%. It is estimated that Chinese cotton
inventory volume is approximately 8.11 million tons, accounting
for approximately 39% of global inventory volume. China’s cotton
consumption volume accounts for approximately 34% of total
global consumption volume and its import amount accounts for
approximately 25% of total global import amount. The aggregate
cotton import of China in 2020 was 2.159 million tons, representing
an increase of 16.6% as compared with the previous year, which is
the fourth year in a row that with a recovery in growth. Stimulated
by the favourable prospect brought by the agreement signed
between China and the United States at the beginning of the year,
cotton import from the United States rebounded significantly. The
annual import was 0.977 million tons, representing a year-on-year
increase of 171%, making the United States once again China’s
largest source country of cotton import, followed by Brazil and
India which imported 0.618 million tons and 0.253 million tons,
respectively. Since May 2020, with the pandemic being under
control, the production capacity of the domestic textile and apparel
industry has gradually returned to normal. Some overseas orders
have been transferred to China for production due to the effect of the
pandemic, which promoted an increase in the domestic demand for

cotton and led to the fluctuations and rises in cotton prices.
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Mr. Xi Jinping, President of the People’s Republic of China, stated
at the General Assembly of the United Nations convened on 22
September 2020 that “China will scale up its Intended Nationally
Determined Contributions by adopting more vigorous policies and
measures. We aim to reach CO2 (Carbon Dioxide) emissions peak
before 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality before 2060”.
to achieve this goal,

In order
the Chinese government has begun to take
corresponding measures and has successively introduced laws
and policies. On 31 December 2020, the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment promulgated the “Administrative Measures for Carbon
Emission Rights Trading (Trial)” (BxHERERZ 5 B IEHHE B17)), which
came into effect on 1 February 2021 and serve to promote reduction
in greenhouse gas emissions through the market mechanism and
regulate the trading of carbon emission rights and related activities. On
24 January 2021, the State Council promulgated the “Regulations on
the Administration of Pollutant Discharge Permits” (B35 &F 0] & 2 1%
f5ll) , which came into effect on 1 March 2021 and serve to regulate
the act of discharging pollutants and control the discharge of pollutants
through strengthening the management of pollutant discharge permits.
On 22 February 2021, the State Council promulgated the “Guiding
Opinions on Accelerating the Establishment and Improvement of the
sound Green and Low-Carbon Circular Development Economic System”
FARMRELE2GBERBREEZRSCEBANIEERR), with
an aim to provide guidance to various main entities for participation
in and improvement of the production system, circulation system and
consumption system under the sound green and low-carbon circular
development, accelerate the green upgrade of infrastructures, and
build a market-oriented green technology innovation system. The textile
and apparel industry should proactively respond to and participate
in this green initiative to form a green, environmentally friendly and
novel industry chain by achieving breakthroughs primarily on energy
conservation, environmental protection, clean production, and clean
energy. The more stringent environmental protection regulatory
requirements will motivate the textile and apparel industry to pay
attention to and invest in environmental protection, and at the same
time facilitate the supply-side reform of the industry brought about by
environmental protection.
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In 2020, due to the COVID-19 outbreak, global textile and garment
order demand was concentrated in a small number of countries
with complete industrial chains, stable supply chains and rapid
recovery of production capacity. Driven by this, China’s share in
major importing markets has rebounded. However, the pandemic
only affected the markets during a specific period of time. As
impacts of the pandemic subsided and disappeared, the middle
and low-end textile and apparel industry will further shift from China
to regions such as Southeast Asia, South Asia and Africa, while
the share of China’s garment products in major markets is likely to
follow the downward trend it had before the pandemic. The fabrics
and trims exported by China to other garment producing countries
have promoted the development of the apparel industry in these
countries. After China joins RCEP, there will be greater advantages in
the inter-regional industrial chain cooperation. Therefore, in the long
run, China’s apparel industry will compete as well as cooperate with
other countries.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



BEEwmR A

Management Discussion and Analysis

F 75Ol EE

BE—F > HMEEENSRERSE KK LE
HREAZE 2GAREEXEHEST
BEHE - —FEMmBEEERBETE
S—FEHEENEE N EZEE - TRR
EXIEE ZHEELEZEEXRBIA
WAATELRT EfEWARE E R
HIRR - FH UK BREBEHPELS
BRZAFEE AEBIKE T ZIBREEE
M BEREMEFYERTRERETIEE
BEREITIEmITEERIES TR A&
BEREERTLCEEENEEERF BIET
BENKESXE FABRZIFELERETE
TIHENER DEFRNZEETF AE
BRUTHFENETEFZER BN ER
ZHEREFEER  BREMEERK
EHMNEIBEE  hEIOFBEEESE

BEIMEREMIZRERZEEENE—TIR
Fo

BAZBEBEZRE BHEBERAMTR ¥
FEIBZABEMEMA BREBRHE XK
ERMIFEL SIEMZ EEERER
EfE-FRo UmEEA IR ERE—D
RA -RUBEEMC EANEREES(HAE
BN MBS A RIMET AHMA
X)) 2 #33,000% B N EF XK 46,400% > i@
BETHEIMBIEREA AMEHBEKXE L
Fo RIEEMRK LK E —HBEERAK
FEE+AMERNKE UNEARE RHEE
BET#M3,100% REEMIK_HEE 2
BERTRERIBEN BEWKENEER M
METHIHEE > RIBENM IREERE
ZRRER - TR BEARBREEEM
BHREBER T I Z B KER

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the past year, the global spread of the COVID-19 pandemic
caused a huge impact on economic activities and severely hit the
global textile and apparel industry. While there was a noticeable
decline in consumption demand in the market, the stability of the
supply chain and the upstream and downstream supporting facilities
along the industrial chain were affected. The production capacity
of most manufacturing enterprises was not effectively utilized and
the industry suffered from shrinking production capacity and even
enterprise shutdowns. Since the beginning of the year, in order to
alleviate the adverse impacts caused by the pandemic on business
operations, the Group has adopted a number of response measures.
The domestic bases quickly resumed operation and production
at the beginning of the year, and the overseas factories have also
commenced normal operations. During the year, the Group not
only achieved stable and orderly business operations and obtained
satisfying operating results, but also laid a solid foundation for
sustainable development in the future. Looking back on the major
works carried out during the year, the Group has made more
remarkable progress in the following areas: the new production
capacity of overseas bases was expanded as planned; the upgrade
and modification of production facilities at the domestic bases
were pressed ahead; its sustainable development capabilities were
strengthened and the ability in adapting to market demand was
further improved.

Despite the lower consumption demand and greater uncertainties
of customer orders due to the impacts of the pandemic, the Group
remains confident about the future development and the expansion
of production capacity at the overseas bases has proceeded as
originally planned. During the year, the production capacity of the
fabric factory in Vietnam was further increased, and the actual
fabric output of the base in Vietham accounted for approximately
50% of that of the Group. The number of employees in the second
garment factory in Vietnam increased from approximately 3,000 at
the beginning of the year to approximately 6,400 at the end of the
year. Through staff training and management improvement, the per
capita output has risen significantly. The first phase of the project for
the new garment factory in Cambodia was officially commissioned
in October 2020 and recruited approximately 3,100 employees in
aggregate by the end of the year. The infrastructure construction
works of the second phase of the project for the new factory in
Cambodia has been progressing smoothly. With successive delivery
of new plants and the continuation of staff training, the new factory
in Cambodia will release more garment production capacity. During
the year, the production bases in Vietham and Cambodia contributed
nearly 40% of the garment production capacity of the Group.
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The Group took advantage of the opportunity arising from some
unused production capacity amid the pandemic to further upgrade
and modify production facilities of the base in Ningbo, which enabled
a more reasonable deployment of production pipelines and further
enhancement of the automation level of the entire industry chain. In
the second half of the year, the number of employees was relatively
insufficient due to the better-than-expected order demand. In order
to pacify the employees, the domestic bases substantially increased
salaries of the employees. The business pressure brought by staff
shortage and salary increase was better relieved by a significant
improvement in per capita output at each production process.
Although the appreciation of RMB against USD accelerated in the
second half of the year, after excluding the impact of the retail
business, the gross profit margin of the manufacturing business
in the second half of the year still increased by 1.3 percentage
points as compared with the same period last year. During the
year, construction of the second administrative centre of the Group
in Ningbo was successfully completed. The relevant business
departments and information centre of the Group were relocated
to such new venue, providing a better office environment for
management and operation.

The Group’s efforts in enlarging the scope of clean energy
application and concern for the interests of all employees have
further enhanced its sustainable development capabilities. During
the year, the Group entered into a framework cooperation agreement
for a distributed photovoltaic project with an energy service
company under State Grid Corporation of China in Ningbo. A
photovoltaic power station was built on the buildings’ rooftops of the
Group’s base in Ningbo and the green electricity generated by the
photovoltaic project was to be used by the Group. In addition, the
Group conducted cooperation with a local wind energy development
company, under which it was intended that the Group would use the
electricity generated by such wind energy development company
and was entitled to the environmental contribution index in terms of
green energy. In December 2020, the Group struck the first “deal
of green electricity” in Zhejiang Province with such wind energy
development company, which was the first time that clean energy
was consumed through a market-oriented mechanism in Zhejiang
Province. The Group obtained a “certificate of green electricity
deal” through the deal of purchasing electricity, which stimulated
the market demand for clean energy. Despite the fact that the
pandemic exerted pressure on its operation, the Group continued to
increase its care for employees. Through establishment of new staff
dormitories, improvement of life ancillary facilities, optimisation of
canteen services and increase in meal allowances, the Group further
improved the living and dining conditions of employees.
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During the pandemic, the comprehensive advantages of the Group’s
supply chain were better manifested, especially the innovation
capabilities, rapid response capabilities and stability of the supply
chain. The progress achieved by the Group in automation and
digitalization further improved its adaptation capabilities to market
demand. Although there were restrictions on the travel of people
between the headquarters and the overseas bases of the Group
due to the effect of the pandemic, the Group was still able to
maintain smooth business communication with customers by taking
advantage of its advancement in digital management and the normal
operation of overseas factories. The Group became less susceptible
to fluctuations of market demand by developing new products.
The newly developed mask products were favoured by consumers
upon their launch. The sales revenue from the mask products
alone amounted to approximately USDO0.19 billion in the second
half of the year. Taking into account the impacts brought about
by the pandemic and the trading environment, the Group further
optimized the matching between the production bases and the sales
markets. The domestic bases would provide more products for the
domestic market, while the overseas bases would provide customers
with products and services under the most favourable trading
environment.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue was approximately
RMB23,030,648,000,
RMB365,376,000 or approximately 1.6% from approximately
RMB22,665,272,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
retail business of the Group discontinued operation at the end of

representing an increase of approximately

2019. Without taking into account the impact on revenue caused
by the scale-down of retail business, revenue from the Group’s
manufacturing business increased by approximately 3.7% as
compared with last year. The slowdown in revenue growth was
primarily due to: (1) a decrease in overall consumption demand in
the market due to the temporary suspension of its brand customers’
offline retail stores in certain regions and the decreased outdoor
shopping activities of consumers as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic; (2) the failure of the Group to recruit new employees for
its domestic bases at the beginning of the year due to the effect of
the pandemic and therefore a shortage of employees in the second
half of the year, causing the Group to be unable to satisfy the order
demands of all customers with its production capacity, despite the
fact that order demands were shifted to domestic manufacturing
enterprises due to the positive impacts brought by China’s better
control of the pandemic in the second half of the year.

The comparison of revenue analysed as per production classification
between 2020 and 2019 of the Group is as below:

BE+-A=+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

Z%%% ZZ-NF 1)
2020 2019 Change

AREFT % ARETRL % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB’000 %

RER By Products
EDE Sports wear 15,940,917 69.2 16,321,975 720 (381,058) (2.3
HEE Casual wear 4,480,518 19.5 5,387,683 23.8 (907,165) (16.8)
R Lingerie wear 1,032,917 45 802,852 35 230,065 28.7
Htstiam Other knitwear 1,576,296 6.8 152,762 0.7 1,423,634 931.9
S Total revenue 23,030,648 1000 22,665,272 1000 365376 16
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from sales of
sportswear products was approximately RMB15,940,917,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB381,058,000 or
approximately 2.3% from approximately RMB16,321,975,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease in revenue from
sales of sportswear products was mainly attributable to a decrease
in sportswear products sold to the US and European markets due to
the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Revenue from sales of casual wear products decreased by
approximately RMB907,165,000 or approximately 16.8% from
approximately RMB5,387,683,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB4,480,518,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. Such decrease was mainly attributable to a
decrease in casual wear sold to Japan and other markets including
Taiwan and South Korean due to the effect of the COVID-19
pandemic. In addition, the Group completely withdrew from its
own retail business at the beginning of the year, resulting in a year-
on-year decrease in the revenue from sales of casual wear of
approximately RMB459,000,000.

Revenue from sales of lingerie products increased by approximately
RMB230,065,000 or approximately 28.7% from approximately
RMB802,852,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB1,032,917,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such increase was mainly attributable to the recovery of
procurement demand for lingerie wear in Japanese market.

Revenue from sales of other knitwear products significantly
increased by approximately RMB1,423,534,000, which is increased
by approximately 9.3 times, from approximately RMB152,762,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB1,576,296,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the inclusion of revenue from
new mask products amounting to approximately RMB1,411,836,000
in the revenue for the year. Without taking into account the impact
of mask products, revenue from sales of other knitwear products
increased by approximately 7.7% as compared with last year.
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&FﬁiﬁzJﬁZ%ﬁ%éﬁ FbEx : between 2020 and 2019 of the Group is as below:
HEt-R=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
“ECEE RE 1)
2020 2019 Change
AEEFTT % AEETT % AEETR %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
g As per market
Sk Japan 4,795,807 20.8 3,642,572 15.6 1,268,235 35.4
Bl Europe 3,679,117 16.0 3,890,278 17.2 (211,161) (5.4)
E3Ei us 3,115,229 13.5 3,475,427 15.3 (360,198) (10.4)
Efig Other 4,117,871 179 4614239 204 (496,368) (108)
EillS= Sub-total of international sales 15,708,024 68.2 15,522,516 68.5 185,508 1.2
EIMHEE Domestic sales 7,322,624 31.8 7,142,756 31.5 179,868 2.5
SHEE Revenue 23,030,648 100.0 22,665,272 100.0 365,376 1.6
HE_Z_ZF+_HA=Z+—HIFE> > For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group
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from the Japanese market was approximately RMB4,795,807,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,253,235,000 or
approximately 35.4% from approximately RMB3,542,572,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was mainly
attributable to an increase in the mask products sold to the
Japanese market and an increase in the sale of lingerie wear during
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group
from the European market was approximately RMB3,679,117,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB211,161,000 or
approximately 5.4% from approximately RMB3,890,278,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to a decrease in consumption demands for sportswear in
the European market as a result of the spread of the pandemic.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group
from the US market was approximately RMB3,115,229,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB360,198,000 or
approximately 10.4% from approximately RMB3,475,427,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to a decrease in consumption demands for sportswear in
the US market as a result of the pandemic.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from other
overseas markets was approximately RMB4,117,871,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB496,368,000 or
approximately 10.8% from approximately RMB4,614,239,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to a decrease in garments exported to markets such as
South Korea and Taiwan.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group
from the domestic market increased by 2.5% as compared with
last year. Among domestic revenue, revenue from apparels was
approximately RMB7,130,404,000, representing an increase of
approximately RMB221,084,000 or approximately 3.2% from
approximately RMB6,909,320,000 last year. The Group withdrew
from its own retail business during the year, which offset the revenue
growth in the PRC market. However, as the pandemic in Mainland
China subsided, the consumption demand for garments returned to
normal and there was a satisfying growth in the sales of the Group to
major customers in the PRC market.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of sales of
the Group was approximately RMB15,836,040,000 (2019:
RMB15,789,251,000). The gross profit margin of the Group in 2020
was approximately 31.2%, up by approximately 0.9 percentage
points from 30.3% in 2019. Without taking into account the impact
of the retail business, the gross profit margin of the manufacturing
industry for the year still increased by 0.4 percentage points as
compared with last year. The key factors that influenced the gross
profit margin for the year were: 1) there was a more rapid increase in
labour costs during the year and the expenses related to pandemic
prevention increased; 2) a rapid appreciation of RMB against the
USD after May; and 3) the amortization of fixed costs was reduced
by an increase in the production capacity of overseas factories as
well as per capita output of domestic bases, which partially offset
the pressure on profit.
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the parent amounted to approximately RMB27,276,060,000
(2019: RMB25,172,450,000), in which non-current assets were
approximately RMB13,297,911,000 (2019: RMB11,360,620,000),
net current assets were approximately RMB14,701,225,000 (2019:
RMB14,909,520,000), non-current liability were approximately
RMB728,306,000 (2019: RMB1,078,813,000) and equity attributable
to non-controlling interests were approximately -RMB5,230,000
(2019: RMB18,877,000).
owners of the parent was mainly attributable to the increase in

The increase in equity attributable to

retained earnings for the year.

Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2020,
from operating activities of the Group was approximately
RMB5,754,570,000, while it was approximately RMB5,604,360,000
in 2019. The cash and cash equivalent of the Group as at 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB8,227,060,000, in which
approximately RMB1,102,217,000 was denominated in RMB,
approximately RMB6,495,183,000 was denominated in USD,
approximately RMB17,305,000 was denominated in Vietnamese

the net cash flow

dong, approximately RMB16,858,000 was denominated in HK
dollars, approximately RMB592,917,000 was denominated
in Euro and the remaining balance was denominated in other
currencies (2019: RMB5,060,896,000, in which approximately
RMB911,024,000 was denominated in RMB, approximately
RMB3,905,363,000 was denominated in USD, approximately
RMB202,877,000 was denominated in HKD, approximately
RMB38,948,000 was denominated in Vietnamese dong,
approximately RMB1,056,000 was denominated in Euro, and the
The
balance of bank borrowings was approximately RMB6,608,303,000
(2019: RMB83,968,578,000, of which the short-term bank borrowing
was approximately RMB3,192,164,000, and long-term bank

remaining balance was denominated in other currencies).

borrowing was approximately RMB776,414,000), of which the short-
term bank borrowing was approximately RMB6,210,429,000, and
long-term bank borrowing was approximately RMB397,874,000.
The net cash of the Group as at 31 December 2020 (cash
and cash equivalent less bank borrowing) was approximately
RMB1,618,757,000, which increased by RMB526,439,000 from the
balance of approximately RMB1,092,318,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB27,276,060,000 (2019: RMB25,172,450,000).
The Group was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity
ratio (calculated based on the percentage of total outstanding
borrowings over equity attributable to owners of the parent) of
24.2% (2019: 15.8%), up by 8.4 percentage points as compared
with the end of last year, which was primarily due to an increase
in bank borrowings to finance the required fund of the new and
expanded production capacity of the overseas bases of the Group.

As a part of the overall treasury management policies of the Group,
the Group purchased financial products from various licensed banks
of China (including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, other financial assets and fixed deposits) to maximize the
return brought by idle money of the Group through legal and low-
risk channels. The results of applicable size tests for purchasing
the financial products were lower than 5%. Thus, the purchases
were not subject to the notifiable transaction requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
purchase of such financial products was approved by the investment
and lending committee established by the Board to monitor the
implementation of treasury management policies of the Company.
Please refer to notes 23, 24 and 25 to Financial Statements
contained in this preliminary annual results announcement for details
of such financial products.

Pledge of assets of the group
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any pledge of
assets.

Financing costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the financing cost had
increased by approximately RMB19,072,000 to approximately
RMB108,250,000 from approximately RMB89,178,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly attributable to an
increase in average loan balance of the Group during the year as
compared with last year. The annual rate of USD borrowings of the
Group was between 0.58% and 3.51% during the year (2019: USD
annual borrowing rate was between 2.6% and 5.0%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the income tax expense of
the Group was approximately RMB429,781,000, which decreased
by RMB183,426,000 from approximately RMB613,207,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly because the
overseas subsidiaries of the Group contributed a greater proportion
of production capacity and was in a period subject to preferential
income tax, while the PRC subsidiaries of the Group were affected
by the significant appreciation of RMB against USD, which resulted
in a decrease in the assessable profit of the Group in Mainland
China.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in USD, while its
procurement was mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group adopted corresponding policies in
light of the existing fluctuations of exchange rate between USD and
RMB to hedge against certain risk exposure in respect of foreign
exchange. The amount applied for hedging depends on the Group’s
revenue, procurement and capital expenditure in USD, as well as the
market forecast of fluctuations in the exchange rate of USD against
RMB.

In order to avoid any decrease and volatility in value of future
cash flows caused by any change in exchange rate of RMB
against USD, the Group has arranged certain amount of loans
denominated in USD and loans denominated in HKD with linked
exchange rate with USD. Amongst total bank borrowings as at 31
December 2020, loans of approximately RMB3,527,582,000 were
denominated in USD (calculated based on original currency of
approximately USD540,634,000) and loans of RMB1,430,720,000
were denominated in HKD (calculated based on original currency
of HKD1,700,000,000) (31 December 2019: loans of approximately
RMB1,276,978,000 were denominated in USD (calculated based
on original currency of approximately USD183,048,000) and loans
of approximately RMB1,791,600,000 were denominated in HKD
(calculated based on original currency of HKD2,000,000,000)).
The increased proportion of production capacity contributed by
the overseas production bases of the Group and increased market
share in the domestic sales market apparently reduced the impact
of fluctuation in exchange rate of RMB against USD on the Group’s
business.
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EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately 89,100
employees in total. During the year, the total staff costs, including
administrative and management staff, accounted for approximately
26.7% (2019: 26.3%) of the Group’s sales amount. The total staff
cost as a proportion of the income increased by approximately 0.4
percentage points as compared with last year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration policy.
Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary rewards
based on their annual performance appraisals. In addition, the Group
also offered staff rewards or other forms of incentives to motivate their
personal growth and career development. For instance, the Group
offered training to its staff continuously to enhance their technical and
product knowledge as well as their understanding of quality standards
in industry, and all of the new employees of the Group are required to
attend an introductory course, while there are also various types of
training courses available for all employees to attend.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment, and prepaid land lease payment amounted to
approximately RMB2,324,417,000, of which approximately 39% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
56% was used for the construction and acquisition of new factory
buildings and prepaid land lease payment, and the remaining
balance was used for the purchase of other fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contracted capital
commitments of approximately RMB931,501,000 in connection with
the acquisition and construction of the land use right, property, plant
and equipment, which will be mainly financed by internal resources
and bank borrowings.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has accumulatively invested
approximately USD173,758,000 in the new garment factory in
Phnom Penh, Cambodia. The production buildings in the first phase
of this project (including a warehouse, two garment production
workshops and an auxiliary building) were completed and put
into operation. One garment factory, one auxiliary factory and
one printing and embroidery factory in the second phase were
completed and gradually put into operation. Moreover, three garment
factories, one auxiliary factory and the administration building will
be completed in the near future. The total investment of this project
is expected to be approximately USD250,000,000, mainly for the
construction of downstream garment facilities (including cutting,
sewing, printing, embroidery, packaging and washing processes).
Such amount will be used for lease of land, construction of plants
and staff dormitories, construction of infrastructure, and purchase of
machinery and equipment. It is expected that the funds will mainly
be obtained from bank borrowings.

In addition, the Group started to construct a garment production
facility in Vietnam at the end of 2019. It is estimated that
approximately USD100,000,000 will be invested in this new garment
production facility. Such amount will be used for lease of land,
construction of plants and supporting facilities, and purchase of
machinery and equipment. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
a cumulative amount of approximately USD29,830,000 has been
invested, and the civil engineering work of the project is still in
progress. It is expected that the funds of the project will mainly be

obtained from cash reserve of the Group.

Apart from these, the Company did not have any significant
investments, acquisitions and disposals during the year ended
31 December 2020. Please refer to the announcement dated 17
September 2018 and the Interim Report 2020 of the Company
for the details of the project in Phnom Penh, Cambodia and the
announcement dated 17 October 2019 for the details of the project
in Vietnam.

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s capital and liabilities ratio was
24.2%, calculated based on the percentage of the total outstanding
borrowings to the equity attributable to owners of the parent.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no events after the reporting period that had significant
impacts on the Group after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The global spread of the COVID-19 pandemic caused tremendous
impacts on the textile and garment manufacturing corporations in
different countries. It is believed that as the pandemic will eventually
be over, the trade landscape of textile and garment products will
gradually return to what it was like before the pandemic. However,
the pandemic also accelerated the upgrade and integration of
the industry, which will face the following challenges in its future
development: the manpower pressure across the world will
continue to exist due to changes in the demographic structure
and employment concept; the uncertainties surrounding the trade
environment will continue to affect the global layout of the industry,
especially when the trade conflict of two large countries US-China
shows no apparent signs of improvement in the short term; there
will be greater demand for innovative products in the market,
and functional products related to environmental protection and
healthcare will become more popular among consumers; brand
customers will have high requirements on the response speed of
the supply chain of manufacturers and they have to meet the needs
of consumers for personalized products to a certain extent; human
beings will have increasingly higher requirements on environmental
protection in respect of their living environment. Some countries will
continue to strengthen legislation on environmental protection, and
the environmental protection concepts such as clean production and
carbon neutrality will procure more enterprises to proactively include
low-carbon practices in their production model.

We should draw up plans for post-pandemic development direction
of the industry in advance, promote the transformation of the
industry towards high-quality development, enhance the industry
value chain with technology and innovation as the driving force,
consolidate global resources and promote transnational industrial
cooperation. In order to further enhance its competitive advantage in
the industry, the Group will devote itself to the following works in its
future development:
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The Group will firmly promote the transformation of its production
model based on the ideas of “deskilling, comfortability, automation
and digitalisation”. Requirements on the production skills of
employees will be lowered and training hours for new employees
will be reduced through continuous process improvement as well
as development and application of production moulds. Working
environment will be improved continuously and work intensity will
be reduced for the sake of employees, with an aim to advocate a
people-oriented culture and enable employees to have a work-life
balance. Manpower pressure will be alleviated through headcount
reduction and efficiency enhancement, which will be achieved
through putting greater efforts into exploring the demand for and
promoting the application of automatic equipment. The digital
transformation of the industry will be pressed ahead. With optimum
connection of information across the entire industry chain and fast
response of upstream and downstream production capacity as the
targets, the delivery cycle will be further shortened and production
capacity will be utilised in the most effective way.

The Group will further optimize the matching between its production
base layout and market demands in order to achieve simultaneous
growth in both international and domestic markets and increase
its share in the global market. Under the guiding policy of the
government for encouraging expansion of domestic demand as
well as the trend of domestic consumption upgrade, there is still
enormous room for growth in the domestic market. Currently,
China has joined the RCEP. In addition, the Chinese government
also intends to accelerate the negotiation progress of the Free
Trade Agreements between China, Japan and South Korea, and
is actively considering to join the Comprehensive and Progressive
Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership, thus the improvement in
regional trading environment is worth looking forward. However, the
trading policies between the two countries, China and the United
States, do not indicate obvious improvement at present, resulting in
relatively high uncertainties in the global trading environment. The
production base layout of the Group will be optimally planned by
comprehensively considering changes in the trade environment and
the best way to consolidate global resources.
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Driven by product innovation, the Group will further improve the
quality of its supply and promote product diversification. In particular,
developing new products that are green, healthy, comfortable
and functional is its main development direction with a view to
facilitating and guiding the growth of consumption demand. With
the gradual release of new production capacity, the Group will
continue to improve its ability in providing comprehensive service
for customers, increase the scale of business cooperation with its
existing core customers, and consider introducing new customers
where appropriate. By further improving and innovating the incentive
and guarantee mechanism, comprehensively cultivating, recruiting
and utilising talents, enhancing the cultivation of innovative, applied
and skilled talents, and strengthening its motivation in product
innovation, the Group will achieve value enhancement of the supply
chain.

The Group will continue to strengthen its sustainable development
capabilities and promote the harmony between high-quality industrial
development and high-level protection of the ecological environment
in order to procure the industry to follow a green and low-carbon
development approach. In the next few years, through further
optimising the energy consumption structure gradually, especially
by increasing the proportion of clean energy consumption such as
wind power and solar power, as well as continuously improving craft
process and enhancing the industrial application of environmental
protection equipment, the Group will promote resource conservation
and recycling, enhance the efficiency of resource utilisation, improve
the standard of clean production along the entire industry chain, and
strive for reduction in carbon emissions year by year.

Only by innovation, mind change and long-term stability can the
Group seize opportunities and seek for development. With a
customer-centric approach and a goal of enhancing its corporate
competitiveness, the Group is always committed to reinforcing its
development foundation, facilitating industrial upgrade, guiding
transformation of the industry towards high-quality development,
working hard to provide better garment products for consumers and
achieving greater corporate value for shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended
best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 October 2005. The Company had
complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company are
regularly revised based on amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and their
roles and functions are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

Independent non-executive directors

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board had complied
with (1) the requirement that the board of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (2) the requirement that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(3) the requirement that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of his or her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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EERHE_Z_ZEF+_HB=+—HIEE A summary of training received by the Directors during the year

ERESEINHME2UWT ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Exps sEaNEE R (F5E)
Name of Directors Types of training (Notes)
BITES

Executive Directors

BERTE A&B
Mr. Ma Jianrong

mRAMITE A&B
Mr. Huang Guanlin

BLCMEE A&B
Mr. Ma Renhe

EFERTE A&B
Mr. Wang Cunbo

RZHet A&B

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BIAFRTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BEmTLE A&B
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

SRINAE o4 A&B
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

BRIBREE W _E-_—F=F—H#MD A&B
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

REELE W_ZE_—F=B—H#HMD A&B
Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

B 5E - Notes:
Al HEBRARBEZEZHEE A:  attending seminars organized by the Company
B: MEAMLTRAUKEMBRALEEREE B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest

ERMERNMASEMEHEENER development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements
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Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with
the code provision D.3 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group; training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and
making recommendations; compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
be convened on 28 May 2021 to answer shareholders’ questions
relating to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy and
procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director. The policy and the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at date of this report being submitted to the Board, which was 29
March 2021, the Board comprised five Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among certain Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Members
of Senior Management” on pages 183 to 192. There are no other
material financial, business or relevant relationships among the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities
of the Board include formulating the Group’s business strategies and
management objectives, supervising the management and evaluating
of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the operating condition,
business activities and development of the Group. Independent
professional advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their
request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANAGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the significant operational decisions of the Group,
while the Group General Manager is responsible for managing the
day-to-day operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong
is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group
General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Independent Non-executive
Directors accounted for approximately 44.4% of the members of the
Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors are outstanding
executives or experts in the textile industry and business sectors
who bring with them expertise in different areas. They provide
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the overall
interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and decisions.
All Independent Non-executive Directors have submitted annual
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.
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Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2020, with all the existing members of the Board
attended.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members
of the Board, the Board adopted a board diversity policy. It is
the policy of the Company to consider a number of factors when
deciding on appointments to the Board and the continuation of
those appointments. Such factors include gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As at the
publication of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng, Mr.
Jiang Xianpin and Ms. Liu Chunhong, who are independent non-
executive Directors. On 1 March 2021, Mr. Chen Xu resigned as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
was appointed to fill the vacancy. Hence, Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Meanwhile, Ms.
Liu Chunhong was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates and factors such
as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job complexity are

taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2020 which all
the members attended. At the meeting, it reviewed the remuneration
of Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 10 members of the
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 189 to 192 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

. _ A

B =5 4k (GB¥E T oT) Number of

Remuneration band (HK$’000) individual

1,000% 2,000 1,000 to 2,000 4
2,000 & Above 2,000 6
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 October
2005. As at the publication of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an executive Director, Mr. Liu Xinggao,
Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng, who are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. On 1 March 2021, Mr. Qiu Weiguo resigned
as a member of the Nomination Committee. Meanwhile, Mr. Liu
Xinggao was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board accordingly; regularly review the
structure, size and diversity composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board for any proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy. Pursuant to
the nomination policy, in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee will take into
account the following factors of the candidate, including but not

limited to:

° reputation for integrity;

° accomplishment and experience in the manufacturing industry,
in particular, in the textile and garment manufacturing sector;

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and

° diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,

gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,

professional experience, skills and length of service.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance
in 2020. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (‘“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to
re-election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As at
the publication of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin,
Ms. Liu Chunhong, Mr. Liu Xinggao and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng. Mr.
Jiang Xianpin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. His expertise
in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to lead the Audit
Committee. On 1 March 2021, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Qiu Weiguo
resigned as members of the Audit Committee. Meanwhile, Ms. Liu
Chunhong and Mr. Liu Xinggao were appointed as members of the
Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices, risk management and internal controls. These include
determining the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing
the Group’s interim and annual financials and assessing the
completeness and effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and
financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG
Code and are subject to amendments in response to the regulatory
requirements from time to time (including the Listing Rules).
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
the external auditors of the Company the annual results and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters including the review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year, the Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors twice with full
attendance, to discuss the audit procedures and accounting issues.

Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2020 are set out in the following table.
The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
100.00%.

HE/ BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
EEh-F BERZEYg HMEEE RLZEE RRBEAG
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HITES
Executive Directors
BEEES 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BREMEE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BLCHxE 4/4 - 1/1 - 11
Mr. Ma Renhe
ITEREE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
RZH5ut 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Chen Zhifen
BIERTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BRABEE 4/4 2/2 11 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Xu
BEREE 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
REESE 4/4 2/2 - 1/1 11
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
RIRE RS 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility of risk management and
internal control system and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility to assess and determine the nature
and degree of risks that it is willing to take in achieving strategic
goals as well as to maintain an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system and to ensure accurate
reporting of the Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the
public in a timely manner.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage and enhance operating effectiveness and
efficiency, to safeguard assets against misappropriation and
unauthorized disposition, to maintain appropriate accounting
records and financial reports that are true and fair, and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system aims
at providing a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and managing rather than eliminating
operational risks.

The overall risk management process of the Company is integrated
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and the management
is entrusted with duties to analyze, identify, monitor, evaluate
and respond to risks associated with the business activities and
operations of the Group. The management will evaluate risk levels
acceptable for the Company, set up and formulate contingency plans
to minimize impact of unpredictable events and report its findings to
the Audit Committee and the Board, who ultimately determine the
nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to
take in achieving its business objectives and direct the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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The Internal Audit Department is tasked with performing internal
control functions of the Company and plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted
access to information that allows it to review all aspects of the
Company’s risk management, control and governance processes.
On a regular basis, it conducts audits on major activities and
process of the Group’s business and support units. It also conducts
special reviews or investigations of areas of concern identified
by the management or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee, Directors and key senior
management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for proper
implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
Directors and senior management directly and periodically.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts annual review
on the risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, which covered controls over financial reporting,
operations and compliance, as well as risk management functions,
and considered that the system of internal controls in operation in
the Group have been in place and functioning effectively.

Assisted by the Audit Committee, the Board assessed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 was effective and adequate.

The Group has formulated procedures on the handling and
disclosure of inside information which provides a general guide
to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. The procedures
help ensure that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any officer of the Company should be promptly
identified, assessed and reported to the Board if required, and
that inside information of the Company is disclosed promptly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations when necessary.
To further enhance the internal control of the Company, the
Company has adopted a written inside information disclosure policy
on 27 March 2017 to standardize the responsibility and procedure of
information disclosure.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The remuneration related to the audit services and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to RMB3,452,000 and RMB1,286,100
respectively. Among the remuneration related to non-audit services,
RMB1,043,300 was tax advisory fee and RMB242,800 was overseas
corporate advisory fee.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the Directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible for
facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 183 to 192 of
this annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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KEEMEBRBR INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

EELFRLERTEBERASZTE-FHRELT The Board recognises the importance of communication with its

HREARBRIEHE2EMNEBERGTFHFRIEE  shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive

Bl MIRRBEAGRERFIEZEMAESE operational and financial performance information to shareholders

BREFRENER - and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

KEBNREEBGIIFERMIEDMMMER  Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research

REZBR THHRFRMHAMAEBESRE analysts and investors in an on-going manner and provides them

RERNRTRTEER- with up-to-date and comprehensive information about the Group’s
strategies and development.
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The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet. If
necessary, hard copies of those website information listed above are
available free of charge upon request to the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. The Company
understands that more disclosure does not necessarily result in
increased transparency. The integrity of the information provided is
essential for building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2313ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

During the period from 1 January 2019 to the date of this annual
report, there was no material change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT AND ITS ASPECT

This sustainability report outlines the approaches, commitment
and strategies of the Group’s major subsidiaries in respect of
environmental protection, social responsibility and operating
governance. The reporting period of this report is from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020. The data disclosed in this report is provided by
the respective human resources, administration, finance, energy and
other relevant departments, and has been prepared and collected by
sustainable development department. Unless otherwise stated, the
contents disclosed in this report included each of major branches and
production bases of the Group in China, Vietnam and Cambodia.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. During the reporting period, the
Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”.

PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS AND
SELECTION OF MAJOR ISSUES

In order to ensure the effective implementation of our environmental,
social and governance policies, the Group attaches great importance
to the opinion from every stakeholder. Stakeholders includes internal
stakeholders like Directors, management and staff of different levels,
as well as external stakeholders like shareholders, customers,
suppliers, banks, every government authority and local community
organizations. Internal meetings, interviews, internal publications,
staff performance review, training courses organized by Shenzhou
School of Management are the Group’s major communication
channels with its internal stakeholders. While for our external
stakeholders, the Group uses meeting, site visit, annual general
meeting and Group’s announcement as communication channels.

After comprehensive consideration, we will present our policies
on resources utilization, energy conservation and emission
reduction, remuneration package, working environment, training
and development of our staff, social engagement, procurement
chain management, anti-corruption, lean production and innovation,
investor relationships, etc, and their effectiveness. All stakeholders
are welcome to express their opinions.
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VISION

Shenzhou’s position for its future corporate development is to
be committed to “becoming the best garment operator in the
worldwide”. Shenzhou is Asia’s biggest vertically integrated
garment enterprise, with a complete operation system including
research and development, design, production and logistics. The
future development strategy of Shenzhou is not only to pursue the
continuous growth of the scale of the enterprise, but also to focus
on the comprehensive uplift in the corporate competitiveness,
especially the improvement in innovation, automation, digitalisation
and environmental protection.

MISSION

“Building a green enterprise and offering people a comfortable life”
— Environmental protection is primary social responsibility as well as
the basis of long-term viability for any enterprises. The Group shall
always remain devoted to environmental commitments, from which
corporate sustainability can be realized. Comfort is not merely a
tactile sensation from our knitwear, but also a state of living that we
so fervently pursue. By creating a life of comfort, we seek to make
the enterprise one with nature.

BN EE SRR
Shenzhou Group Strategy House

R HAEKRERRNER
Vision: become the best global apparel manufacturer
-] oﬁﬁfi HF{HAERE B®
PRODUCTIVITY INVESTMENT  DIGITAL SUPPLY CHAIN PEOPLE
BIFR BEt EE AR
INNOVATION AUTOMATION SPEED SUSTAINABILITY

figds Bl B 3 R AT BT

Mission: Build a green enterprise and offer people comfortable life

BOEE R BT B8, WE

Core values: Integrity / Responsibility / Learning / Efficiency
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group recognizes the importance of enhancing its own
environmental and social responsibility to maintain business
sustainability. In determining its operation strategy, therefore, the
Group considers risks and opportunities affecting the environmental,
social responsibility and governance (“ESG”) issues, which will
provide guidelines for its daily business operations. The Group has
established a Sustainable Development Committee (“Sustainable
Development Committee”) chaired by the Chairman of the Board.
Meanwhile, we have also appointed the head of our Administration
Department to organize the daily operation of the committee and
report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Board endorses the Group’s commitments to ESG responsibility,
and assumes full responsibility for ESG strategies and reporting. The
Board reviews the ESG performance of the Group annually, identifies,
evaluates and manages important matters related to environmental
protection, social responsibility and governance, and oversees and
approves annual ESG report.

In charge of assessing and determining the ESG risk exposure,
the management of the Group also ensures the Group establishes
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems and reports to the Board the risks and opportunities related
to ESG, and provides confirmation on the effectiveness of the ESG
system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

The Introduction of Shenzhou’s Environmental
Protection:

Environmental protection is one of the key policies of the
government. In recent years, the Chinese government
has strengthened its effort in environmental protection
policy through reform of the supply side, which restricts
and eliminates the outdated production facilities that have
negative impact on the environment. The Chinese government
continuously improved environmental protection legislation,
and many environmental protection regulations were being
promulgated and implemented, including Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law on
Appraising of Environment Impacts of the People’s Republic
of China, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, Solid
Wastes Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Administrative Measures
for Carbon Emission Rights Trading (Trial), Regulations on the
Administration of Pollutant Discharge Permits, etc. Such laws
highlighted the supervision of environmental protection and

monitoring of discharged pollutant by local governments.

On 31 December 2020, the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment promulgated the “Administrative Measures for
Carbon Emission Rights Trading (Trial)” (BxBERIE R 5 & 12
woE &Hi7),

and serve to promote reduction in greenhouse gas emissions

which came into effect on 1 February 2021

through the market mechanism and regulate the trading of
carbon emission rights and related activities.
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On 24 January 2021, the State Council promulgated the
“Regulations on the Administration of Pollutant Discharge
Permits” (HESsF Al B %)), which came into effect on
1 March 2021 and serve to regulate the act of discharging
pollutants and control the discharge of pollutants through
strengthening the management of pollutant discharge permits.

On 22 February 2021, the State Council promulgated the
“Guiding Opinions on Accelerating the Establishment and
Improvement of the sound Green and Low-Carbon Circular
Development Economic System” (BERINIREIE 24 EE
MBERZERCERBAMNIBEERTR), with an aim to provide
guidance to various main entities for participation in and
improvement of the production system, circulation system
and consumption system under the sound green and low-
carbon circular development, accelerate the green upgrade of
infrastructures, and build a market-oriented green technology
innovation system. The textile and apparel industry should
proactively respond to and participate in this green action plan
initiative to form a green, environmentally friendly and novel
industry chain by achieving breakthroughs primarily on energy
conservation, environmental protection, clean production, and
clean energy. The more stringent environmental protection
regulatory requirements will motivate the textile and apparel
industry to pay attention to and invest in environmental
protection, and at the same time facilitate the supply-
side reform of the industry brought about by environmental
protection.

The Group will continue to strengthen its sustainable
development capabilities and promote the harmony between
high-quality industrial development and high-level protection
of the ecological environment in order to procure the industry
to follow a green and low-carbon development approach.
In the next few years, through further optimising the energy
consumption structure gradually, especially by increasing
the proportion of clean energy consumption such as wind
power and solar power, as well as continuously improving
craft process and enhancing the industrial application of
environmental protection equipment, the Group will promote
resource conservation and recycling, enhance the efficiency of
resource utilisation, improve the standard of clean production
along the entire industry chain, and strive for reduction in
carbon emissions year by year.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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The main resources used in the process of the Group’s
production is water, electricity, steam, natural gas, coal and
biomass. The Group primarily produces greenhouse gases due
to energy consumption in the production process, greenhouse

;ME— BEER (KRR -EWER gasses emissions include Scope 1: direct emissions (natural
B MEE—  BEER (BAHM gas, biomass fuel and coal) and Scope 2: indirect emissions
ZR) ERAEEREREENTER (electricity and steam). Fabric production is the main process

H-EEBETFMELENTEREYS
B ER- ERES BK -BREIEE
ERHRTIF-
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o FERE A EM 2 KE IR AR
KFHEE TR BORT EEHE ERBUS
HRFRIBISRBRFIRIRE -

RERSHE ARATMER BERE
BB ENKEREIMREERER
BEERYEBTAHMEHEARTEEK
FENERERRIER

of energy consumption. The main wastes generated from
production are wastewater, waste gas and solid waste etc.,
and the wastewater and waste gas are generated from dyeing
process.

Given the continuous technology advancement of production
equipment in recent years, the water and energy consumption
of domestic bases decreased continuously during the year,
thus solving the problem arisin from the governmental
limitation on environment emission index following the increase
in productivity of fabrics.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
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2.

Use of Resource
2.1 Water Resource

In 2020, water consumption of the Group for the year
is 25,114,720 tons, which decreased by approximately
4.43% when compared with last year, which was mainly
attributable to the use of environmental friendly raw
materials by the Group, improvement in dyeing process,
introduction of environmental friendly equipment and
the use of reclaimed water after treatment. The Group
has wastewater treatment facility in China and Vietnam
respectively to treat discharged water. Meanwhile, the
Group has recycled facilities in Mainland China, with a
capacity of 15,000 tons of reclaimed water per day, and
we have consumed a total of 2,256,939 tons of reclaimed
water. Through sewage spilt-flow in the production
process, lightly polluted water for dyeing is recycled after
treatment with a usage rate of approximately 30%. Thus,
it effectively lower the consumption in water resources
and the volume of direct wastewater discharge, and
dyed polluted water is discharged after strict treatment.
In addition, the reclaimed water recycling facilities at the
fabric factory area in Vietnam are under construction.
The decrease in reclaimed water was due to the fact
that currently only the fabric factory in Ningbo used the
reclaimed water recycling system and the production
capacity of the fabric factory in Ningbo in 2020 decreased
as compared to 2019, which resulted in a corresponding
reduction in total water consumption following such
decrease in production capacity. Also, the Group adjusted
the product structure of the fabric production sites in
Ningbo and Vietnam.
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2.2 Direct Energy
2.2.1 Natural gas
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Currently, Ningbo factories are completely using
natural gas as basic fuel, thus effectively alleviating
the adverse impact on the atmosphere. In 2020,
the Group consumed a total of 53,529,305 m® of
natural gas, representing a decrease of 9.64% as
compared to the corresponding period last year,
with approximately 122,031 tons of carbon dioxide
emitted. The decrease in gas consumption volume
was due to the fact that natural gas was mainly
consumed by the fabric production site in Ningbo,
the production capacity of which in 2020 decreased

EWERELL2019EBF T as compared to 2019. As such, the total natural
o AL AEBHNXAR gas consumption volume of the Group dropped as
FRLEHNKR2019FEAF compared to 2019.
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2.2.2 Biomass and Coal

In 2020, the total consumption of environment-
friendly biomass and coal was 194,346 tons (2019:
174,770 tons), representing an increase of 11.20%
as compared to that of last year, with approximately
441,855 tons of carbon dioxide emitted. The
increase was due to the fact that coal was mainly
consumed by the fabric production site in Vietnam,
the production capacity of which in 2020 increased
as compared to 2019, resulting in an increase in the
consumption volume of coal.
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2.2.3Diesel fuel and gasoline*

During the year, though the transportation, the
Group used a total of 12,753,508 litres of diesel
fuel, which emitted 33,542 tons of carbon dioxide,
and used 188,338 litres of gasoline in total with 434
tons of carbon dioxide emitted. The total carbon
dioxide emitted was 33,976 tons.

The diesel fuel and gasoline were tracked and
measured statistically in a systematic way from
the early of 2020, but the data of Cambodia was
excluded.
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2.3 Indirect Energy
2.3.1 Electricity

The total consumption of electricity of the Group
for the year was 676,640,747 kWh (in which
673,841,471 kWh was purchased electricity and
2,799,276 kWh was self-generated solar power for
internal use), representing a year-on-year increase of
7.17%. The main use of electricity was production
of fabrics. The increase in total electricity was due
to an increase in the production capacity of the
fabric production sites in Vietnam in 2020 together
with an increase in the fixed power consumption
of the new workshop. In 2020, the fabric output
of the Group was 195,257 tons, representing a
decrease of 2.79% as compared to that of last year.
The electricity consumption of the fabric factories
was 486,901,562 kWh, representing an increase of
approximately 2.35% as compared to last year.
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2.3.2 Steam
In 2020, the volume of outsourced steam was
892,822 tons, representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 13.10%, with approximately
228,037 tons of carbon dioxide emitted. The
decrease in outsourced steam was due to the fact
that outsourced steam was mainly consumed by
the fabric production site in Ningbo, the production
capacity of which in 2020 decreased as compared
to 2019. As such, the total outsourced steam
consumption volume dropped as compared to
2019.
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Please refer to the following table for the
intensity of direct energy consumption, indirect
energy consumption and water consumption in

BRTXR: 2019 and 2020:
—Z2-NF ZETEHF
2019 2020
FEKENRE (W, T14) 61.0 57.1
The intensity of water consumption (Tons/k pieces)
BHEERHEENRE-MR QLA K/ T4 137.5 121.7

The intensity of direct energy consumption

— Gas (m¥k pieces)
BHEERHEENRE - EME MRS RE (M, FH4) 0.4 0.4
The intensity of direct energy consumption

— Biomass fuel & Coal (Tons/k pieces)
BiEEREEENRE-8H (TREE /T4 1,465.6 1,537.8
The intensity of indirect energy consumption

— Electricity (kWh/k pieces)
BB REEENRE %5 (M T4 2.4 2.0
The intensity of indirect energy consumption

— Steam (Tons/k pieces)

e . BEZFEASEHES Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total
HEFIARENGE consumption and total production of knitwear each
EEZEo year.
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In 2020, the decrease in water consumption
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intensity is attributable to the modification and
upgrade of a series of water and electricity
conservation equipment, one of the examples
was our fresh water consumption decreased after
the upgrade of dyeing and finishing facility and
modification of pipelines. At the same time, as
the total water consumption in 2020 decreased
by 4.43% as compared to 2019 and the total
fabric production capacity decreased by 2.79% as
compared to 2019, hence, the intensity of water
consumption dropped. The intensity of steam
consumption dropped because the usage of steam
decreased.
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EMISSIONS

In the current year, the Group’s operation has no significant
impact on the environment and natural resources. Therefore,
Aspect A3 (Environment and Natural Resources) and its KPI
A3.1 (Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them) are not applicable to the Group and are not
disclosed in this ESG report. In terms of the relevant policy
in environmental protection and natural resources, the waste
water, waste gas and noise of the Group comply with emission
standards. In terms of the emission of waste water, the current
emission of waste water of the Group is better than standard.

The Group pays attention to the control of pollutants in the
whole process and attaches importance to the environmental
protection performance of raw materials provided by suppliers
in determination of suppliers. Each production department
continues to improve technique and tries to enhance the level
of environmental protection in technique. It optimizes energy
structure and gradually increases the use of clean energy.
It upgrades old equipment promptly through introduction
of advanced and greener equipment with low consumption
to reduce the consumption of resources and emission of
pollutants. In the final treatment of pollutants, it strictly
complies with relevant requirements of government and
ensures compliance with standards in emission.
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3.1 Emission of Sewage

The Group adopted the following facilities in treating
sewage, which included the reduction of water
consumption by carrying out actions such as technological
innovation of dyeing process, upgrade and technological
improvement of dyeing and finishing facilities as well
as measures such as continuous washing after printing
and digital printing in order to reach the target of the
decreasing emission of sewage.

The Group is studying the layered treatment for waste
water, to reach the target of further lowering the waste
water discharge and recycling for reuse. The Group is
getting closer to zero discharge.

The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment
facilities in its Ningbo and Vietnam production bases
since construction completed to comply with the
emission standards before discharging. It carries
out regular inspections according to the Ecology
Environmental Protection Bureau’s requirements. The
respective environmental protection authorities have
installed online detection devices at the sewage outfalls.

The frequency of inspection on wastewater discharge of

the Group is: realtime monitoring for on-site inspection;
once every three months for sample inspection.
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The Group has discharged 20,381,072 tons of waste
water in 2020, representing an increase of 1.54%
compared to that of last year. The increase in volume
of waste water discharged was due to an increase in
production volume of the Vietnam production site.
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3.2 Emission of Waste Gas

The air pollutant generated from production process of
the Group are mainly smoke and dust, sulphur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide. The Group also conducts online
monitoring on smoke emission to ensure compliance
with the emission standards before discharging. The
respective environmental protection authorities have also
installed online monitoring devices at our smoke outfalls.
At our Ningbo factory area, the frequency of inspection
on smoke and gas emission is: real-time monitoring for
on-site inspection; once every three months for sample
inspection.

In the fabric production site in Vietnam which primarily
used coal, emission was monitored and controlled
for major equipment which emitted waste gas in the
production site such as boilers, setting machines and
drying machines through quarterly waste gas emission
inspections and the online monitoring system installed
at the boiler chimneys. The purpose was to ensure
compliance with the requirements on sulphur dioxide,
nitrogen oxide and other waste gas emission under local
laws.
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The Ningbo factory area fully used natural gas boilers
in 2020, which enhanced the efficiency of the boilers
effectively, and stopped the use of fuel like coal and
biomass etc..

Sulphur dioxide is mainly generated from combustion of
coal. The Group emitted 305.33 tons of sulphur dioxide in
2020, representing an increase of 22.43% as compared
to that in last year (where 249.38 tons of sulphur dioxide
were emitted in 2019 based on the calculation method
used in 2020). The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in coal consumption of the fabric production site
in Vietnam due to the increase in its production volume.

The main sources of nitrogen oxide emissions are boiler
combustion, setting machines and drying machines.
215.68 tons of nitrogen oxide were emitted in 2020,
representing an increase of 19.27% as compared to
that in 2019 (where 180.82 tons of sulphur dioxide were
emitted in 2019 based on the calculation method used in
2020). The increase was mainly originated from the fabric
production site in Vietham as the increase in production
capacity of the said area resulted in more use of boiler
combustion, setting machines and drying machines.
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The main sources of smoke and dust emissions are
combustion of coal and biomass boilers. The Group
emitted 53.12 tons of smoke and dust in 2020,
representing a decrease of 15.75% as compared to that
in 2019. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
fabric production site in Ningbo as the use of biomass
and coal was completely eliminated and replaced by
cleaner natural gas fuel in the site in 2020.
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Note: Sulphur dioxide is mainly generated from combustion of coal. At present, our production sites in Vietnam are
still using coal. Meanwhile, our emission of sulphur dioxide increased as the volume of coal combustion in the
Vietnam production site increased as a result of an increase in production capacity. In addition, since the sulphur
dioxide emissions in 2019 were annual data calculated by multiplying the data obtained from the monitoring
conducted once every quarter by the number of operating days, whereas that in 2020 was calculated based on
real-time monitoring of data, a new calculation method was adopted this year.
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The increase in nitrogen oxides discharged was mainly originated from the fabric production site in Vietnam as
the increase in production capacity of the said area resulted in more use of boiler combustion, setting machines
and drying machines. Since the nitrogen oxide emissions in 2019 were annual data calculated by multiplying the
data obtained from the monitoring conducted once every quarter by the number of operating days, whereas that
in 2020 was calculated based on real-time monitoring of data, a new calculation method was adopted this year.
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3.3 Emission of Solid Waste

The statistics for 2020 included hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes emissions of the whole Group. In
2020, the emission of hazardous wastes of the Group
was 1,441 tons in aggregate, representing an increase
of approximately 54.77% as compared to that of last
year and the major emissions are wasted oil, wasted
fluorescent light and wasted ink as well as empty plastic
drums for storing chemicals. Compared the increasing
reason, it is mainly due to empty plastic drums for storing
chemicals in Ningbo were classified as the hazardous
wastes since 2020.

In addition, the Group has also set up storage areas for
non-hazardous wastes, which were eventually passed
to qualified organisations for eligible processing. The
total amount of non-hazardous wastes discharged was
145,840 tons in 2020, which increased by approximately
1.36 times as compared with same period last year,
mainly due to including cinder and sludge in the
calculation for the year.

The hazard wastes, such as chemical packaging material
in Vietnam and Cambodia were handled by the factories,
but some portions of chemical packaging materials in
Ningbo district were handled by the suppliers and some
portions were handled by the factory.
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The Group conducts a classification and treatment
process for all solid waste, part of which will be recycled
and reused to minimize its pollution to the environment.
QOur Group classifies all non-hazardous solid waste
(except for cinder and sludge) into four categories in the
below table according to the relevant Regulations for
Waste Classification and Management in the production
sites and the relevant offices in China, Vietham and
Cambodia. The decrease in the treatment volume of non-
hazardous solid waste (except for cinder and sludge)
and the increase in the treatment volume of the non-
hazardous waste that cannot be reused or recycled
were due to the Group strengthening the classification
of recyclable garbage. The more detailed classification
would increase the recycled proportion of recyclable
waste. Please refer to the following table for the specific
classification and weight.

iy ki3 ZEC%E
5 Efl BMRE BB EE(MR) RE
Weight in Weight in
Category Examples Source of waste 2019 (tons) 2020 (tons) Handling
UERARARRZARAEER BA2 BAH BAT B4A A RERERBR 15,149.80 1448222  EBARE=HEAEN
Reusable or recyclable Waste paper boxes, waste Knitting, dyeing and garment Sold to third party(ies) for
paperboards and papers paper cones, waste paper cores,  making process recycling
waste papers
UEFRNAERZEEY G RER HE RERRKER 37,191.45 3212404  EXEFEN
Reusable or recyclable waste fabric Waste fabric, pied hair Knitting, dyeing and garment Recycled by seller(s)
making process
BRESRRZ ek BRET BHE - FAEREKER 1,158.99 2,007.36 BREZHEMNEN
Reused or recycled Plastic wire cores, plastic bags Knitting, dyeing and garment Sold to third party(ies) for
non-hazardous waste making process recycling
WEBNARENZ EEREY HEMR BERMAZE 8,253.30 1075645  HE EEUREEZH
Non-hazardous waste that cannot be ~ Household garbage Canteen and office BiHAROER
reused or recycled Disposal of household
garbage and food waste
were contracted to third
party(ies)
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In 2020, packaging materials of the Group’s garment
totalled approximately 30,773 tons, representing an
increase of approximately 1.78% as compared to that
of last year, which was attributable to the increase in
packaging materials due to the growth in production
volume. Meanwhile, it caused the increase in the solid
waste such as plastic bag.

Please refer to the following table for the intensity of
discharged volume of waste water, sulphur dioxide,
nitrogen oxides, smoke and dust, hazardous waste

and non-hazardous waste in 2019 and 2020:

BREMIFCRENHFRENEE

Dﬁ = E-Fﬁ
= _j—LE f— 7 —_= E
2019 2020
BEKBEMENRE (T, T4 46,600 46,320
The intensity of discharged volume of waste water (kg/k pieces)
—EEMEEMENRE (T, T4) 0.58 0.69

The intensity of discharged volume of sulphur dioxide

(kg/k pieces)
AA/CYHMENRE (FT& /T4 0.42 0.49
The intensity of discharged volume of nitrogen oxides

(kg/k pieces)
EEHRENRE (T T4 0.15 0.12
The intensity of discharged volume of smoke and dust

(kg/k pieces)
BIREEYHEMENRE (FT& /T4 2.16 3.27
The intensity of discharged volume of hazardous waste

(kg/k pieces)
FEREBEREEEY) CRIEEFISR) R ENRE (5, T14) 143.35 135.14
The intensity of discharged volume of

non-hazardous solid waste (except for cinder and sludge)

(kg/k pieces)

M REZAERBHINERSGE
HEBRENBEES 2 LR

Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total discharged
volume and total production of knitwear each year.
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Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

The Group believes that the ability in enhancing efficiency and
continuing to invest in environmental protection will become the
major entry barrier and competitive advantage of the industry in
the future. As a result, the Group will make every effort to further
improve the utilization efficiency of water and other resources
so as to alleviate the adverse impact of production activities on
the surrounding environment, we will promote clean production
throughout the entire production process and we will ensure
that the end consumer products are environmental friendly.

The Group’s total electricity consumption in 2020 was
676,640,747 kWh, of which 673,841,471 kWh was electricity
purchased through power plants with 343,942 tons of
corresponding carbon dioxide emitted, and the remaining
2,799,267 kWh was electricity generated by the rooftop
solar equipment for internal use, reducing 1,752 tons of
corresponding carbon dioxide emissions. The electricity of
the Group used for treating waste water was approximately
19,544,867 kWh for the year, with 9,796 tons of carbon
dioxide emitted. Moreover, the electricity consumption of the
Group for reclaimed water and clean water in the current
year was approximately 1,195,250 kWh and 1,524,833 kWh,
respectively, which equals to 2,720,083 kWh in aggregate, with
1,300 tons of carbon dioxide emitted.
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4.2

iR EtE
rEBAAFEMBNEARE
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BEKIEIRF A=

Wastewater

recycling rate
~ 30%

2l

Before

4

H1ERHK + SiEE
Anoxic/Oxic
system + Fenton

4.1

Increase in green vegetation

The Group planted 37,698 trees in the current year,
covering lawns of 26,500 m? and Radix Ophiopogonis of
15,816 m2. The increase in trees and lawns was mainly
attributable to the new fabric factory in Vietnam, whereas
Radix Ophiopogonis was mainly attributable to the Ningbo
production site. In 2020, the Group upheld traditional
virtues and demonstrated the spirit of teamwork through
tree planting activities. At the same time, we delivered
positive green energy and procured more people to
participate in activities related to promotion of green ideas,
environmental protection and nature conservation, with an
aim to make proper contributions to the Company’s green
development.

4.2 Planned installation of recycling systems in Ningbo

and Vietnam

B ERER
Reverse Osmosis

BiE— membrane technique
BERERIERE
Modeling- o MR2021FFEAFHEEREE

To optimize current
treatment process

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

FHEREEITREEELZE &
IR B E 1T RSB R i 5T
E20255 E 535% F40%7KBIR
FAE-

Fenton and Modeling set

in 2021, Reverse Osmosis
technique assessment in
Ningbo factory after Reverse
Osmosis in operation of
Vietnam factory, and water
recycling at 35%-40% by 2025.
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2021F8RB R AL
Wastewater Sand filter
EE 7K HhiB i 2%
4.3 EEEAHFEE s EIF
BERIUMRERMEERRR
ERSLEE RIS BR ¢
# |%BE Programs FI3 Benefitfor | 2017
’ HORRBENR HikEsE
110 dyeing machine upgrade Water/Energy
) WNEBRAHLREN ks
40 dyeing machine upgrade for highelastic fabric Water/Energy
, 0 BHMMERE HikEE
50 dyeing machine investment Water/Energy
,  OREER Hk e
Yarn-dyeing machine upgrade Water/Energy
& 4
5 iﬁi:ﬂiﬁhme upgrade & workshop B
) Water/Energy
reconstruction
6 ERHER k3
Setting machine upgrade Energy
. AR REBERT £k
Garment Washing workshop retrofit Water/Energy
8 RRRAKEY Bk
Condensed / Cooling water recycling Water/Energy
9 ENEREECIRMARE HkEisE
Replace Biomass boiler to nature gas boiler Water/Energy

R2020F E2025F RS E KK &
BY K 1B IR F) A3 2 A 1 i R R B 2
LIKBEIB R

MARZBEERM RRE2BR
BRI S ICEG R B
KEIRENZ15%E20% » &7

The water recycling rate in Ningbo factory was improved
and a water recycling system was installed in Vietham
factory during 2020-2025.

With Reverse Osmosis membrane technique, Reverse
Osmosis concentrated water diluted and discharged by
mixing with discharge water, and wastewater recycling
rate is around 15%-20%, which put in use in August

2021.
Security Reverse Osmosis Clean
filter KkBiE water
REBES Ik

4.3 The table of Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Program
Set out below is our energy consumption efficiency
targets, and the initiatives we have adopted to achieve
those targets:

2018 [ 2019 2020 2021 | 2022 | 2023 PLREISELERS

#i7k/Ei5E30%

Reduce water/energy consumption by
30%

#k/EiAE%

Reduce water/energy consumption by
5%

Ek/ERRES0%

Reduce water/energy consumption by
30%

RETRNE Sk

Enhance sampling efficiency, energy
efficiency and water conservation
Reduce energy consumption and
improve efficiency

BER RENE

Reduce energy consumption and
improve efficiency

#ik40%

Reduce water consumption by 40%
BEREEN FRESR (B

Carry out during equipment upgrade
(water conservation)

RBABENE )R 1O BRH
i

Enhance boiler efficiency, reduce solid
waste and waste gas emissions

£=1
Phase Il
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o frRrors  doew o0 oo | | | | | [

tﬁ \ﬁ, ,i,‘"”
B1niRz EN&ﬁE?Jl(/%) ‘ . B830%
10 Increase the capacity on waste heat recovering )
(e Energy Reduce energy consumption by 30%
" ERZRAGHE i3 £325%
Compressed air system upgrade Energy Reduce energy consumption by 25%
1 BAEEENR il BERGER ANER
Wastewater pipe re-laying Water Carry out during equipment upgrade
. . o ERR HELE
KRBT Bk JLRRAR AR
13 Water oioe re-avin Water Avoid evaporating, emitting, dripping or
pip ying leaking, and for easier maintenance
4448
BAEEAERENA _— S
. Wk 13
1 m:::grade ISR 2L Water/EWN Enhance the ability to reuse water by
20%, reduce sludge discharge
" MERRERE (BEEY) patzd £8 SEHH0 BEVOCHK
New tail gas treatment (high temperature setting) EVN. Phase I Green emissions, reduce VOC emission
T ) Ef;.—;- o
16 BOHAKIPHERINR Ak éﬁeglge/)i\u?: :;};ifafi sewage
imewater PH Adjustment in WWT process EN. o 9
treatment performance
B HELCRENE
17 EHBRAAR i Reduce energy and water
Aeration system upgrade in A/O process EN. consumption, and enhance A/O
process performance
1 ZAEARA gk ik
Steam Valve insulation Water Reduce energy consumption
1 Cadira K& R RHER gk A%
Cadira saving water active dyestuff promotion Water Reduce water consumption
2 TEEER IR kA #i7k60%
continuous wash-off machine for printing Water/Energy Reduce water consumption by 60%
. . P ~1
BYERENER Bk S ‘
20 Reduce electricity consumption by
High efficiency motor replacement gradually Water 510
~ 0
» i GIEEE kA HAES15%
automatic switch for drain valve Water/Energy Reduce steam consumption by 15%
. Y
RSB i RORAAZLRR
23 : - . Reduce nitrogen oxide emission of
NOX neutralized by ammonia in natural gas boilers EVN. bollers
o1 ERARR-A A pelin b
renewable energy in Ningbo-wind power Carbon Reduce carbon emission
p ABE i i
Solar Power Carbon Reduce carbon emission

Completed In progress Planned
SEAY ETH BE
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5.

Major energy saving and emission reduction projects
5.1 Optimization of Energy Structure

In the long term, the Group was committed to adjusting
the energy structure, developing new energy, and
transforming from traditional energy to clear energy,
striving to do energy saving and emission reduction job.

During the year, the Group entered into a framework
cooperation agreement for a distributed photovoltaic
project with an energy service company under State Grid
Corporation of China in Ningbo. A photovoltaic power
station was built on the buildings’ rooftops of the Group’s
base in Ningbo and the green electricity generated by
the photovoltaic project was to be used directly by the
Group.

Also, the Group actively promoted the development and
construction of a wind power project in Ningbo region
and participated in green electricity deals promoted by
the government.

The Group completed the “coal phase-out” project for
the garment factories in the production sites in China
and Cambodia by the end of 2019, and the Group
pushed forward and implemented the coal-to-electricity
transformation project in the garment factory in the
Vietnam region in 2020, whereby all garment factories
have bid farewell to the era of coal.
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PV panels in the Ningbo factory area
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5.1.1Rooftop solar power

In 2020, the rooftop solar energy generated by the
Group for internal use reached 2,799,276 kWh.

As at the end of 2020, the pavement area of the
rooftop solar equipment of the Group reached
32,500 m?, and 2,200 kW of new installed capacity
was planned, of which 1,700 kW was in the Ningbo
production site and 500 kW was in the Vietnam
production site. The construction is expected to be
completed in the first quarter of 2021.

HME R E AR A% BIR
PV panels in the Vietnam factory area

At the same time, the Group has planned to
conduct more feasibility analyses on the new
factory in Cambodia and the production sites in
other regions. It is expected that there will be more
rooftop solar equipment, resulting in an increase
in the proportion of electricity generated from new
energy and a decrease in carbon dioxide emissions.
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Cambodia

Feasibility study

5.1.2EEEEH

REBPR _E-_SFHEEM
—XEAERBELBETSE
15> ZIEH — BB &1R2014
FHEZRE FFHEES
Z%120,000,000 T B 45/
B AEE FER — S BRFER
B D EAT75,000 G FE —
BA=HRIE B Er 81520254
AIERERER HER AR
—HEE - BBAKREGE
rEEBZEZRAEEEMA
Hir R RIRIE S IIEIZ o

i

Rooftop solar development

B
BE1,700F R4
Ningbo

Capacity 1,700 kW

AES00TFE4S

Vietham

Capacity 500kW

5.1.2Wind power project

In 2020, the Group conducted cooperation with
a local wind energy development company. The
first phase of the project was connected to the
grid for power generation in 2014, with an average
annual output of 120,000,000 kWh and a reduction
in the corresponding carbon dioxide emissions
of 75,000 tons per year. The second and third
phases of the project are planned to be developed
and constructed around 2025, the scale of which
will be larger than that of the first phase. Through
this cooperation, the Group was entitled to the
environmental contribution index in terms of green
energy.
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5.1.37 7“‘@ B G o 5.1.3 Pilot green electricity deal
TG+ AAREEE In December 2020, the Group, as the user,
SARA Z2HEWTER TN participated in and completed the pilot work of the
TEEEHERZIAMT first “deal of green electricity” in Zhejiang Province,
(R ER =/ DA ==/ -F ] which was the first time that clean energy was
A HAOE B R BETR consumed through a market-oriented mechanism in

Zhejiang Province.

5.1.4 IR B NEN B ZE T H LS 5.1.4 From coal-fired boilers to electrical steam
generators
B rE B9 BR TR TR ESCHE (68 B R The garment factory in Vietnam has abolished the
JE £ JE > ek A Ea;i/—:uﬁﬁéi use of coal-fired boilers and used electrical steam
220 LU 2 AERAMR T - generators instead. Relevant examples are as
follows:
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S/N Steam consumption
FiE ERHE

replacement method

BRA

before
Z i

&
after

2k

application
FEF

1 Ironing in cutting & sewing line
HE RGN Z

2 Gament washing facility
PREE R

3 Canteen - disinfection cabinet
BEHEME

4 Canteen - cooking boiler
BRE—ARBE

5 Canteen - tableware washing
BRE-BARBRL

6 Fabric drying
k5

7 Drying room
W=

steam from coal fired boiler
R B RIE IR IEAES
steam from coal fired boiler

kB RIE R IE AV K0S
steam from coal fired boiler
kB MRIERIE YOS
steam from coal fired boiler
kB MRIERIE YOS
steam from coal fired boiler
kB MRIERIE YOS
steam from coal fired boiler
kB MRIERIE S
steam from coal fired boiler

REMIEBIENES

electrical steam generator
BARAZLESR
move washing facility

to T2 factory
RERRBEET2HE
electrical stream generator
BRARLER
electrical stream generator
BARARLESR
laundry machine
iRl |
electrical stream generator
BaoRELs
electrical heater
B

all cutting & sewing lines
PRE# B R B BLR
all washing facility

FrERiRR A

all canteen (including located
in flyknit canteen)

PIEEE (BHE R flyknitd
BE)

all fabric drying machines
Fr B ke i
all drying rooms

FrE ME=E
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5.2

5.3

5.4
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Digital Print

Through digital print, more accurate and vivid colors
can be achieved and consumption of film and water
in traditional printing is eliminated. The consumption
of power and resources can be effectively reduced.
Therefore, a T-shirt with beautifully-designed printing can
also be an environmental-friendly product.

Ozone Wash

G2 Ozone Wash means ozone washing. Ozone is a
strong oxidant which discolour the clothes naturally
and forms vintage style by washing the clothes with
ozone composing of G2. Generally this effect needs
to be completed by chemical agents, however, G2
production replaces the use of chemicals and reduces
water consumption, which minimizes the pressure on
environment caused by this type of products.

Intelligent hanging system

The Group has always upheld lean manufacture. The
“intelligent hanging system” is controlled by computers
and is a transmission and logistic tool for allocating
production tasks to operators at each workstation. The
system lowers the heavy workload of operating staff
and reduces the transmission time of each working
process, which increases the production efficiency by
approximately 10%.
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5.5 REERME 5.5 Upgrade and Transform of Equipment
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From 2016 to 2020, the Group had introduced and
upgraded 600 low-bath ratio dyeing tanks in the fabric
workshops in Ningbo and Vietnam, and the water
consumption decreased by 35% in five years, with a total
investment of approximately USD168 million. In addition,
a piece of continuous wash-off equipment was introduced
for the fabric printing and washing process, which saved
both energy and water by more than 50% as compared
to traditional equipment.

During the year, for its boiler exhaust gas project, the
Group purchased nine sets of denitrification devices
and adopted the SCR flue gas denitrification process
to significantly reduce the nitrogen oxide emissions and
maintain nitrogen oxide emissions below 20mg/m3, with
a total investment of approximately RMB7 million. In
addition, for its setting machine exhaust gas project, the
Group introduced three sets of setting machine exhaust
gas treatment equipment that adopt U.S. technology.
Such equipment, with a total investment of approximately
RMB4.95 million, use fiber bed filtration technology and
enable discharge of tail gas at a high altitude, with a
collection efficiency rate of 95%, a particulate treatment
efficiency rate of 90% and an oil fume treatment efficiency
rate of 80%. Visible smoke is therefore eliminated.
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5.6 Cooperate with Chinese Academy of Sciences in the

research and development

The Group is committed to creating economic benefits
while it should undertakes its social responsibility in
the governance of environmental protection. Thus,
it cooperated with the Ningbo Urban Environment
Observation and Research Station of Chinese Academy
of Sciences in technology development for the treatment
of exhaust gas and recycling of heat from dyeing and
finishing processes in the textile industry. The research
and development initiative focused on the treatment
technology and process for exhaust gas treatment and
recycling of residual heat, which is expected to solve
difficulties in treating exhaust gas from the production
process in the dyeing industry. This will realizes enterprise
to govern environmental issues while achieving the aims
of saving energy and reducing emission.

The Group appointed an academician of Chinese
Academy of Engineering, as the consultant of the Group
in environmental protection. He provides consultation
services on environmental assessment policy, professional
environmental protection technology and compliance
with environmental laws to the Group. He also makes
reasonable plans and arrangements for emission of
pollution under operation and carries out professional
evaluation, optimisation and planning for previous
projects.
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5.7 Green Certification
The process of the garment factory in Vietnam, from
design and construction to completion, fulfils the
standard of LEED GREEN GOAL.

Set out below is the LEED Certificate issued to the
Group’s garment factory in Vietnam:

In respect of our Marvel Garment manufacturing factory
under development in Cambodia, energy conservation
and emission reduction are our prior considerations
for the design of the production site and selection of
machinery. The relevant facility project also awarded the
green certification by HSBC.
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5.8 Green factory

In 2020, Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, was awarded the title of “National Green
Factory”. “Green Factory” evaluation is a national
selection activity organized by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC with an aim to
implement “Industrial Green Development Plan” (2016-
2020) (I #4x®BEE RS (2016-20204F))and “Green
Manufacturing and Engineering Implementation Guide
(2016-2020)" (A BERETREEMIER (2016-2020
£))), thereby accelerating the establishment of a green
manufacturing system which leads the high-quality
development of the industry, and create an advanced
model of green manufacturing enterprises.

The Group has always adhered to the concept of green
development. Being equipped with corresponding
environmental protection and safety facilities, the Group
effectively managed energy consumption, and practiced
the concept of “lucid waters and lush mountains are
invaluable assets” in a practical sense. Being awarded
the title of “National Green Factory” was the result of
the Company earnestly fulfilling social responsibilities,
always adhering to the concept of green development
and insisting on sustainable development over the years.
The Group will continue to ramp up its investment in
green environmental protection and give full play to
its exemplary role so as to assist the country in green
manufacturing and high-quality industrial development.
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5.9 The Honour of Energy Conservation and emission

reduction

To boost the production capacity of the Group and
minimize the environmental impact of the production
process effectively, the Group has been committed
to environmental protection, energy conservation and
emission reduction in production. During the period
between 2009 and the year, the Group was awarded
“Advanced Enterprise in Energy Saving and Emission
Reduction in 2009”, “2011 Advanced Unit in Pollution
and Emission Reduction in Ningbo”, “2012 Circular
Economy Demonstration Industrial Enterprise in Ningbo”,
“2013 Advanced Enterprise in Water Saving in Ningbo”,
“Advanced Unit in Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo”,
“Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission Reduction in
the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo”, “Circular Economy
Demonstration Industrial Enterprise in Ningbo”, “2014
Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang Province”,
“2017 Zhejiang Province Green Enterprise” and “2018
Water-saving Enterprise in Ningbo” in the area of energy
conservation and emission reduction. The awards of the
Group in energy conservation and emission reduction are
as below:
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ERmI+— RIS REH TS EE N 2011 B RIS R R HF TR B
Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission Reduction in the 2011 Advanced Unit in Pollution and
11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo Emission Reduction in Ningbo
BRI+ — R AL ESEE N 012F B RN TERBIRKAERBEE
Advanced Unit in Energy Conservation and Consumption 2012 Circular Economy Demonstration
Reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo Industrial Enterprise in Ningbo
R # A1 T 2 ENRE R EF2012 2013F BRI EIKSTERZE
2012 Energy Conservation and 2013 Advanced Enterprise in
Emission Reduction in Knitting Industry in China Water Saving in Ningbo

2019 E 2 iR1 %%ﬂﬁ%&m
2014F AT AR B (b2 (BB i) AIREEREEEER2HEE
2014 Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang Province Marvel Garment was awarded Sustalnable Financing
Programme — Certificate of Participation by HSBC in 2019

BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
1.

Employees’ Basic Information

1.1 The analysis of employees’ structure
As at 31 December 2020, there were about 89,100
employees working in the Group. All of them are full-time
employees, and the majority are young and middle-aged
employees. The tables below show the employee details
by age distribution, education level, job locations and
gender ratio.

EHEE4AH
A¥ BALE
Percentages
of total
HERGES S By Age Band Numbers employees
207 R AR 20 and below 34,743 38.99%
21E405% 21 to 40 47,672 53.50%
41E505% 41 to 50 3,598 4.04%
51 R E 51 and above 3,087 3.47%
4EET Total 89,100 100.00%
BEFH 7

Employees Age Distribution
HEE4H
A Bt
Percentages
of total
14 B Gender Numbers employees
5 Male 25,745 28.89%
oy Female 63,355 71.11%
Wz Total 89,100 100.00%

PR EE =R

Gender Ratio
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HESHEH
A BoLE
Percentages
of total
¥BERE 52 By Country Numbers employees
R A B Mainland China 45,200 50.73%
[2AE] Vietnam 28,740 32.26%
SRIHEE Cambodia 15,160 17.01%
wast Total 89,100 100.00%
EERME DM
Employees by Job Locations
HESHEH
A¥ B
Percentages
of total
BEBEE S By Education Numbers employees
M3EaE Postgraduate 42 0.05%
¥ YN Undergraduate and college 4,666 5.04%
hEEH Technical secondary school and high school 19,617 22.01%
MR Middle school and below 64,775 72.70%
4Bt Total 89,100 100.00%
BEEHBKF
Employees Education Level
EEEEE
ANE B
Percentages
of total
RESREESY By Type of Position Numbers employees
XGHRT Short-term position 4,396 4.93%
= Contract position 64,953 72.90%
EHT Permanent position 19,751 22.17%
4Bt Total 89,100 100.00%
BEIT{EELE
Types of Employees’ Position
MEE: R TIERAOBERIONER Note: Short-term position means the employees who have signed the

—EMEIT RIATEREE
EAHNHRNEI -5 IRE
ERBEAFISGAZER
BT

BRI B PR S [ 32 B2 B BR /A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

contract with a term of less than one year. Permanent position
means the employees who have no fixed term contract. Contract
position means the formal employees who have signed the
official employment contract.
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The analysis of employee turnover rate

By the end of December 2020, there were 89,100
employees in total. According to the statistics, the
Group’s monthly average employee turnover rate in 2020
was approximately 3.04%, representing a decrease of

122 E R (ZZ—NF !
4.26%)  c _BE_BFEZRE—F
MTEINREEA0.81%°
AR E_E -5 BUHNRE
EAK1.03% MUMERREE
#2#2.31%°

TREFZFRDH R T
tLBIBIS 2 RE T REE o

1.22 percentage points when compared with 2019 (2019:
4.26%). The turnover rate of employees who have been
employed for below one year was approximately 0.81%
in 2020. Meanwhile, the turnover rate of male employees
was approximately 1.03% while that of female employees
was approximately 2.31% in 2020.

The tables below show the average turnover rate of
employees by age distribution and job locations.

=B
MK E
Average
turnover
rate of
BEREHED S By Age Band employees
205 R AR 20 and below 0.50%
215% 240 21-40 2.26%
4155 E505% 41-50 0.26%
51 &I E 51 and above 0.06%
BEEFEERDH
Age Distribution of Employees
BESA
TIREE
Average
turnover
rate of
employees
BEZRE S By Country per month
el N Mainland China 3.21%
[ed=) Vietnam 2.38%
RS Cambodia 3.56%
BEH#HME DM

Employees by Job Locations
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The benefits of the employees
The Group has successfully maintained a relatively low staff
turnover rate, thanks to the following employees’ benefits:

2.1 Coaches were chartered during Chinese New Year

holiday

During the Spring Festival in 2020, the Group invested
more than RMB20 million to arrange special round-
trip shuttle buses for employees in 14 provinces,
including Anhui, Sichuan, Chongging, Gansu, Shanxi
and Shandong. Our 202 buses safely took about 9,700
employees home during the Spring Festival. After the
holiday, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
arranged over 700 buses to safely bring more than
17,000 non-local employees back to Ningbo, and
guaranteed food and other anti-epidemic supplies along
the way, which effectively ensured the resumption of work
and production.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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2.3

The Central Kitchen

The Group constructed the largest central kitchen in
Huadong region, which undertook eighteen canteens
in Ningbo factory area and supplied delicious food like
chinese meal, western meal and dim sum to nearly
40,000 employees for the purpose of providing safer,
cleaner and more delicious food to employees to raise up
their satisfaction rate and reduce turnover rate. Free lunch
is provided to staff in Vietham and Cambodia.

The education of employees’ children

The Company places great importance to educational
causes and places great emphasises on team building
of staff and education for their children. In May 2011, the
inauguration ceremony of the Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting
Co., Ltd. Education Development Fund was held at the
administration centre in Beilun region. In respect of schooling
for the children of its staff, the Company liaises with the staff
union each year to resolve practical difficulties in schooling
for children of management staff as far as possible.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

103



104

IRIG - HHERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

24 ESEEFRE

AEBRNTEH BERRIBEES
ITREZBEBRE UEBSE
ANEEREBARRRZ KRFFRE
l%\o

HMes

201958288 B EE B E 5
ENZEBEETRBEFA RiMe
RIER LR -EELRFTEH>
BilEm TE2E MEREE
INEE RiMeREETHAMBRMNE
TRERENEZELFIRE ; £
RETHEIS RIESETLE ;B
DERNERN A FEERE-

OV FEFEF =

ERSEERELLE BNER
MIIMNERMELETELRE-
RNBR2011FE10B ABARIL T L
BEEAE— TOBBEEE] o INES
FIHEABTLOEHES TF
ERRT BEBRENSHELT
& UIBRFEZERS  RHEBRE
BURMAZRBEES BB IR
DIBRIE  ARRRBR T FEULVIE ©

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

2.4 The channel of employees’ communication

We have established various channels to communicate
with the Group’s staff in China, Vietham and Cambodia,
and have dedicated staff to handle their relevant
suggestion, complaints and other information directly.

Shenzhou e-Home

On 28 May 2019, “Shenzhou e-Home”, a multi-channel
staff service platform developed by Shenzhou Group on
its own was officially launched. With functions including
anonymous complaints and enquiries, information
release, online learning and questionnaires, Shenzhou
e-Home aims to provide all Shenzhou employees with
the best living and working environments, address their
concerns and listen to them, and facilitate the sustainable
development of Shenzhou International.

Mental Health Information Centre

As a labor intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group places
exceptional emphasis on and pays special attention to the
physical and mental wellbeing of its staff. The Company
established a mental health information centre, “Joyful
Community”, in October 2011. With specialists serving as
counsellors, “Joyful Community” is equipped with music
facilities for relaxation and punching facilities for venting
emotions. Through handling cases received, organising
group activities and holding seminars, the centre resolves
psychological distress and relieves emotional pressure of
staff, giving them a peace of mind.
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2.5

2.6

Salary and benefits

The Group paid competitive salary to the employees,
employees received an average salary raise of
approximately 10% to 13% each year for the past ten
years. The Group sets up Shenzhou medical room at
Ningbo factory area to conduct annual and regular body
checks for staff, two free body checks are provided to the
staff in Vietham factory area each year.

The working environment

Air conditioning facilities are being installed in workshops
in China, Vietham and Cambodia. Baby breastfeeding
facilities are provided to the female employees in each
factory area. We respect the local culture and living habit
of our staff of each region, for example, we have provided
over 3,000 chairs in Vietnam factory for our Vietnam staff
to take a nap after lunch and the dormitory in the Vietnam
production sites has installed sports equipment for the
staff to use for free.

The Group continued to increase its care for employees.
Through optimisation of canteen services and increase in
meal allowances, the Group further improved the dining

conditions of employees.

The below pictures show the staff canteen:
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Adhering to the human-oriented management approach,
the Group specially improved the accommodation
environment of employees in order to allow them to have
a warmer home-like living experience. The staff dormitory
reconstructed by Shenzhou Group in 2020 has already put
into use. The new dormitory features triple rooms, each of
which has an individual bathroom equipped with a water
heater, large floor-to-ceiling wardrobes and sufficient storage
space, offering employees with apartment-style residences.

In 2020, the Group built 4 staff dormitories in production
sites in the PRC that provide 1,371 rooms and 4,032
beds, with a construction area of 67,497 m?. Two staff
dormitories that are currently under construction will
provide 720 rooms and 1,440 beds, with a construction
area of 34,550 m?. Meanwhile, the Group has built 3 staff
dormitories in production sites in Vietnam that provide
316 rooms and 440 beds, with a construction area of
18,785 m?. Furthermore, the Group has built 2 expert
buildings in the production sites in Cambodia that provide
600 rooms and 600 beds, with a construction area of
43,583 m?. At the same time, the first phase of staff
dormitory in the production sites in Cambodia has also
been built. Such dormitory provides 400 rooms and 2,000
beds, with a construction area of 25,648 m?2. Currently,
12 staff dormitories are being built, which will provide
1,500 rooms and 7,500 beds, with a construction area of
88,736 m2.

The rooms and relevant facilities of the new staff
dormitories are as follows:
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2.7 X1EZ& 2.7 Cultural activity
RAFEAEEBHRT —LET The Group organized some staff benefit cultural and
B XAEMEE B ES » DUE A sports activities during the year to increase the sense of
ETHABKEER AW &= belonging among the staff towards the Company, such as
STHELE HAERRLE F the most beautiful staff election, organizing the Chinese
BREFELTH REET -KEMNE New Year Gala, Year-end luncheon activity, the most
BgEto beautiful staff, ball games and sports gala, etc.
UTEBTEMNIEMESME The below pictures show some of the staff benefit cultural
FP—LE L and sports activities:
BESHETE TS Excellent group leaders election:
AAAERRED Organize the Chinese New Year Gala:
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ETHR=: Employee birthday party:
BETHHES: Social gathering for employees:
HAES) ! Other activities:
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The working condition

During the reporting period, the Company has complied
with all relevant employment laws and regulations relating
to compensation and dismissal,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare that have a

recruitment and promotion,

significant impact on the Company.
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The working time

The Group complies with national labor laws and
regulations and arranges the dayoff and working
timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements.

Due to the needs of continual production and operation,
approved by the labor department, the Group implements
standard working hour system, comprehensive working
hour system and flexible working hour system according
to the job nature of employee.

In addition, the working hour is stipulated by respective
department according to the season, requirement of
production and operation and characteristic of the job.

The working hour of the employees of the Group generally
starts at 8 a.m. and finishes at 5 p.m. and the normal
working hour is generally less than 8 hours. If overtime
work is needed, the daily overtime will be less than 3
hours and the monthly overtime will be less than 36
hours.

Time for rest

Time for rest of the Group’s employees is generally from
11:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. There is also time for lunch and
midday rest for employees. The employees have at least
one day off per week.

The employees of the Group are also entitled to the
national statutory holidays, annual leave, marriage leave,
funeral leave, casual leave and sick leave etc..

Procedures for application of leave

The employees of the Group must go through the
formalities when they apply for leave and sign the
application form. In the meantime, employees should
state the nature of leave, holiday, time, reason and
handover matters and provide relevant valid certification.
After the approval of leaders, it will be reported to the
human resources office of the department for registration
and filing.



IRIG - HERERHRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

34 FTIEE
RIBEZE=F - AEEHEET
RE > BRARENFIMRIES] Tk
B & N EE AR — BT o 00 TERAR
B EABETEERTE TR
FTAEEREI R TBEREIER
BETEERE)  UHERKRE
T RAET AR58i8% T o b
RERIUEERBRESE IR

3.4.1 2185 B)RET
BABMI R RE LB
BEHNE TR o B
REBETHE R RIS
MEEEE EABRRE B
T B ECEIRATIET
MR ENBEREF T
BEPIEBERNT LAEER
oMU THEmRBAERY
AERREETFEUMERE
T:

4 (8 5 AR B 18 BB R 1t
BREEX URERE
AR o

RBEEE S BB F
MBERSDERXHRRA
HERELZER HEE
ARNBERFHEILEKRARE
BEE QI HBRES 75
REHEMSARE-

3.4 Labor Standards

In 2003, in order to completely eradicate child
labor, underage workers and forced labor, the Group
formulated some requirements like the “Strict Prohibition
of Engaging Child Labour Administrative Provisions”,
“Underage Worker Administrative Provisions” and “Strict
Prohibition of Forced Labour Administrative Provisions”,
such requirements were published as guidelines and
distributed to human resources department at different
locations for uniform implementation. Such policies have
been consistently applied to our factories in Vietnam and
Cambodia.

3.4.1 Strict forbiddance of forced labor and child labor
Since the incorporation of the Company, there
has not been a single case of forced labor or child
labor. For the purpose of compliance with the
relevant laws of China, Vietham and Cambodia,
Shenzhou has laid out comprehensive provisions
and accountability procedures in respect of the
recruitment, labor use and dismissal. The above
administrative provisions are implemented strictly in
all departments. The following measures reveal how
the Group eradicates child labor effectively during
the recruitment process:

New employee must provide his/her identity
document when commencing employment, so as to
verify his/her actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will
compare very carefully the photograph in the identity
document and the genuine face. If there is much
difference, or the job applicant looks significantly
younger, then the actual age shall be verified by
identification system or otherwise.
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3.4.2 Zero discrimination

The Group have established anti-discrimination
policy and comply with relevant legal requirements.
There has been no discrimination in Shenzhou
against race, region, gender, nationality, age,
pregnancy or disability in respect of employee
recruitment, training, salary and promotion.

3.4.3 The protection of female employees

Female employees assume a wide variety of posts
on different levels in the Group. In strict compliance
with relevant local laws and regulations, such as
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests”,
“Labour Protection of Female Employees” and
“Healthcare Work of Female Employees”, the
Group protects the rights of female employees from
the sources. The Group is concerned about the
problems encountered by female employees in their
work and life and constantly improves the working
environment and condition for female employees.
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The Group cared about the health of female
employees, worked hard towards disease
prevention and improved the physical fitness of
female employees. During the year, physicians from
district-level TCM hospitals visited the Company
and conducted a free consultation activity, which
demonstrated our care about the physical health
of female employees. The physicians from district-
level TCM hospitals provided free consultation
and free physical examinations for everyone
answered in detail the questions raised by our
employees regarding prevention and treatment
of various diseases, and reminded them to have
good hygiene practices, maintain a healthy lifestyle
and develop the habit of undertaking regular
physical examinations in order to enable early
detection, early treatment and effective prevention
of various diseases. Such free consultation activity
increased the health awareness of the Company’s
female employees and achieved a certain effect
in promoting the health of the employees. Such
heart-warming activity received extensive positive
feedbacks

During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with all relevant employment and labor
laws and regulations relating to preventing child and
forced labor that have a significant impact on the
Company.
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3.5 The occupational health and safety

The Group distributes labor protection appliances and
tools to employees every year, such as masks, gloves and
uniforms.

The Group cares about the physical health of employees.
It sets up employee health records for every employee
and also organizes routine examination of occupational
diseases.

In order to further improve safety education of the Group,
it has enhanced employees’ awareness of fire safety, as
well as their awareness of preventing accidents and self-
rescue, which strengthened their ability to escape and
save themselves. In 2020, the Group organized a fire drill.
Prior to the drill, a preparatory meeting for the fire escape
drill was held with factory directors, workshop directors,
and functional department managers in attendance,
during which, security officers clarified the work division
and responsibilities of each participant based on the drill
plan. The fire escape drill was not only an effective test of
the emergency plan of the Group, it also further enriched
the survival skills of employees, improved response
capabilities of various departments for dealing with
emergencies and organizing employees to quickly and
safely evacuate. Such drills comprehensively improved
the fire awareness, self and mutual rescue capabilities of
all employees.
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In order to improve the capabilities of employees to
save themselves and others, as well as to get the hang
of basic first aid knowledge, the Group and Beilun
Red Cross Society conducted first aid training during
the year. Learning first aid is important and meaningful
especially when accidents may happen at any time in
this day and age. At the same time, the Red Cross
Society of China and the Ministry of Education jointly
issued a notice to incorporate health knowledge, first
aid knowledge, especially cardiopulmonary resuscitation,
into the education content, which shows the importance
of learning first aid knowledge. In 2020, the Group
continued to liaise with Beilun Red Cross Society to
provide health first-aider training for other departments of
the Group and a total of 122 employees participated in
the training.
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A total of 66 injuries of the Group were recorded in
2020, which accounted for 0.07% of the total number
of employees and involved no significant injuries. Lost
work days due to injuries were approximately 15 days on
average. The Group will strengthen on-the-job trainings
to raise awareness of occupational safety. The Group
supplies free first-aid kits and medicines to employees,
which plays an important role in emergencies.

In 2020, the Group held a production safety meeting,
which was participated by chairman of the Board, various
department heads and persons in charge of safety. The
chairman pointed out that the Company has achieved
progressive improvement in production safety in recent
years and emphasised that “responsibility is the soul of
safety” and “standardisation is the foundation of safety”.
The practical experience in the three-level Culture of
Safety Maturity Assessment (COSMA) was subsequently
shared at the meeting. Improvement has been made
in three aspects, namely leadership, process and
personnel. We incorporated safety KPIs into the annual
direction, included safety work in the leader standard
work, arranged all staff to take part in safety awareness
trainings and reports of safety suggestions and enhanced
staff trainings on safe operations in order to mitigate
safety risks. In addition, chairman of the Board, signed
a “Safety Responsibility Letter” with each department
head and each department would also sign the “Safety
Responsibility Letter” level by level until team leaders.

Consulting activity of safety production:

During the reporting period, the Company has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards have a significant
impact on the Company.
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If an employee of the Group is dismissed, the Group will
take relevant action or make compensations based on
the applicable local labor contract law and other labor
regulations.

Where an employee is under any of the following
circumstances, the Group may dissolve the labor contract
according to Article 39 of the Labor Contract Law: it is
proved that the employee does not meet the recruitment
conditions during the probation period; the employee
is in serious breach of the rules and procedures set
up by the employer; the employee causes any severe
damage to the employer due to gross negligence of
duties or malpractices for selfish ends; the employee
simultaneously enters an employment relationship with
other employers and thus seriously affects his completion
of the tasks of the employer, or the employee refuses
to make the ratification after the employer points out
the problem; the labor contract is invalidated due to the
circumstance as mentioned in item (1), paragraph 1,
Article 26 of the Labor Contract Law; or the employee is
under investigation for criminal liabilities according to law.
In addition, the Group will not pay relevant compensation
to the employee under such cases.
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Furthermore, if the followings have occurred during the
working period of an employee, the Group will make relevant
compensation to the employee. For example: the employee
is sick or is injured for a non-work-related reason and
cannot resume his original position after the expiration of the
prescribed period for medical treatment, nor can he assume
any other position arranged by the employer; the employee
is incompetent to his position or is still so after training or
changing his position; or the objective condition, on which
the labor contract is based, has changed considerably,
rendering the labor contract unenforceable and no agreement
on changing the contents of the labor contract is reached
after negotiations between the employer and the employee;
or if the company is under restructuring according to the
Enterprise Bankruptcy Law; or if the company encounters
serious difficulties in production and business operation;
or if the enterprise changes products, makes important
technological renovation, or adjusts business model, and it is
still necessary to lay off of employees after changing the labor
contract; or the objective economic condition, on which the
labor contract is based, has changed considerably, rendering
the labor contract unenforceable. After the dismissal of
employment relationship under the circumstances stipulated
in Article 40 and Article 41 in the Labour Contract Law, the
Group will pay relevant compensation in accordance with
Article 46 of the Labour Contract Law.

The dismissal procedures of the Group are as follow: the
group leaders and department head shall report specific
circumstance and the human resources department in
the headquarter shall determine its nature according to
the above circumstances and take the relevant actions or
make compensations.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group have fair and adequate access to learning and
trainings as well as promotion opportunities.

4.1

Employees’ Training

The Group attaches great importance to internal and
external studies and trainings to improve employees’
education level and capabilities, and properly nurtures
talents required for the Group’s development. The Group
has established Shenzhou School of Management,
which has become the cradle that nurtures the Group’s
management talents. As at the end of 2020, trainings
were provided to 11,498 attendees.

The number of male employees who attend Shenzhou
School of Management is 5,519, representing
approximately 48% of the total male employees while that
of female employees is 5,979, representing approximately
52% of the total female employees. In 2020, the
cumulative training time of male employees was 120,555
hours while that of female employees was 129,668 hours.
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In 2020, Shenzhou School of Management and other
relevant training courses held 214 training sessions, of
which, 114 sessions were external and 100 sessions
were internal.

The table below shows the number of trainees and
training time of employees attending Shenzhou School of
Management and other relevant training courses by job
position:

IEIAE Bt 1E 2B B
Number of Training

BE TR By Job Position trainees  Percentage time  Percentage
SREERE Senior Management 54 0.04% 599 0.01%
MR EEE Middle Management 1,882 1.29% 16,373 0.16%
EEEEE Junior Management 10,399 7.15% 495,830 4.89%
HMET Other Employees 133,147 91.52% 9,632,449 94.94%
M5t Total 145,482 100.00% 10,145,251 100.00%
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Shenzhou School of Management was established on 21
September 2012. The training target included key staff
of the Company, reserve cadres at all levels, technical
talents and junior management officers. The teaching
staff were from external cooperating training institutions,
internal teachers and senior management of the Group.
The school formulates the curriculum according to the
training requirements of the Company and devotes to
build an enterprise university rooted in the Shenzhou
spirit. The school promises to provide an opportunity of
lifelong education for every staff of Shenzhou, to provide
cultural power and talent power for the sustainable
development of Shenzhou and to assist Shenzhou to
become a world class knitwear leading enterprise.
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In order to further improve the management standards
of the Group’s factory management personnel and
boost the Company’s performance, in response to the
call of the Company, Shenzhou School of Management
has commenced to organise six-month “management
personnel trainings” in factories and various business
departments since 2020. Chairman of the Board
highly supported and valued such trainings organised
by Shenzhou School of Management and required
management of the Company to work hard in production
and keep up with changes in such a special year of 2020
in order to reserve strengths for its future development.

Internal sharing class:
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BT I Skill training for employees:
BEIREER: Electrician skills test:
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4.2 The development of career

Since December 2014, the Group has been successfully
shortlisted into the third batch of pilot enterprises for
self-assessment of enterprise engineer qualifications in
Ningbo City. The self-assessment of enterprise engineer
qualifications has realised an effective combination of
talent assessment by enterprises and talent assessment
by the government. Talents who pass the assessments
will be recognised by enterprises and received a
professional technical qualification certificate issued by
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security.
Upon the assessment by a panel consisting of 20
experts, 17 professional technicians obtained the
engineer qualification and 12 professional technicians
obtained the assistant engineer qualification in 2020.
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Shenzhou’s Performance Committee has set up branches
in every department of the Company, establishing
a standardized system whereby the development
of employees and the enterprise are integrated. We
encourage our employees to engage in trainings with
regard to their own specialized duties and other industrial
technologies, and provide such learning opportunities as
well as the possibilities of promotions and reassignment
to our employees.
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5.

INTERACTION IN COMMUNITY

5.1

Community Involvement

The Group considers that supporting the community
is one of the driving forces for corporate development,
as well as an important motivation for building a
“Harmonious Shenzhou”. The Group places great
emphasis on cultivating social responsibility awareness
of its staff and encourages employees to participate in
charitable community activities. Charitable donations are
applied mainly to various charity activities.

The Group has actively participated in local public welfare
and charity activities in its various production sites in
China, Vietnam and Cambodia. In 2020, the Group made
a total of approximately RMB51.48 million of charitable
donations, of which RMB45.24 million was donated for
education, RMB2.77 million was donated for poverty
alleviation and charitable relief, and RMB3.47 million for
other public welfare donations.
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From 2019 to 2021, the Group will donate RMB100
million to the construction of Beilun Youth Square. The
purpose to construct Beilun Youth Square is to attract
more young people to study, work, live and start their
business in Beilun, the project is an important move as it
provides a decent, fully furnished place for them to live,
communicate with others, organize events and start up
business in the favorable environment and completed
facilities.

In 2019, Beilun District Government kicked off the “Caring
Canteen” project, which is a home care service for the
elderly. Being the supplier of the service, Shenzhou
central kitchen was continuously responsible for providing
catering service to the service point of “Caring Canteen”
and provide safe and healthy food at the cost of meat to
the local elderly. This service is the trial for the reformation
of Ningbo’s home care services for the elderly.



IRIG - HHERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

UTERAEENMEE T TGN The below pictures show the Group’s care for employees
Bk : and relevant visits:

Annual Report 2020 F #} 127



128

B4 -

HEKRELHRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

5.2

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

HERIA
TECEE . AEREBHEN
mImEHSEEN HtEE
BRELEE EERT BREE
BTEEmARRFEBEEN =
HHMEFHEMR T B EER)
FE-R_E-—NE - mEREE
BTS2 BFBEENENE
DTS- ARG AR ) o T
IESHR I EZE L R EEET
BHREsS®E - FNEIHIES
HITERENHEREEZ2016
FE2019FHME » 1EIRKE K&
BhER ~ $A0 B R ~ B2~ BhEE LU
RIREHBE B2 -XE-@E-
BEEEENER RENNS
ERRBEE NGRS EIMEHSE

HERMBVEAHBIES -

TEBRAERE_ST-—NFER
BYSE/NE DI S - A 1 A
RpENL, —_ETFHEE
KELRE BER ERHNE
MEMmREBRERR RS !

5.2 Charity Awards

In 2020, the Group won the honorary title of “Caring
Enterprise Devoted to Social Assistance” issued by the
Ningbo Federation of Industry and Commerce, and also
received the “Leading Unit in Fighting the COVID-19
Pandemic in Ningbo City” certificate issued by the Ningbo
Municipal People’s Government. In 2019, the Group
received the Sixth Session “Charity Prize of Zhejiang —
Institution Donation Prize” from the Zhejiang Provincial
Committee and provincial government. The “Charity Prize
of Zhejiang” is the highest government prize for public
welfare and charity in the province. The targets awarded
by the Sixth Session of “Charity Prize of Zhejiang” were
mainly individuals, institutions and projects that had made
remarkable contributions in the areas of public welfare
and charity such as disaster relief, elderly care, assistance
to the disability and orphans, poverty alleviation,
educational assistance, medical relief, promotion of
development of education, science, culture, hygiene,
sports, etc. the development of the career and the
protection and improvement of ecological environment
during the period from 2016 to 2019.

The below pictures show the trophy of the Sixth
Session “Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Institution Donation
Prize” received by the Group in 2019, and the “Caring
Enterprise Devoted to Social Assistance” award plaque
and the “Leading Unit in Fighting the COVID-19 Pandemic
in Ningbo City” certificate received by the Group in 2020:
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The Group has devoted to blood donation over the years.
We have obtained various honors including Outstanding
Unit in Blood Donation in Zhejiang Province and
Promotion Award for Blood Donation of the city.

Blood donation activities for charity:
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In 2018, the Group was awarded the 5th Top Ten
Caring Companies in Ningbo Award by Ningbo Charity
Federation.

In 2018, the Group was awarded the “Donation Enterprise
in Ningbo Award” by the Ningbo Red Cross. The activities
of Red Cross embody the spirit of dedication and care,
share positive energy and love, which spreads the spirit
of Red Cross across the community and aims to build a
harmonious community.

The below picture shows Donation Enterprise in Ningbo
Award received by the Group in 2018:
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In 2017, the Group was awarded “Outstanding Social
Caring Organization Award” by Social Enterprise
Research Academy. The award aims to recognise the
relevant industry leaders for their efforts in promoting
social development based on the principle of achieving
shared growth through discussion and collaboration.
While pursuing investment and development, the
enterprises take into consideration environmental
protection and labour rights in making investment
decisions, thereby achieving social sustainability without
compromising investment return.

The below picture shows the Outstanding Social Caring
Organization Award received by the Group in 2017:
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Since 2014, the Group joined Ningbo Charity Federation
(Beilun). The Group established an environmental
protection fund in 2016 with enterprises nearby for
the purpose of protecting the local environment and
ecological protection of Beilun.

The below pictures show the Outstanding Social Caring
Organization Awards received by the Group:
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5.3 Participation in non-profit organizations
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Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange
since October 2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit
organization based in the USA, the mission of which is
to promote the sustainable development of the entire
textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other
activities, sharing best practices with relevant parties and
discussing the future development of the textile industry.

Since 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major
subsidiary, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. has
participated in the development of PUMA C2C (Cradle
to Cradle) closed-loop ecological environmentally friendly
products. From its selection of original yarns to dyeing
materials, printing materials and agents, this category
complies with the C2C environmentally-friendly product
requirements and passed the C2C product certification.
For more relevant information about C2C, please refer to
the C2C website: www.c2c-world.com.
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The Group also concerns the protection of wild life. The
Group became a silver member of WWF since 2013.

The below picture shows the trophy awarded to our
Group by WWF in 2020.
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S OPERATING GOVERNANCE
1. Lﬁgﬁkmfi 1. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
AEBXTERBLAREERAMTHEE The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group,
RABITIFREABEERRBI(EREZ Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (B REMNEBEAERR
B FRZEGEEETIEREZRE T)), manages the implementation of key working processes,
EiE WMEREEREER—ES and controls and affects the horizontal connection of working
HEELRE o processes at the same time, thereby creating an organic whole
with working processes.
AEEREBAEIEN EE  KAEEK To ensure the smooth operation of the key processes,
BRARCEEEHR FIE —RINERE the Group adopts systematic management measures and
6 mEREER IR H KSR formulates a series of management systems to fulfill the
TR AEEMBHEOUNEEARE requirements of the processes and provide tactical execution.
Mz EREEBIEN §ICRARENIS At the same time, we utilize various measures such as goal-
12 EEI RS TERE o oriented management to stipulate key performance indicators
to control and improve the working processes.
1.1 FEZEEME 1.1 Major Operating Regions
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Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the regions
shown in the following picture: the green color represents
the production bases of Shenzhou in Ningbo; the red
color represents the sales offices of Shenzhou; the blue
color represents the production bases located outside
Ningbo.

2D W=t
Shenzhou-Shanghai

RNZE
Shenzhou-Anging

Shenzhou-Nlngbo

MR

Shenzhou-Vietnam Shenzhou-Hong Kong

FRMSRIEE

Shenzhou-Cambodia

FNEREEE
Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group
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1.2 REBEIR
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1.2 Procurement Management

In 2020, the Group conveyed the concepts of
environmental protection, energy saving and sustainable
management to suppliers through visits to suppliers
and site inspections, and encouraged suppliers to
adopt environmental-friendly products and use energy
efficiently so as to continuously improve environmental
performance.

1.2.1 Procurement process

Dedicated staff of the Group’s designated
departments is responsible for the procurement of
materials. The materials procured mainly include
cotton yarn, dyestuffs, trims, equipment and spare
parts, office supplies, and food. Procurement cost
control is an important measure to enhance profit on
products. The quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and
trims procured will directly affect the product quality
and the corporate image of the Group. Procurement
management is one of the most important aspects
affecting product competitiveness.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BREBERBEBRAEZ Y G & To ensure the efficiency of the procurement process,

EEGEEEH > WM the Group formulates management documents such

BESIARE - TEIRASE as “Procurement Control Procedures”. The below

BERERRZE ! chart shows the procurement process of the Group:
iR E

Chart of Procurement Process

3R 5T 2] Demand Plan

IREBHEE

Purchase Requisition

$KEE 5T 2 Purchasing Plan

4
{LFERIRIZ Selection of Suppliers

A4

EESEmER

Determination of Purchase Price
A 4
I EEHZIHEESN

Entering into Framework Agreement
or Purchase Contract

s
7N

I
Management of Supply Process
A 4
ERUK Inspection for Acceptance

v
7 Fail y

3B E Return of Goods

=5 EB Pass or Fail

7= Pass
[ 1

AE Warehousing ZEEZ Claims etc. K ZEEZ Claims etc.

A 4 A 4

147X Payment
'Y
L4

v

BMEER g5t RAESE
Financial Control, Accounting &
Internal Audit etc.

EB BRI

t of Procurement Business
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1.2.2 Communication with suppliers

The Group and its strategic suppliers have signed
undertaking letters. All suppliers are required to
comply with the “Supplier Behaviour Undertaking
Letter” (“Undertaking Letter”), which include the
following contents: prohibition of use of forced
labour and child labour, prohibition of discrimination,
harassment and bullying, anti-corruption, timely
payment of salaries as well as compliance with
occupational health, environment protection
and safety standards. To ensure the effective
implementation of such undertaking letters,
the Group will rate each supplier based on its
implementation performance, purchasing priority
will be decided by reference to the relevant scores
in future procurement. The Group will require every
major supplier to submit regular social responsibility
report, and also will issue questionnaire to every
major supplier for evaluation, and may even arrange
site visit to confirm that relevant policies have been
carried out as stated.
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UTExREHERB NG Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels
EMEHEEREENA . we used to communicate with them are shown in

the following chart:

REEE

Topic Concerned

HrEn
Supplier

HERE TR

Supplier evaluation policy

REBER

Green products

EmES
Product quality

EH R IRt

Response to climate changes

AIREEE
Sustainability

BEAN

Communication Channel

EH g ¢
Regular meetings

HEBRE

Supplier summit

GIERMIER

Cooperative technology projects

et g MemE
Workshops and forums

2ETK
Factory visiting
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1.23FEFEMHEBER 1.2.3 Major Raw Material Suppliers
TECEFEERRAEE Summary of number of major yarn suppliers of
WiRHERBEEERX (7 group companies in 2020 (by country)
BT
R HEEHE Bt
Serial Number of
Number [l K& %58 Name of Country (District) Suppliers Percentage
1 A China 98 65.78%
2 i Vietnam 8 5.38%
3 FEEE Taiwan, China 7 4.70%
4 FEEE Hong Kong, China 7 4.70%
5 EdE Korea 5 3.36%
6 eS| USA 4 2.68%
7 SN Japan 4 2.68%
8 Zx[=H] Thailand 4 2.68%
9 A Italy 4 2.68%
10 HrERFR Sri Lanka 2 1.34%
11 HniR Singapore 2 1.34%
12 EalETpE RS Macau, China 2 1.34%
13 EkAm Malaysia 1 0.67%
14 B B L Guatemala 1 0.67%
st Total 149 100.00%
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1.24 28 FEIF 1.2.4 Chemicals Management
KEFBIHIEERBE The Group has established a list of chemicals and
THEEHIZRIEERE conducts management and control on dangerous or
TEE BREEBREMSE restricted chemicals to ensure that the dyes, agents
B2 2k~ BUE| ~ 50 IR ) B and detergents used during production are in strict
HEREEBFE - REAHR compliance with the management and control list.
RRBZIEBRFEERE Non-tested and uncertified chemicals are not allowed
B BXAEERZIIEEZH to be used in production and a stringent identification
AREHERE % o and tracking system has been established.
KEBECEEHR—ELZERE The Group has developed a set of chemical
ERiE BERNSERE management and control process, which covers
By Es s ERAURK dyestuff supplier management, incoming material
EEXBERIE HEREEZ inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge
CERERERE- inspection, ensuring the comprehensive management

and control of chemical applications.

HNRE(CEREERE

Shenzhou Group Chemicals Management Procedure

R
MSDSKE. HERE
E=AREE —  2e
Chemic Provide MSDSK' Supply
Supplier and 3¢ party test chemicals

report upon request

l

[ E]  mEmme st

E AR SEEB? U5 Rmmar
HETIRE A Wiz ™ Oniine testing "= > Onine ——» BEEB/? —
She G ml @ > Confim® nine fesing & testing Pass?
Lab environmental
standards ?
MR}
Egﬁf; ,i‘/ REABR?
HE Repairable?
Shenzhou > Production |
FAaanﬂmn'ws i R P
production Repar  © @ Destroy Packaging @ @
N 2 L WM L azes @
)0 — jater —» Monitor& —» %
szl treatment testing Pass? [R22229
Water
treatment
facility
REALE?
B Reperabl?
IREAE »
Shenzhou H &HE SR =2k
Garment B L@" Destroy  Packaging
production
HEEERBER K - *Confirm once per product
Bt Notes:
1. REFBRETFEEE - EEERK 1. Annual 3rd party environmental audit according to customer requirements
2. BERRA KRR (J9TEMRIE) 2. Randomly testing of water and waste water (pre-treatment)
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1.3 RIEERE 1.3 Process management
1.3.1BEEHE 1.3.1 Quality management
REETERREBEREEF The Group conducts a full range of monitoring
KREEEEEERAENR measures in the purchase and manufacture of
2E B RIFEE o products based on a comprehensive quality

management system.

HEEFTEEE8ERER Quality control is a very important segment in the
LEMBEEZH D - HIE quality management process. It mainly embodies
BiEELREEEE RAK the supervision, inspection and testing of product
Ba o REBRILE S TS quality. The Group has established six focuses of
ZINKER quality control.

TERAEEISO 900189:E The ISO 9001 certificate of the Group is shown as
£ below:

ISO 9001 FBZ
ISO 9001 certificate

142 BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1.3.2 0/ 152 EmEE

1.3.2Sustainable product management

RZEZZEFE AEENT
RE—BFREMNEEER
‘A B Control Unionfg &
Control Uniong&Z ° Control
UnionsB E T MO FREERE
W 1e] B4 48 SR Y A E 2 Y
MERGR EILLEEBEHN
BE7 > BIARR B EFTEERMY
AIRFE MR E MR R
RER-RHTEHRE—BER
TR E R BTN EEEN
B2 Control Unions8E
BE—E2KREEFBER
ZEBR—ETNIIEHER
Bl X A0 B PR eB s e A 1T
%o

%
&=

MTRAEENFLREE
BENHBERARE
Control Unionf&2fControl
Unionzg =:

In 2020, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group, received the Control
Union certificate issued by Control Union. The
Control Union Certifications understands the
interrelationship between sustainable development
and the production of textile products, so it has a
unique ability to solve the sustainability challenges
faced by enterprises and therefore ensure future
development. In order to achieve this goal and
maintain its reputation as a leading certification
institution, Control Union Certifications has in
place a global quality control system that has been
reviewed by numerous national and international
certification institutions both internally and
externally.

The Control Union certificate received by Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, from Control Union is as follows:
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1.3.3 BB EmEIKEF
B ERE 2 EEERLIURE

F:
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1.3.3 Product recall procedure
Product recall procedure from the Quality
Assurance’s problems:

If the produced apparel do not meet or are
not acceptable by first quality standards, the
clients shall have the right to reject shipments
of apparel from the Group, which do not
conform to the client’s Purchase Order or
Quiality Assurance Manual.

Where discrepancies are found, a complete
inspection of the shipment may be made by
the clients.

The clients shall charge back to the Group and
if the Group agrees, the Group would pay all
costs incurred by the clients in transporting
and handling non-conforming apparel shipped
to the clients or directly to customers.

The apparel, which do not meet or are not
acceptable by first quality standards, must be
destroyed. Factories are to communicate all of
the produced apparel, which do not meet or
are not acceptable by first quality standards,
to their clients’ Factory Merchandise Manager;
It is the Factory Merchandise Managers’
responsibility to deliver all of produced
apparel, which do not meet or are not
acceptable by first quality standards, to the
Regional offices for disposition consideration.
These certifications of destruction was sent to
the local clients’ office.
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1.34 X2 RIRIFEEE 1.3.4 Safety and environmental protection
management process

ERIEERMEKR -LE The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the ISO
RERSZREEEEEARSE 14001 and OHSAS 18001 management systems and
MHHEER AEENEE clean production audit and inspection to strengthen
MB AR BEHRAISO 14001 environmental protection and health safety, after
FKOHSAS 18001 EIERE & considering the large number of employees and
MEZREESZRIW UE production equipment, extensive span of control and
BRIERFHEREZR S other facts.

KREBLZE2HIRFRTIEE The focuses of the Group’s safety and environmental
o BTE protection work as shown in the below picture:

ZE2P#E
Security
Protection

i ZRERR
Saving and Safety and éﬁigiyli
Emission Environmental Health
ction A
Protection

BREE

Clean

Production

T2 RIRRIEER
Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work
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TER2AEBMISO 14001
&OHSAS 1800117524
EEZEBEWNEE

ISO 14001 55 &
ISO 14001 certificate

The Group’s ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 and
clean production audit and inspection certificates
are shown below:

OHSAS 18001 =
OHSAS 18001 certificate

BREEBRRWES
Clean production audit and inspection certificate

ERERBERDE F5E
mEZE2HE > BEMIE
LB E 2 IR RS I
Mg EkEE S — 7 HE
ZRIEEBRMEXN K&
ETrIERmEERBFE
REEE -FR > xEEHD
RIFEBEZERERERE
TENAERIRE » & TR ; M
BRES BRERK, X24E
B RmiE] e
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In terms of safety and environmental protection, the
Group strengthens safety education, establishes
safety operation specifications for related job posts
and enhances equipment maintenance. On the
other hand, considering its large workforce, the
Group emphasizes on food safety and occupational
health administration. Meanwhile, the environment
and occupational safety and health policy of the
Group is “conserve energy and reduce waste,
green plant; eliminate harms, avoid sickness; safe
production, persist to improve”.
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With safety, health and environmental protection
in mind, the Group has established a safety
department, an emergency response team and a
professional Three Wastes Treatment System to
reduce the use of toxic and hazardous substances
for meeting the standards of Three Wastes
treatment. These ensure the occupational health
of employees, maintain clean production, promote
energy conservation and carbon reduction,
and facilitate the response to and handling of
emergencies.

In the meantime, the Bureau of Work Safety of
Zhejiang Province awarded Standardized Safe
Production Certificate to the Group continuously
since 2016 and recognized it as Second-Class
Enterprise in Production Safety Standardization
(textile and garment). Therefore, based on checking
and controlling of potential hazards, the Group
complied with the principles of “safety first,
prevention-oriented and comprehensive governance”
and enhanced safe production to reduce accidents
and ensure personal safety and health as well as
the smooth undertaking of production and operation
activities.

The picture below is the Work Safety
Standardization Certificate:
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During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company in respect
of health and safety and other matters relating to
product responsibility.

1.4 The Management of Customer Relationship

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer
requirements, expectations and concerns by listening
to them. Through the following methods, the Group has
transformed and satisfied customer requirements and
expectations and promoted its market expansion and
service improvement. Furthermore, when customers visit
the Group, the sales department will gather department
heads and the person-in-charge who are directly relevant
to attend meetings so as to develop a comprehensive
understanding of customers’ expectations. The relevant
departments will convene special meetings to seek
specific solutions for those aspects that fail to meet
customers’ expectations at the time. The persons
directly in charge of the sales, research and development
and production departments will attend regular sales
and operations meetings every week to discuss the
current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze
the causes and find solutions to meet customers’
requirements.

1.4.1 The Management of Customer Information

To prevent the leak of customers’ information, the
Company enters into confidential agreements with
specific customers and also protects the patents
of specific customers. The Group exercises strict
control over customers’ information. All information
must be filed and stored for two years, and will
be destroyed after expired. In addition the word
“Confidential” will be printed on all documents, and
it is forbidden to take away document outside the
factory.
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In terms of the policy of protecting the personal
information (privacy) of customers, the Group
establishes relevant documents of procedures,
namely the “Management System of Customer
Relationship”, to protect the customer information
from leakage. In addition, in terms of policy
of implementing and monitoring the personal
information (privacy) of customers, every business
department has its relevant procedural documents,
such as “Customer Asset Control Procedure”
and “Process Related to Customers Control
Procedure”, only senior staff is allowed access to
relevant customers’ information, and the person-
in-charge of respective department conducts
regular maintenance and review of the information
of customers to prevent the leak of personal and
private information of customers.

During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with all relevant health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy laws relating to
products and services that have a significant impact
on the Company.

1.4.2 Customers communication

In 2020, the Group did not recall any products sold
or shipped due to safety and health reasons, which
demonstrated customers’ confidence about the
products of the Group. During the year, the Group
did not receive any complaints on products or
services from customers. When the Group receives
any complaints on products or services, the
complainees of the relevant products and services
will convene special meetings to seek solutions
for the relevant complaints at that time, and the
handling method is replacing the defective products
or deducting the fees by customers.
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UTExREEFBEINGZEE Topics concerned by our customers and the
MEFREBENAI: channels we used to communicate with them are

shown in the following charts:

RAEEE
Topic Concerned
AIREERE BETRRZS
Sustainability Employees’ health and safety
HESME IR OR A Gh
Social responsibility Comfortable eco-products
RS HEEER
Operating performance Supply chain development
=R
Customer
BREAN
Communication Channel
EEERE TR ERmEBERE
Regular meetings with senior and Client satisfaction survey
middle-manager
EHER KSR

28 TR Visits to clients’ operation
Factory visits headquarters

EERBESERO
Co-establishing cooperative centres with
clients
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1.4.3 The Customer Satisfaction
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In 2020, the Group was awarded the “2020 Leader
Award” at the Adidas 2020 North Asia liaison office
year-end meeting. At the same time, the Group
was awarded the “Nazha Award” by Adidas China
Office in 2020, which primarily reflected Adidas’s
strong recognition of the efforts made by the Group
in certain projects, such as mask development,
full container load shipping, development of digital
samples and some special series, etc. Meanwhile,
the subsidiaries of the Group in Cambodia have
won three awards from Adidas Cambodia liaison
office this year, namely the “Timely Delivery Award”,
“Quality Award” and “Lean Production Award”.
Moreover, the Group received the “Certificate of
Achievement” and “NIG6” awards from Nike this
year. The Group received the “Most Valuable Award”
and “Excellent Development Award” from Li Ning
in 2020. Furthermore, the Group received the
“Outstanding Contribution Award” from Xtep this
year.
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TEARFEEAAER The below pictures show the trophies awarded to
Rhe our Group by the customers.
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2. ANTI-CORRUPTION & ANTI-FRAUD
2.1 ANTI-CORRUPTION

In over two decades of Shenzhou Group’s history, the
founder and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma
Baoxing, and each senior management member have
always been focusing on “integrity” in establishing the
corporate culture. Integrity is the code of conduct and

moral standard of the Group.

Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese

”»

characters “SH 15 (integrity)” and hung them in the centre
of the lobby, reminding all employees that it is the
principle and requirement of the Group. All employees
must abide by it and the Group also welcomes close

monitoring by related authorities and customers.
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The Group strictly complies with the requirements
of relevant local laws and regulations, such as the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, and “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery”.

In 2020, the Group had no law suit of corruption and
bribery. Meanwhile, the Group also did not receive
complaints on products or services due to the corruption
during the year. If the Group receives any complaints
on products or services due to the corruption, the
complained department of the relevant products and
services will convene special meetings to seek solutions
for the relevant complaints.

The Group has set up an internal audit department and
engaged Ernst & Young as external auditor to improve its
anti-corruption standard in preventing corruption.

The Group’s employee guidelines clearly states the
obligations of staff in anti-corruption, anti-bribery and
conflict of interest. Accordingly, employees should follow
the requirements.

The anti-corruption procedures of the Group according to
the guidelines for the staff are as follows:

(1)  We offer anti-corruption and anti-bribery education
for key staff and major positions;

(2) Suppliers and service providers which have
business relationship with the Company should
sign “Integrity Undertakings” and “Anti-commercial
Bribery Agreement”;

(3)  We have special email and phone line to allow
people from inside and outside of the Company to
report corrupt behavior;

(4) Internal auditor and competent department analyze
data from time to time, conduct investigation and
visits, study features and pattern of corruption
behavior and implement and improve the prevention
measures and systems for anti-corruption;
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(5) We deal with workplace corruption in a timely
manner and report to competent authorities. People
who are suspected of committing the crime are
transferred to the public security organ;

(6) We introduce relevant anti-corruption mechanism
and policy to the rules and procedures and business
process, such as explicit business process,
approval authority, establish accounts, etc;

(7)  We have diversified expedients for supervision and
establish complain and report mechanism to provide
reporting channel for internal staff and external
parties;

(8) We engage in supervision by conducting regular
stocktaking and audit, price research and off-office
audit.

The Group takes relevant measures in implementation
and monitoring of corruption prevention practices. For
example, when we sign contract with new suppliers for
the first time, suppliers must sign “Integrity Undertakings”
and “Anti-commercial Bribery Agreement” as well. In
addition, internal auditor and competent department
check email and receive reporting calls at any time
and record and investigate reporting matters. The
investigation results will be reported to relevant leaders
and departments and relevant employees undertake that
they will keep the personal information of the informant
confidential. Furthermore, relevant departments including
internal audit and legal affairs departments monitor and
review daily course of business, track and investigate the
abnormal information and circumstances identified.

If the staff of the Group notices corruption behavior, the
staff can report by ways of telephone, email or letter. The
relevant department of the Group will investigate or audit
the related department or staff according to the reporting
information and will punish the illegal behavior. If the case
is of serious nature such as constituting an criminal act,
the Group will transfer the relevant person to the public
security organ for legal sanction.

At the same time, the Group conducts extensive internal
promotion of legal knowledge and organises Directors
and employees to actively study the national anti-
corruption laws and regulations and the Company’s anti-
corruption policy. Interpreting and analysing relevant
documents and cases enhance the legal awareness
of employees and optimise the development of the
Company’s legal system.
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2.2 Anti-fraud Experience Camp

In 2020, the Group held the “Shenzhou Group Anti-fraud
Experience Camp” with the purpose of revealing the truth
and characteristics of fraud crimes in telecommunications
network through the experience camp as a promotion
vehicle and a window platform, so as to consolidate the
anti-fraud awareness of the Company and employees,
effectively implement anti-fraud measures and strive to
reduce the occurrence of telecommunication fraud cases.
A desirable atmosphere of anti-fraud promotion was
further created to provide valuable experience for the
development of a fraud-free enterprise.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with
all relevant bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering laws
that have a significant impact on the Company.

PR EE ML A IR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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3. LEAN PRODUCTION AND INNOVATION

In order to expand the globalization layout of the Group, the
Group aggressively explore each category of new technology,
new material and new application of manufacturing technique,
and launch new products development and lean production.

Among other players in the textile industry, our Group process
with relative strong capability in technology innovation, advance
technology development. With our continuous effort in research
and development and the technology so developed, we have
built up our corporate’s core proprietary intellectual properties,
for which we use to operate our production business. Starting
from 2014, Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, was accredited as “High-New Technology
Enterprise”.
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The Group actively encourages patent applications by research
and development staff, introduces reward policies for the
grant of patents for inventions, steadily promotes patent
commercialization and endeavors to create its own brand
products.

At the same time, the Group establishes a comprehensive
relevant intellectual property management system, persist in
autonomy innovation, apply for intellectual property protection
aggressively, prior to complete the layout for intellectual
property development, avoid infringement of others intellectual
property and safeguard its own rights.

In 2020, the Group has applied for 125 patents, of which 87
were new utility patents and 38 were patents for inventions.
The Group obtained licences for 81 patents, of which six were
patents for inventions and 75 were new utility patents during
the year. As of the end of 2020, the Group has applied for 536
patents in total, of which 166 were patents for inventions and
370 were new utility patents. We have 183 patents of new
materials and fabrics and 353 patents relating to categories of
transformation and innovation of equipment and technique for
production and garment template.

The Group has 34 series of major patented product
achievement transformation, and it is estimated that 850 new
products are available based on an average of 25 varieties in
each series.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In addition, the Group has participated in the amendments
of 4 national standards and the formulation and amendments
of 15 industry standards, and is participating in the
formulation of 9 industry standards. The Group introduced
policies to encourage technological innovation, including the
Incentive Administration for on Scientific and Technological
Achievements and established a scientific and comprehensive
incentive mechanism on technological innovation.

In 2020, the Group had a number of improvement projects in
innovative technology or sustainable development, for example,
automatic mask sewing machine and automatic bag cloth
machine, etc.

3.1 Shenzhou International Textile Research Institute
The Group established Shenzhou International Textile
Research Institute in December 2018, and have the
workshop of academicians, which appointed two
academicians as consultants. One is mainly responsible
for the development and application of new fabrics and
new materials. And the other one is mainly responsible for
research on environment management as well as green
and environment protecting dying technology under the
condition of “reducing” resource occupation, so as to
achieve the “2025 zero emission” plan.
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Innovation center

The vision to be achieved by the Group through its
innovation center is to increase the added-value and
profitability of products, while developing the Company
into a sustainable operator through introducing our
ideology of environmental design in designing products
with our customers in the innovation centres, reducing
the use of fabrics and the pressure on the environment
caused by production emission.

° Design for Manufacturing and Assembly (DFMA)
and design production-friendly products as well as
increasing productivity

° Product diversification

° Shortening the cycle of product development and
saving the labor and cost deployed by Shenzhou

and its customers in R&D

° Integrating green elements in the design, reducing
the use of chemicals

° Increasing the product quality

° Ensuring a healthy and safe production environment
for the staff
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3.3 TERMPL 3.3 Enterprise Technology Center
AEE =M OEMTAIH The enterprise technology center of the Group has
BENER R B EERE TF1TE relative strong capability in technology innovation, and
REHANEERSEBNER@ER> has remarkable achievement in innovation. We served as
WREREREFERMAP L the demonstration and steering role in the industry and

region, and were accredited as the “Provincial Accredited
Enterprise Technology Center”.

TERAEEESNIEHKREE The below picture shows the certificate of “State-
BT RO VSRS Accredited Enterprise Technology Center” received by the
Group:
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3.4 The Achievement in Innovation

The Group received from the China National
Textile and Apparel Council the “Textile Vision”
2019 China National Textile and Apparel Council
Knitted Underwear Innovation Contribution
Award in 2019 for its research and development
and industrialization of the moisture-absorbing,
breathable and skin-friendly cellulose acetate
imitated silk fabrics used for knitted underwear. The
China National Textile and Apparel Council carried
out the evaluation activity of 2019 China National
Textile and Apparel Council Product Development
Contribution Award/Promotion Award in the whole
industry. To push forward the product development
work in the textile and apparel industry in China,
set an industry example of advanced enterprise in
product development, explore an innovative model
for product research and development, push up the
technology contribution rate and brand contribution
rate of the industry, facilitate adjustment in product
structure and promote industry upgrade and the
development of a great textile country.

The below picture shows the certificate of “Textile
Vision” 2019 China National Textile and Apparel
Council Knitted Underwear Innovation Contribution
Award received by the Group in 2019:
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The “Top 100 Zhejiang Innovative Enterprises cum
Zhejiang Innovative Personnel Award Ceremony”
was co-organised by Zhejiang Venture Capital
Association, Zhejiang Technological and Innovative
Enterprises Association and Sci-Tech & Finance
Times in Hangzhou. This evaluation activity aimed
to further identify a batch of core enterprises with
strong innovation capability, high research and
development level and outstanding growth potential
in an effort to create a favourable environment for
innovation and entrepreneurship. Meanwhile, in
the evaluation, enterprises were required to have
three years of establishment history or above and
proprietary intellectual property rights for the core
technologies of its key products (services), remain
profitable for two consecutive years with a growth
rate of no less than 20% for their sales revenue and
profit and be a High-New Technology Enterprise
supported by the government. Further, after the
four major evaluation sessions, namely enterprise
data collection, data review, measurement and
evaluation, and results application, the panel
eventually came up with a ranking based on the
scientific method of expert argumentation. 100
enterprises were selected as the Top 100 from 265
High-New Technology Enterprises in the province
participating in this evaluation. In 2019, the Group
ranked among the Top 100 innovative enterprises,
signifying the recognition and affirmation of its
continuous innovative capability, overall research
and development strength and market development
potential by the industry.

The below picture shows the certificate of “Top 100

Innovative Enterprises” received by the Group in
2019:
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3.5 Brand Building

Since January 2015, the registered trademark of
Shenzhou Knitting (registered number: 7226707), a
subsidiary of the Group, was recognized as a “Famous
Brand of Zhejiang Province” by Zhejiang Provincial
Administration of Industry and Commerce, signifying the
recognition of the Group’s development over the past few
years and reflecting the influence and reputation of the
Shenzhou brand in the industry.

To further enhance the development of foreign trade
brand and expedite the forming of the new advantage in
foreign trade, the Department of Commerce of Zhejiang
Province worked with provincial departments and bureaux
to start the selection for the “Zhejiang Export Famous
Brand” of 2018. It has been told that the award was
selected annually, and the effective period was three
years. The Department of Commerce of Zhejiang Province
announced 292 brands for the “Zhejiang Export Famous
Brand” of 2018. The Group was awarded the “Zhejiang
Export Famous Brand” of 2018 in 2018.

The certificate of “Zhejiang Export Famous Brand” of
2018 for the Group is shown below:
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B EZE_EFPEMER In addition, in 2020, the China Council for Brand
RIBEGREREEETESH Development, based on the relevant national standards
ERELE > KERTE T E for brand value evaluation and upon expert review,
HE RETEEMI(FEZES measurement by a technical agency and review by
ET AEERIERESS882 the brand evaluation publication working committee,
IREER ARE231.59(E T determined that the Group had a brand strength of 882

and a brand value of RMB23.159 billion.

TERAEBRT-_ZZZHEHS The below picture shows the 2020 China Brand
MEETFEERENE . Evaluation Notification Letter of the Group:
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4. THE HONOUR AND AWARD

4.1

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Substantiality

Starting from September 2015, Shenzhou International
was included in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index Series, which includes Hong Kong listed companies
with the most outstanding performance in terms of
corporate sustainability. The index is a cross-market
index covering leaders of corporate sustainability in
Hong Kong and Mainland. The constituent stocks are
carefully selected with reference to the rating results of
sustainability by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
an independent professional accreditation body, in
accordance to the framework it designed for sustainability
rating. This enables the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series to achieve objectivity, reliability
and of high investment significance, offering a series of
quality benchmark for the index funds under the theme of
corporate sustainability.

Below is the logo of membership of the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Index Series of Shenzhou
International in 2020:

From 2018 to 2020, the Group was granted with an A
Sustainability accreditation of CSR Index Plus Mark by
the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA). To
facilitate organisations to translate these good intentions
into good actions, in 2008 HKQAA launched the “HKQAA
CSR Index”, with the initial support of The Hong Kong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC). Now
run by HKQAA, the Index provides quantitative metrics to
measure organisations’ maturity level in practicing their
social responsibilities.

The index is designed with reference to the ISO 26000
“Guidance on Social Responsibility”. The index will
measure an organisation’s maturity level in practicing its
social responsibilities from four different perspectives,
namely Corporate Governance, Social Well-being,
Economic Performance and Environmental Conservation.
More specifically, the quantitative metrics will contain
seven core elements and a total of 40 recommended
practices.
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In addition, the Group joined the activity of “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2019” in
2019, and was awarded the “EcoPartner” in the “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2019”, jointly
launched by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (FHKI)
and Bank of China (Hong Kong) (BOCHK), in recognition of
the Group’s dedication and contribution to environmental
protection over the years. The “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards” are jointly organized
by FHKI and BOCHK to recognize the environmental
achievements and contributions of manufacturing and
services enterprises, thereby encouraging enterprises to
incorporate environmental protection strategies into their
business development plans and daily operations.

The certificate of “BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2019” awarded by the FHKI and
BOCHK to the Group in 2019 is shown below:
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In 2019, our Group has participated in the Sustainable
Financing Programme organized by HSBC, and was
awarded “Sustainable Financing Programme — Certificate
of Participation” by HSBC successfully. Enterprises who
acquire machine, equipment or installation with expected
carbon emission reduction based on the Business
Environment Council’s environmental merit assessment
result are eligible for the HSBC’s Sustainable Financing
Programme. Typical examples include: use of renewable
energy or energy source with less carbon dioxide emission
effectively, more energy-efficient machine or equipment,
sewage management system.

The below picture shows the “Sustainable Financing
Programme — Certificate of Participation” awarded by
HSBC to the Group:

Shenzhou International was won the “InnoESG Prize
2020” co-organized by SocietyNext Foundation and
various enterprises in 2020. The “InnoESG Prize 2020”
is to recognize the achievement of the listed companies
on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) by
their implementation and fully support for sustainable
development. The award is co-organized by SocietyNext
Foundation, UNESCO HK Association Global Peace
Centre, Rotarian Action Group For Peace and Wofoo Social
Enterprises as recognition and acknowledge to the award
winner for their initiatives on sustainable development.
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The below picture shows the trophy of the “InnoESG Prize
2020” awarded to the Group by SocietyNext Foundation
and various enterprises:

Investor Relations

Shenzhou International garnered the “Best IR Company”,
“Best IR by Chairman/CEQ”, “Best IR by CFO”, “Best IRO”,
“Best Investor Meeting” and “Best IR Team” awards at the
6th Hong Kong Investor Relations Awards organised by
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association. These awards
acknowledge the excellent performance of the Company’s
management in investor relations, which is widely
recognised by the investor community.

The Hong Kong Investor Relations Award is organised
by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, with the
aim of celebrating excellence in IR relations aspect and
corporates and talents which adopt sound IR principles. A
total of 168 listed companies entered the competition this
year and 43 listed companies received awards in different
categories. The winning enterprises were selected by
buy-side and sell-side investors online. Over 679 qualified
voters and 311 voting institutions casted for the best IR
talents and listed companies.

The below picture shows the six awards received by the
Group from Hong Kong Investor Relations Association:
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magazine

In 2020, the Group was awarded “IR Magazine Awards
Greater China 2020-Certificate for excellence in investor
relations” by “IR Magazine” and the below is the
Certificate for excellence in investor relations” of the
Group.

IR Magazine Awards
Greater China 2020

Certificate for excellence in investor relations

Awarded to

Shenzhou International
Group Holdings Limited

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In 2020, Shenzhou International was awarded the “Listed
Company Awards of Excellence 2020” — Main Board by
HKEJ. In 2020, “Listed Company Awards of Excellence”
awards were divided in to three main categories, i.e.
blue chip, Main Board and GEM. The assessment is
carried out by the adoption of the EJFQ “signals”, a
unique stock-tracking system developed by HKEJ, all the
candidates are screened based on four major criteria:
Piotroski F-Score, performance against the Hang Seng
Index of the same period, number of recommendations
from professional analysts and industry leaders, as well
as average annual growth in earning. The shortlist are
then assessed by a judging panel comprising industry
leaders, analysts and HKEJ’s editors, the results will
then be audited by KPMG. This year, 38 most competent
listed companies were selected among over 2,000
listed companies in Hong Kong, as such, besides as
recognition of the outstanding performance achieved,
the awarded listed companies can also be served as a
meaningful reference indicator for investors.

The below picture shows the trophy of “Listed Company

Awards of Excellence 2020” — Main Board awarded to the
Group by HKEJ:
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PR EE ML A IR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

In addition, Shenzhou International was awarded
the “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise 2020
by Economic Digest in December 2020, which
is a valuable indicator for reference. Economic
Digest shortlisted the outstanding enterprises from
thousands of listed companies in Hong Kong in
recognition of their remarkable achievements based
on six major areas, namely corporate philosophy and
vision, annual performance, corporate governance,
popularity among minority shareholders, scientific and
technological research and development, and industry
accomplishments.

The below picture shows the trophy of “Hong Kong
Outstanding Enterprise 2020” awarded to the Group by
Economic Digest in 2020:
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Shenzhou International was awarded “The Largest
Capitalization Private Company Award 2018” in the
“Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong Kong Ranking”
by “Yazhou Zhoukan” this year. To be eligible for the
“Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong Kong Ranking”,
an enterprise must be a Hong Kong listed Mainland
enterprises traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in 2017 to 2018, and will be assessed based on their
market capitalization as at 31 May 2018. The research
department of “Yazhou Zhoukan” will then rank those
listed companies based on their respective major audited
operation data, including the market capitalization of
the company in Hong Kong, total market capitalization,
turnover and its growth rate, net profit and its growth
rate, assets in Hong Kong, total assets, etc. As such,
many of the awarded listed companies have operation
scale and total assets of world level, and played an
important role in Hong Kong’s capital market.

The below picture shows the trophy of “The Largest
Capitalization Private Company Award 2018” in the
“Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong Kong Ranking”
awarded to the Group by “Yazhou Zhoukan”:
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In December 2018, Shenzhou International obtained the
“Best Investment Value Award for Listed Companies”
award from Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group
Limited at the ceremony for China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Award.

In September 2018, Shenzhou International was named
as one of the “Asia’s 50 Top Listed Companies 2018” by
“Forbes Asia”, a proof that investors recognize the Group
as a substantial listed company.

“Forbes Asia” first selected 1,744 companies with
operating incomes of at least USD2 billion and were
listed at least one year. It crossed out the companies with
losses or those with operating incomes lower than five
years ago. Those with long-term debts more than half
of the total capital or enterprises with more than 50%
held by the government or the listed parent companies
were not included. Finally, after applying more than 10
financial standards, it analyzed the remaining companies.
Thus, a list of the blue-chip enterprises with excellent
performance was selected, and all the enterprises on the
list are the best in the local area.
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Furthermore, Shenzhou International was awarded
“ListCo Excellence Awards 2018” by “AM730”, PR Asia
and Roadshow in October 2018, a proof that the Group
strives for good performance returns, excellent corporate
governance, contribute to the economy and enhance
people’s quality of life on different levels.

The below picture shows the trophy of “ListCo Excellence
Awards 2018” awarded to the Group by “AM730”, PR
Asia and Roadshow in 2018:

Shenzhou International was awarded “ListCo Excellence
Awards 2018” by “AM730”, PR Asia and Roadshow. As
an award given by a cross-platform financial media in
China and Hong Kong, it is selected by the ListCO award
organizing committee, Deloitte, Futu Securities, Yunfeng
Financial, and many professional equity analysts and fund
managers to acknowledge 29 excellent listed companies.
The winners are one of the indicators as reference for
investors.
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ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Shenzhou International was awarded “2018 Golden Lion
Award: The Best Listed Company” by Sina Finance in
December 2018, a proof that the market recognizes
Shenzhou International. It is also a proof that Shenzhou
International has keep an original mind in the process of
stable development, bear the responsibility, and made
achievements in many aspects including investment
value, brand value, shareholders’ return and social
responsibility.

The below picture shows the trophy of “2018 Golden Lion
Award: The Best Listed Company” awarded to the Group
by Sina Finance in 2018:

The “Golden Lion Award” by Sina Finance is to
acknowledge the participants with excellent performance
and active contributions in Hong Kong stock market
in 2018. Nine listed companies from other businesses
awarded with the “Best Listed Company Award” included
China Mobile, Sinopec and China Railway Construction.
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In August 2018, Shenzhou International was selected
as one of the “China’s 500 Largest Listed Companies
2018” and “China’s Top 50 Boards of Directors 2018”
by “Fortune China”. Furthermore, the Group was also
accredited as “China’s Top 50 Boards of Directors 2019”
by Fortune China in 2019.

The below picture shows the trophy of “China’s Top 50
Boards of Directors 2018” awarded to the Group by
“Fortune China” in 2018:

As usual, “China’s Top 50 Boards of Directors 2019”
continued to be selected from “Fortune China”
500 companies. Return on net assets and market
capitalization growth are the main criteria for the
selection. Companies in the preliminary round with both
indicators above the industry mean can proceed to the
next round, and there were a total of 144 companies this
year. The shortlisted companies will then be ranked on
various criteria, including return on net assets, market
capitalization growth, absolute value, proportion of
Independent Non-executive Director, composition and
quality of the Board, the top 50 companies with the
highest total score will be put on the list.

Meanwhile, the selection for the “China’s Top 50 Boards of
Directors” list is to allow the market and more enterprises
understand the high efficiency management model of the
Board, as well as a Board’s value in the enhancement of
production efficiency, survival and development of the company
and a good commercial system.
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4.3 Corporate Governance:

In 2015, Shenzhou International was recognised for its
corporate governance practices. It was named as one of
the 2015 Best Corporate Governance Awards for Listed
Companies by Ta Kung Pao, and was selected as one of the
Private Companies with the Largest Market Capitalization on
the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the Mainland Enterprises
Category in 2014-2015 (2014-20154F & R A P 1 2 40 A9
EBRTHTENRATERD) by “Yazhou Zhoukan”.

Furthermore, during 2016, Shenzhou International was
awarded “Enterprise Award” in 2016 DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Awards 2016. This greatly encourages
Shenzhou International and proves that the community
is confident in the corporate governance of Shenzhou
International. Therefore, the Group will continue its
efforts to raise the level of corporate governance, so as
to meet the rising international standards of corporate
governance.

Below is the Group’s trophy of “Enterprise Award”
awarded by DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards in
2016:

Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies in December 2018; a proof of
the Company’s excellence in many aspects, especially in
Board diversity, the active participation of Independent
Non-executive Directors, persistence on optimizing risk
management and internal monitoring and control, as well
as the excellence in deepening corporate governance
culture internally and externally.
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The below picture shows the trophy of “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” awarded to the Group by
The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies in 2018:

“The Hong Kong Corporate Governance Excellence
Awards” was an annual award organized by The Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies and the Centre for
Corporate Governance and Financial Play of the Baptist
University since 2007. “The Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence Awards” aims at promoting the
highest standards in corporate governance in Hong Kong,
business morality and Board leadership; acknowledging
companies with excellent management; promoting for
best practices and results, so as to promote the strong
development in company governance culture. “The Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Awards” is to
acknowledge and recommend the excellent performance
of listed companies in terms of shareholders’ rights,
compliance, integrity, fairness, responsibility, reliability,
transparency, Board independence and leadership, and
social responsibility.
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ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

4.4 Other Honors

The Group has been shortlisted as one of the “China
Top 500 Private Enterprises” and “China Top 500 Private
Manufacturing Enterprises” by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce for many consecutive years. In
2020, the Group ranked 448th among the “China Top 500
Private Enterprises” and 262nd among the “China Top
500 Private Manufacturing Enterprises”.

The below pictures show the “China Top 500 Private
Manufacturing Enterprises” and “China Top 500 Private
Enterprises” certificates:

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, won the “2020-2022 Ningbo Enterprise with
Foreign Trade Strength and Efficiency” award plaque
issued by the Ningbo Municipal Government, and also
won the “Leading Unit in Employment Capacity in
Ningbo City” award plaque issued by the Ningbo City
Employment Steer Working Group.
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The below pictures show the award plaques of “2020-
2022 Ningbo Enterprise with Foreign Trade Strength and
Efficiency” and “Leading Unit in Employment Capacity in
Ningbo City”:

In 2020, Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, was shortlisted into the “2020 Top 100
Anhui Enterprises”, ranking 58th in the 16th Top 100
Anhui Enterprises list at the 2020 Top 100 Anhui
Enterprises Summit.

The “2020 Top 100 Anhui Enterprises” certificate is as
follows:
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During the year, the subsidiary of the Group, Marvel
Garment Co. Ltd. was awarded the “Certificate of Tax
Compliance (Gold)” by Cambodia taxation department,
which is effective from 2020 to 2021. The below picture is
the “Certificate of Tax Compliance”:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Jianrong (E#%), aged 57, is an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Group and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a senior economist. He is responsible for the
overall business development strategy of the Group and has over
40 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (48 B143 45 k)
and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (71 N B8 3 &+ 4%
ARZEE ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of
the knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager
and the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group.
He has been the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma was
the vice-chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association (F1[E $1 45
T 21%®)and was awarded “Charity Model of Ningbo (B H & &
MERE) ”, “Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” Gif 3T 2% & 52 — (@ A #%)
and “Prize for Outstanding Charity Contribution in China” (P EIZ &
ZEHERSE) . Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mr. Huang Guanlin and
is a cousin of Mr. Ma Renhe (his father and Mr. Ma Renhe’s father
are brothers).

Mr. Huang Guanlin (ZRfi#%), aged 56, is an Executive Director and
the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 33 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (3T T %
K2), majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (§1=#0), aged 61, is an Executive Director, a deputy
general manager of the Group and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is responsible for administration, dyeing and finishing
affairs of the Group and has over 44 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing
Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant. After
joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked as the manager and a deputy
general manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo
Weaving. He has been a deputy general manager of Shenzhou
Knitting since May 2002. From October 2005 to March 2012, Mr.
Ma was also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
subsequently redesignated as a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma
Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Mr. Wang Cunbo (E7Fi), aged 49, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. He joined the Group
as the department head of the finance department of the Group
and financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He
was appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011 and became
deputy general manager of the group since 16 December 2016.
He graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology Gii7I T
EKRE),

bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1995.

majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with a
In the same year, Mr.
Wang studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he
obtained a master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition,
he obtained the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant,
the PRC registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer
and senior accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public
certified accountant in securities and futures-related business. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde
United Accounting Firm (28 X @k B & & steNE=75F7) , a deputy
general manager of Ningbo Yongde Corporate Management and
Consulting Firm (B kB2 EIREHEFHKFT), and has over 6

years of experience as certified accountant.

BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (BRZ %), aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 1 December 2013. She is a deputy general
manager of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing
departments, and has over 31 years of experience in the textile
industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked as
the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering (8B L2 KE2),
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
LeanSigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University G/ T A2
#5782 ) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (&), aged 56, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the PRC (7§
B AE K E) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang started teaching
at Zhejiang University of Technology (3171 T A2)in 1986 and
is currently a professor in the School of Accounting, Trade and
Management (&8 B EIEE %) of Zhejiang University of Technology.
Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s MBA
Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science Technology
Department of Zhejiang Province G L& & EE) as its special
finance expert. Mr. Jiang is the vice president of the Association of
Credit Assessment and Management of Hangzhou, PRC ({ii T 15
BEIEHE), a director of Institute of Finance Engineering, Zhejiang
Province, PRC (A I B &/ T2 &), and the chief financial adviser
to Hangzhou Sida Management Consulting Company (i B3
EIEFEMAT) . Mr. Jiang was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (GRIEZE S &), aged 58, joined the Group on
1 September 2018 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang has been appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1
March 2021. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Department of History
of Fudan University (£ B X&)in July 1984. From July 1984 to
March 1996, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer of the Department of
Politics and History and the Department of Politics and Economics
of Ningbo Teachers’ College (B ;& EM#22P7%) . From March 1996 to
October 1998, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer of the Department of
Politics and Economics of the Faculty of Teachers and Education of
Ningbo University (8% A 2T &5 £
University as Deputy Officer of the Faculty of Social Science from
October 1998 to April 2000, as Deputy Director of Science and
Research Administration Office from July 2005 to January 2006, as
Associate Dean of the Law School from April 2000 to July 2005 and
from January 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Zhang was promoted
to Professor in December 2006 and has served as the Dean of the

BE) . Mr. Zhang served in Ningbo

Law School of Ningbo University since November 2010 till now.
Mr. Zhang’s main academic part-time positions include Standing
Director of Chinese Society of International Economic and Trade
Law Research (FREIEI R4S K B 7 A2 %8), Standing Director of
China Intellectual Property Research Society (H0[E %z 2 #E A 25
&), Standing Director of Zhejiang Law Society (I3 I & 52 &) | Vice
President of Zhejiang Intellectual Property Research Society G} T &
HMFMEMEZE D), Vice President of Zhejiang Association for Legal
Education i I & A2 H B3R
Society and Supervisor of the Academic Committee of Ningbo Law

&), Vice President of Ningbo Law

Society, president of Ningbo Intellectual Property Law Research
Society (B M1 ERLZITE), the responsible person of
the National Characteristic Professional (Law) (ERF &R G
B))of Ningbo University, the responsible person of the National
Undergraduate Education Comprehensive Reform Pilot Professional
(Law) BRARAB LGN E A EZE C£2)) of Ningbo University,
and the responsible person of Zhejiang First Class Discipline (A, Law)
G I8 —mER (A$E:352)) of Ningbo University. Mr. Zhang’s
main social part-time positions include an arbitrator of Ningbo
Arbitration Commission (B fH#Z 8 g), an arbitrator of Shaoxing
Arbitration Commission (48 B Z 8 ®)and a lawyer of Zhejiang
Shiguang Law Firm (HILEEALREMEFPR) . Prior to joining the
company, Mr. Zhang had served as an independent director of
Ltd. (BRAERMHBERAF)and an
independent director of Zhejiang Tengtou Landscape Co., Ltd GifiiT
BrEEE MG D B FE/AF)) . Both terms of office have expired now.

Ningbo Thermal Power Co.,
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EEREREIEEKXEREE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

AHFARET A +—m R ZE-—F=A4
—HMATER BEZER/BIUFATES
UkEZZEGRFNEZEGEBZHRE
LT REENRERSE (RPEHBKRES) 4
BEMTRESEE —NMNA—FNEIE2L
B —ANEtFREIRRLEEM KT
EETFEFARTMELBERBRBLXEE
BEXBLBA - AL TREBRRERSED
XEBHE MG LESM-

BR—AAtFE=ZAMAREKRS GHTE
THEEBBEITHEHFLRIFT aEREIE
ERBREEEF - LTE ST FMN
BEZET=-F-RBAREARZEHMEZRA
FTE B EE-FONBE_STETAETT
BAERXERRERRE BZEE+HF
NWARARERE B S REMBPLLE
RGBT EERSEREE - BZZ2ZA
FE+-BEE-—NFEHBAREKRZER
R B S REREREM KT 2R RN
FEEREHARERREE K EBREKX
BHERREREC R EERAREAERK
EHTER-BE—NEFELtAEZZEZZ
F+Zh LT EHRALBEHFEHBERE
BERABDESFERE - R BIZTAREKRE
EEEBRERERAPLEFEREE REL
ETHRFETTRE LT REEER 2
FERIEFE URARIIEEHRZ S A EK
tHAB L ELHHEEBRROERAE (K
35k 1 300067) BESH o

Ms. Liu Chunhong (B|F AT % T), aged 51, joined the Group on
1 March 2021 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Liu graduated from Donghua University, formerly
known as China Textile University, with a bachelor of mechanical
engineering in textile machinery in 1991 and a master’s degree
in 1997 in mechanical engineering. In 2000, Ms. Liu obtained a
doctorate degree in business management from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University. Ms. Liu is currently a professor of business and
management and doctoral supervisor at Donghua University

She joined Donghua University as the deputy head of the Master
of Business Administration Education Centre in March 1997, where
she was responsible for the start-up, planning and operation of the
entire programme. Ms. Liu was the director of the department of
finance of Donghua University from April 2002 to March 2003, the
dean of the International Culture Exchange School from April 2003 to
December 2009, and the assistant to the president since September
2007, during which she also served as the dean of the School of
Adult Continuing Educational and Online Education and the dean of
the Raffles Academy of Continuing Education. From December 2009
to April 2019, she was the vice president of Donghua University,
during which she also served as the dean of College of Fashion
and Art Design and the dean of the Shanghai International College
of Fashion and Innovation, and was the vice-chairwoman of the
Shanghai Donghua University Education Development Foundation
and the executive president of the Donghua University Alumni
Association. From July 2019 to December 2020, Ms. Liu was also
the chairwoman of Shanghai Shanghu Digital Technology Limited (_E
BRI BRAT]). Currently, Ms. Liu is the chief researcher
of the Shanghai International College of Fashion and Innovation,
Donghua University, as well as the chairwoman of the Shanghai
Fashion Accessories Society, the vice-chairwoman of the Shanghai
Association for Science & Technology of Changning District, and a
director of Shanghai Anoky Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300067).
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Mr. Liu Xinggao (BB EZ %), aged 52, joined the Group on
1 March 2021 as an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
from Tianjin University in 1991, a master's degree in engineering
from Zhejiang University in 1997, and a doctorate degree in
engineering from the college of Control Science and Engineering of
Zhejiang University in 2000. He is currently a professor and doctoral
supervisor at the College of Control Science and Engineering of
Zhejiang University.

Mr. Liu was a post-doctoral fellow at the Department of Control
Science and Engineering of Tsinghua University from 2000 to 2002
and a visiting scholar at Department of Process and Control of
Newcastle University in the United Kingdom in 2001. Mr. Liu is
currently a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics
Engineers and the Institution of Engineering and Technology. Mr.
Liu was an awardee of the Zhejiang Natural Science Fund for
Distinguished Young Scholars in 2010 and obtained the Grade A
engineering management honour (the highest honour) granted by
Sinopec Assets Management Co., Ltd. in 2017. Mr. Liu was awarded
the First Prize for the State Scientific and Technological Progress
Award in 2014, the Outstanding Award of Science and Technology
Progress by the Chinese Association of Automation in 2019, and
the Second Prize for the State Scientific and Technological Progress
Award in 2020. He returned to work at the College of Control
Science and Engineering of Zhejiang University as an introduced
talent in 2002, where he has worked since.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BR7ZE), aged 50, joined the Group
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 25 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser
in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Lan (R/E), aged 55, is a deputy general manager of the
Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such as
cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 32 years of
experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (E&EA#E) , aged 59, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the Group’s garment factory in Anhui,
and has over 33 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department (8 7<
—&R), assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.
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Mr. Yan Delin (S1&#), aged 66, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment
factory in Cambodia and has over 33 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (RMBIEHAE),
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.

Mr. Jiang Tao (GI;E), aged 54, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 25 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University (E78K2), majoring in English for international trade.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
Company Limited (E/8E A H48HERAE) . After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (B4288), aged 57, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 32 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (2% b# IREE
&) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#§7%i8), aged 55, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of
fabric technology, and has over 32 years of experience in textile
industry. He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology Gif;T T % A 23)
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as an
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs of fabrics and technology.
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Mr. Ma Bin (E#), aged 50, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 21
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University (1§ B A22)and
later obtained his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (BB & KETH
BEIEE[R) . Before joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the business
development manager of the Sealand Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (5REE), aged 51, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department
of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 23 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical University
(AL T# K2). He obtained a Master of Technology from the
National University of Singapore in 2005 and graduated from the
NTU-SJTU Joint Executive MBA (EMBA) Programme in 2008. Having
joined the Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work
experience in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior
software development engineer for a software development firm for
a year. In 1998, he joined Yonghua Industrial Company Limited (7k
ET N ABIRAT)of the textile industry and served as its IT
Manager and Chief Information Officer (CIO) successively.
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Mr. Xu Huiguo ({8 EE), aged 68, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 49 years
of experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of CPC (R R E ) and
is a qualified engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team
leader of the wiring team (48 B&FX) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (2
JWEEMRE), a manager and the secretary of the party branch of
Ningbo Electric Maintenance and Installation Company (2% & 23 1%
BEZEE /A E)), the general manager of Ningbo Power Transmission
and Transformation Company (B #£%E /A ), the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (b #t8/5) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang Honghui (1341 #&) , aged 52, is a deputy general manager
of the Group and is responsible for the production planning of
the Group. He has accumulated over 31 years of management
experience in textile industry. He joined in Shenzhou Weaving in
February 1990. He once served as the manager of trims office of
the production and operation department and accessory department
of Ningbo Weaving, vice head of production planning department,
head of production planning department, and was responsible for
the procurement and management of auxiliary materials as well
as production planning and management of the Group. He was
appointed as the vice general manager of the Group in January
2018. His main duties included: assisting the general manager
to work, executing the guidance, direction, supervision and
management on daily production and operation of the Company.
This includes improving the production management system,
participating in the formulation and planning of the plan of the Group
yearly, allocating the orders from each of the clients of the Group,
preparing the production plan, tracking production progress, to
ensure the completion of production task.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
garment trading. The primary activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position and principal risks
and uncertainties facing the group are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement, Financial Review and Business Review sections
respectively from pages 12 to 17, pages 32 to 41 and pages 29
to 31 of this annual report. The future development of the Group’s
business is discussed throughout this annual report including in the
Chairman’s Statement and Future Prospect and Strategies from
pages 12 to 17 and 41 to 43 of this annual report. In addition,
more details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers, are provided in this annual report in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report. The discussion above forms part of
this Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 216 to 331.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKD1.10
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.93) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 10 June
2021. However, the proposed payment of the dividend shall be
subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be
held on 28 May 2021 and subject to such approval having been
obtained, the payment of such dividend is expected to be on or
around 22 June 2021.

Interim dividend of HKDO0.90 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.82)
per share was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2020 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2019: HKDO0.90 per Share) to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 11 September 2020. The
interim dividend was paid on 25 September 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

BOOK CLOSURE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 25 May 2021 to Friday, 28 May 2021, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to establish the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 May 2021.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 8 June 2021 to Thursday, 10 June 2021, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders who are
entitled to the said final dividend which will be resolved and voted
at the AGM, all transfer forms, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 7 June 2021.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Group’s earnings performance,
financial position, investment requirements and future prospects.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB51,475,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the authorised or issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB25,003,568,000, of which RMB1,391,623,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 332.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, Ms.
Liu Chunhong and Mr. Liu Xinggao who were appointed by the Board
to be independent non-executive Directors on 1 March 2021 shall
hold office until the Annual General Meeting. Ms. Liu Chunhong and
Mr. Liu Xinggao, being eligible, offered themselves for re-election at
the Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Guanlin, Mr. Ma Renhe and Mr.
Zhang Bingsheng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of its Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they
are all independent.

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there are
no changes to information required to be disclosed by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) for the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of
this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract,
Non-executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

it may be terminated at any time by the Independent

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.

None of the directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’
AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Continuing connected transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 37 to the financial statements, no Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the Senior Management of the Group are set out on
pages 183 to 192.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HEATBEEIT

&iE st SR KRERLER ki & B &2 '8 73 LE(%)

Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

ERELE 1 S EEER 639,328,200 42.53%

Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Interest of controlled 639,328,200 42.53%
corporations

BCMEE: RPEEE S 71,675,000 4.77%

Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Interest of controlled 71,675,000 4.77%

corporations

Annual Report 2020 £ R



200

EFOHRS
Report of the Directors

MIEE

1. RIZEIEF+ZA=+—HB > HBEERL
8 (MpE > —KNEBEXHEAMA T
ZHRAT) $75H639,328,20008 %1% > T
BEREER2E ((FEF)) ~BMX (HK)
LTD. (TBMXJ) RAZEEZEFR QS (TH
=) D RIBEB Z AT 78.37% ~ 14.59% K
7.04% 2 HwmoTES (—RINABE LB
EXMAYZERRAGE HEREILERSE
BB -BMX (—RNEBRELESFMMIL
ZHERAT) HEMMEE (BERELE
ZHKREERILEZLE) 2EHES A
E(—RNEBELHEBFMMIZERR
B) BEEEAY: (AERELEZRE) 2
ERB -REBEESKBER FEEEE
WAR BRI R FTF A 2639,328,200/% i& 15
FREER R o

2. RIZZIZHE+ZA=+—H ==%£8E
RAd (Bl — RPN EABREXEESFM
iz BRAB) FH71,675 000K 1%
IMCC Group Ltd (TMCC 1) RAEEZET
SREEERE OERTESTEREE
KMRZH L) MDBIEBZAT77.30% K
22.70% 2 #m MCC (—RNEBELEHE
HEMRIIZERAS) BATESECME
b AEBRRRECZER) 2EHB RIESE
HFERBERN BCMLERBARSSHN
R 2 71,675,0008 (5 PR o

R EBEN R _E_EF+_A
=+—H REFFKRIAEREG H3521F 5
BRAADFEZELSM WREEFKZS
TRIEMERRTMBZF AATDERES
RESTHABMEESIRGIFEEELRR
Bl H AR A E (1258 5 R E R B EXVED
ZHE) 2RO -HERODRE#RZEZ T
KA ©

TRABDHEEFAERLF MBARHRFZ
WEBABSNRFEANMEST L ERMRZH AR
AEFERERBITHRAS (BERFZEMBIA
Fmt+N\mzFL) AIFEBARLTHEN
BORE Z R0 SRR AR (0 SR SE T ki o

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2020, 639,328,200 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
78.37% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
14.59% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 7.04% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly

owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang

Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma

Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father

of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed

to be interested in the 639,328,200 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2020, 71,675,000 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 77.30% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 22.70% by certain senior management
of the Group including Mr. Wang Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are
executive Directors). MCC, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe,
an executive Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be interested in the 71,675,000
Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EFOHRS
Report of the Directors

FERRNEQFRMEOIER K
ARE

A E_EFE+__RBA=+—H> T AL
(RABIEHRIN EERQBRIEFE S M
E1& 533617 & 2 IR A M FTEE 214
AT BETRAS%I U EZEHENT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2020, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:
AT BT
&iE et S RkiELER i3 & E f& 45 & 53 LE(%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
1 2R 1 EmEBA 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%
Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%
TEE 1 RELERER 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%
Splendid Steed 1 Interest of controlled 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%
corporations
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 SEEEER 75,367,826 (L) 5.01%
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 Interest of controlled 75,367,826 (L) 5.01%
corporations
1,872,399 (S) 0.12%
1,872,399 (S) 0.12%
22,841,683 (P) 1.51%
22,841,683 (P) 1.51%

L—FE O —%a  (P)—FHELHMNKRD
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7.04% 7 HE - TEE (—RNEBE LB
ERMAIZERAR HEREILERE
BB -BMX (—RNEBRLEESFTMMIL
ZHERAS)) AEMMEERERS  FIE
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(L) = Long Position, (S) — Short Position, (P) — Lending Pool

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2020, 639,328,200 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 78.37% by Splendid Steed, 14.59%
by BMX and 7.04% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 639,328,200 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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The Shares held by JPMorgan Chase & Co.

were held via different

BREBERER entities in the following capacities:
18 E 51

Number of Shares Capacity

3,755,494 (L) RPEEE S

3,755,494 (L) Interest of controlled corporations

1,852,399 (S)

1,852,399 (S)

48,591,055 (L)
48,591,055 (L)

KREKE
Investment manager

20,000 (S)

20,000 (S)

143,614 (L) PO PERIRIFERNA L

143,614 (L) Person having a security interest in shares
35,980 (L) ZEEA

35,980 (L) Trustee

22,841,683 (L, P) ZAEREREA

22,841,683 (L, P)

Approved lending agent
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Connected continuing transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 37 to the financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of major suppliers and customers of the group
accounting for procurement and sales for the year ended 31
December 2020 was shown as following:

LIREEZ
B4 (%)

Accounting for

LSRR

B9 (%)
Accounting for
of procurement of sales

Percentage (%) Percentage (%)

RAfMER,EF
hARMER ERA5

BEEARERZH BRI 2HEAMBRERMTL

RERNERERE MEEF - REZHMBA
TRERRR GIEFAAER A F5%
ERF)NZSHEENE R EA TR

R Bt 32 5
REEDRFIIAENRERE T
AN EI7TAIIRBERE TR S X ZRE L
TRA T B BN S -5 TR A+
(FBETRAUWER) BRAAFETH TR
SRETILR/ RNFEET MALADER
& EHRE BUAENIEE %ﬁ/@’&ﬁ’ﬁfﬁﬂ:ﬁ
EENKE - HERRAM A XS TR AR

Z MR A UFEBREAGRS

The largest supplier/customer
Summation of five suppliers/customers

19.29
34.20

26.78
87.27

Please refer to Note 4 of the financial statements for details of the
top four customers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(who, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in these
suppliers and customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

According to rules on disclosure in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
several related-party transactions disclosed in Note 37 of financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules. The following transactions between
the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Company had been entered into and/or continuously carried on,
and the Company had made related disclosures according to the
rules on disclosure in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Other related
party transactions would not constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

a.

Leasing some production properties and facilities under
a new lease

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.
a new lease agreement of new property (“New Lease

(“Shenzhou Knitting”) signed

Agreement”) with Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Properties”) on 24 December 2019. According
to the New Lease Agreement, Shenzhou Properties leased
clothing production factory buildings and staff quarters to
Shenzhou Knitting with a term from the date of completion
and delivery of the new property to 31 December 2022. Since
the lease agreement included two buildings, so the actual
commencement date of the lease agreement was 1 April 2020
and 1 July 2020 respectively. Shenzhou Knitting could exercise
its right of renewal for a further term of three years at or below
the then market rate. Shenzhou Knitting may terminate the
New Lease Agreement by giving no less than three months’
notice to Shenzhou Properties. The above rent collected by
Shenzhou Properties shall be determined by market price and
cost incurred for renting out the relevant property plus a 5%
profit. The corporate management had complied with process
approved by the Board to determine the market rent collected
by independent third parties on similar properties. The annual
rents were proposed to be RMB24,157,260 (including the
relevant value-added tax) and were determined with reference
to market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of their businesses
in Ningbo, the PRC and with reference to the valuation
report. The independent valuer has also confirmed in the
valuation report that the above rents are fair and reasonable.
Shenzhou Properties is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong,
an executive Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“Rongrong Industrial”), an
associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As such, Shenzhou Properties
is a connected person pursuant to Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the Group paid a total rent of
RMB4,017,315 to Shenzhou Properties for leasing of properties
under the New Lease Agreement (including the relevant value-
added tax).
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Renew the leasing of some production properties and
facilities

Shenzhou Knitting signed a principal lease agreement with
Shenzhou Properties on 24 December 2019 (the “Principal
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties
agreed to lease clothing production factories to Shenzhou
Knitting with a term from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Shenzhou Knitting could exercise its right of renewal
for a further term of three years at or below the then market
rent. Shenzhou Knitting may terminate the Principal Lease
Agreement by giving no less than three months’ notice to
Shenzhou Properties. The above rent collected by Shenzhou
Properties shall be determined by market price or cost incurred
for renting out the relevant property plus a 5% profit. The
corporate management had complied with process approved
by the Board to determine the market rent collected by
independent third parties on similar properties. The annual
rents were proposed to be RMB13,160,328 (including the
relevant value-added tax) and were determined with reference
to market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of their businesses
in Ningbo, the PRC and with reference to the valuation
report. The independent valuer has also confirmed in the
valuation report that the above rents are fair and reasonable.
Shenzhou Properties is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong,
an executive Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“Rongrong Industrial”), an
associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As such, Shenzhou Properties
is a connected person pursuant to Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the Group paid a total rent of
RMB13,160,328 to Shenzhou Properties (including the relevant
value-added tax).
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Details of the above continuing connected transactions are
set out in the announcement of the company on 24 December
2019.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed and
approved above continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed the transaction: (1) being operated in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the group; (2) being operated
in normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (3) in accordance with the relevant terms
agreed which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

According to the implemented work, the auditor of the
Company also wrote to confirm that they are not aware of
any matters that cause them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions are: (1) without approval of board
meetings of the Company; (2) not in accordance with
pricing policies of the group on all major aspects; (3) not in
accordance with terms agreed in the relevant transactions on
all major aspects; and (4) exceeding annual caps announced
on 24 December 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group, such as the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Board is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and as at 16 April 2021, being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Ma Jianrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 216 to 331, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

MRENEE MRENEETESPEMAREEMN
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
FEYTAR 7N R 22 15 3 181 JBL e

Impairment risks for trade and bills
receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
trade and bills receivables of approximately
RMB4,168 million, which accounted for
11.3% of the Group’s total assets.
RZE_EFE+_A=+—H> SEENE
WEMREEBEREOARKE4, 16888 8
EEABEENI1.3%C

Qur audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade and
bills receivables included, but were not limited to, obtaining an
understanding of and evaluating the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
testing the effectiveness on a sample basis; checking the ageing
of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 and subsequent
settlements to bank receipts; inquiring of management for the on-
going business relationship with the customers based on trade
records; assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology by examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
reviewing the assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the expected credit losses.
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FREEFEE @ KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment risks for trade and bills
receivables (continued)

Management performed periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management
also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses
for the impairment assessment. No credit
loss allowance was provided based on
management’s impairment assessment.
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A high level of management judgement was
required when assessing the impairment
of trade and bills receivables under the
expected credit losses model.
RiZTEHAEEBEBE T RN RN R ERE
BERBESKTEEREH -

The accounting policies and disclosures
for trade and bills receivables are included
in notes 2.4 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRABYERR R EHEN S 5T BRI EH RN
e MBIRRIE2.45%21 0
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Provisions for excess and obsolescence
inventories

The balances of inventories and the
provisions for excess and obsolescence
inventories as at 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB4,911 million and RMB100
million, respectively. The gross inventory
balances were material to the consolidated
financial statements and significant
management judgement was required when
assessing the adequacy of provision.
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The accounting policies and disclosures
for inventories and the related excess and
obsolescence provision are included in notes
2.4 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We assessed the processes, methods and assumptions used to
develop the provision for slow moving, excess or obsolete items.
This included comparing management’s calculations for consistency
against those used in the prior year.
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We tested the reliability of the underlying data used by management
to calculate the provisions for excess and obsolete inventories,
typically the ageing analysis of inventories. We also tested the
accuracy of the calculation by assessing the calculation criteria and
recalculating the provision for products on a sample basis.
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WMt EERNOERE AT ENERM -

Annual Report 2020 £ R

211



212

ERYA S IR

Independent Auditor’s Report

FHRANHMES

ERREFRFEHHEMEEAE -HMEEE
RENFERNER  BrEEFREMBERE
REENEFMRES -

o

EEHRAMBRRFHNERTNRER
thiER  EFTARMIEEREATANES
Ei

a2

EHRGUBFTBRRNESMS  BFH
IARBHMER  EMEEEMERER
o B $él\ﬁ7ﬁ5‘$ﬁ'€‘2 EHEBESBRERME
%E’Jéﬂﬁ?‘%ﬁ/_ﬁﬁ’ﬁi%ﬂi‘jﬂﬁékﬁﬂ
REA-BENEFERTHIF HEZR
?,%HTME,_\T?T_%?:E mRi - BEERER
SEMEE R EFWEERKRS -

T

A o
Hlﬂ

=

%Eﬁdﬂ&*’r%ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ}%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ
T

EADEFRAEREETAGMATRM
WEBYHREERREBRBFGBIKE
RMERRAEEMPENVGEEGMBRE LY
EFEEREREMBERRNBRAFER
P EREFE AR M B N E RSB R R PR TR
BB B S

ERUGEMBRERE ERRNEZAET
HEERFECENE TEEARABRT
REAFBEEARNER UAERFE
KERGHER RIFEARNEFARERE
ERFHEAFLEE A EAMBRNE
(AWSE

BEZZEENHELATIEEFRTEEERE
MBREBRENSE-

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Wing Kwong.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHE_ZZZF+"A=1+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

216

—E-THF —E-NE
2020 2019
B 5% AR¥TF T AER®TFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KA REVENUE 5 23,030,648 22,665,272
THE A Cost of sales (15,836,040)  (15,789,251)
EH Gross profit 7,194,608 6,876,021
HMRA Uz Other income and gains 5 746,947 730,524
HERDIHMAZ Selling and distribution expenses (148,679) (379,836)
THHEZ Administrative expenses (1,638,759) (1,550,614)
HMBEx Other expenses 7 (539,711) (20,990)
= YD:N Finance costs 8 (108,250) (89,178)
P —REEE AT A E Share of profit of an associate 18 6,270 5,816
PRI AT F)E PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 5,512,426 5,571,743
FTiSIRME= Income tax expense 12 (429,781) (613,207)
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,082,645 4,958,536
UTFALEE#ER Attributable to:
BRATEEA Owners of the parent 5,106,736 5,095,206
FEFEFIME R Non-controlling interests (24,091) (136,670)
5,082,645 4,958,536
BRFREERKREREA EARNINGS PER SHARE
FELZR R F ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 14
BEARKE#S Basic and diluted
—FEEFHE — For profit for the year AR¥3.405t AR§3.397T
RMB3.40 RMB3.39
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BHE_ZZZF+"A=1+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥TF T AER®TFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,082,645 4,958,536
Hih2m (B518) & OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
REBHRBBIAEEHDIEE  Other comprehensive (loss)/income that
BENEHME2E B8) ~  may be reclassified to profit or loss
Llﬁ(" in subsequent periods:
RER Exchange differences:
?@%%%%ﬁ‘%ZIﬁﬁ%%ﬁ Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (420,816) 181,263
REBHBOEEZEH DEE  Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that
BEEME2E (B18) may be reclassified to profit or loss
U 0% BB in subsequent periods (420,816) 181,263
FEHMEE (BE) WE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
(Fr#1&) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (420,816) 181,263
FEZEKEHEEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 4,661,829 5,139,799
LTALTREG#ER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
BRBEB A Owners of the parent 4,685,936 5,276,463
JEFESI MR Non-controlling interests (24,107) (136,664)
4,661,829 5,139,799
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E-ZTHE+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

—E°EF 2%
2020 2019
Fff 5 AR¥FT ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
JEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MR B Rt Property, plant and equipment 15 10,166,819 9,592,314
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 1,585,555 1,534,840
mLEE Intangible assets 17 105,047 101,381
FERIRTTHREERER Long-term time deposits at banks 25 1,410,000 100,000
RHFENRIE Long-term prepayments 22 1,850 1,850
R—EBREAT 2KRE Investment in an associate 18 14,319 18,181
EEARAANBEST2HEE  Equity investments designated at
FAHMEEWNE fair value through other
HakE comprehensive income 19 720 -
IRICIRIBE Deferred tax assets 30(a) 13,601 12,054
MIERHEE Total non-current assets 13,297,911 11,360,620
MEEE CURRENT ASSETS
=8 Inventories 20 4,811,434 5,282,405
FEWEIR AR e R4 Trade and bills receivables 21 4,167,602 3,648,810
FETRRIE K H A E W FIa Prepayments and other receivables 22 957,660 535,424
FE IS B B N\ =0 IE Amounts due from related parties 37(c) 2,486 2,640
BAnEsTE B A Financial assets at fair value through
BRzEMEE profit or loss 23 2,425,932 1,053,233
HittemE&EE Other financial assets 24 - 200,000
Y ERRa=EA 2 Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITFEN over three months 25 2,961,676 4,710,830
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 8,227,060 5,060,896
EREEE Total current assets 23,553,850 20,494,238
Bk U= CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE (T BR X Trade payables 26 1,059,836 880,944
BNEE Contract liabilities 27 6,607 33,841
HMEAHIERERIE Other payables and accruals 28 1,391,148 1,179,725
FE — % REM A T RIB Amount due to a related party 37(c) 2,101 -
FFEIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29 6,210,429 3,192,164
HE&E Lease liabilities 16(b) 11,407 26,522
FE (S 3R 7K Tax payable 171,097 271,522
wREaf Total current liabilities 8,852,625 5,584,718
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E-ZTHE+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

—EIE2HF —E-N=E
2020 2019
M5 AR¥T T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BREEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 14,701,225 14,909,520
HMEERTHERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 27,999,136 26,270,140
EREIEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
sHEIRTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29 397,874 776,414
HEaR Lease liabilities 16(b) 103,921 123,214
LR IBEE Deferred tax liabilities 30(b) 226,511 179,185
WIERHEE Total non-current liabilities 728,306 1,078,813
FEE NET ASSETS 27,270,830 25,191,327
R EQUITY
BATEE NEGER Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
f& 7 Share capital 31 151,200 151,200
HE Reserves 32 27,124,860 25,021,250
27,276,060 25,172,450
JEEEHI MRS Non-controlling interests (5,230) 18,877
4ERE R Total equity 27,270,830 25,191,327
BER = R
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
FEFRHANITEE TR FHITER

Chailrman and Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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n\I'F *E &@J%
Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE ZEE+"H=+—HIEEE Year ended 31 December 2020
SREEBALER
Attributable to owners of the parent

ERRE ER BERE 213

Rx  RIDEER EE HBEE BHEE B RERA a5t 3o s
Employee

Share Statutory Exchange equity Non-
Share premium surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained controling Total
capital account resenve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

Wi ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR
Note  RMBIOOD RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(Hzt31) GERA) (F5E32i)) (B5£32ii)
(note 31) (note 32()) (note 32(i) (note 32(i))
KZZ-hE-A-H At 1 January 2019 151,200 1,514,523 1,283,882 261,744 48,191 148,333 18,890,865 22,298,738 155,541 22454279
EEFIE Profit for the year - - - - - - 5,095,206 5,095,206 (136,670) 4,958,536
BEBNERZEREE  Exchange differences related to
foreign operations - - - 181,267 - - - 181,267 6 181,263
FELANGER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 181,257 - - 5,095,206 5,276,463 (136,664) 5,139,799
SHEZF-\EXRBRE  Final 2018 dividend declared 13 - - - - - - (1185411 (1,185411) - (1185410)
“E-nERERE Interim 2019 dividend 13 - (1,217,340) - - - - - (1,217,340) - (1,217,340)
2EAR2RH Transfer from retained profits - - 195,565 - - - 195,565) - - -
RIZ-hE At 31 December 2019
+ZA=1-H 151,200 207,183 1,479,447 443,001 48,191 148,333 22,606,095 25,172,450 18,877 25,191,327
BRARAALE
Attributable to owners of the parent
teRE ER BERE Fi320]:
ks RfEEER g HBGE BHGRE Aftfas REER @t i s
Employee
Share Statutory Exchange equity Non-
Share premium surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
g AEBTm  ARMTm  AEBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ABETR  ARETR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hi3#31) (zsen)  (Was2() (Hi332(i)
(note 31) (note 32(i)) (note 32(ii)) (note 32(ii)
RIEZFE-F-H  At1January 2020 151,200 297,183 1,479,447 443,001 48,191 148,333 22,605,095 25,172,450 18,877 25,191,321
FENE Proft for the year - - - - - - 5,106,736 5,106,736 (24,001) 5,082,645
BEBNEHZEREE  Bohange diferences related
to foreign operations - - - (420,800) - - - (420,800) (16) (420,816)
EERENGER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (420,800) - - 5,106,736 4,685,936 (24,107) 4,661,829
Final 2019 dividend declared 13 - - - - - - (1,346,587) (1,346,587) - (1,346,587)
i Interim 2020 dividend 13 - - - - - - (1,235,739) (1,235,739) - (1,235,739
ﬁﬂé‘ﬁ ?“”7*" Transfer from retained profits - - 125,937 - - - (125,931) - - -
gt a3 At 31 December 2020
+ZA=1-H 151,200 207,183* 1,605,384* 22,01* 48,191 148,333 25,003,568* 27,276,060 (5,230) 27,270,830
* REMBRAXRPZECHEARE -~ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
27,124,860,0007c (ZE—hF . AR RMB27,124,860,000 (2019: RMB25,021,250,000) in the consolidated
25,021,250,0007T) FHiEEREERAARM © statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_E_ZF+_H=+—HLZFE Year ended 31 December 2020

—EZEHE “E-NEF
2020 2019
B 5 ARBT T ARE®ETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBRBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
PRI A A Profit before tax 5,512,426 5,571,743
HEE Adjustments for:
=127 Finance costs 8 108,250 89,178
fE(L— R E A S A8 Share of profit of an associate 18 (6,270) (5,816)
FEWA Interest income 5 (332,255) (282,811)
BAnESEAE Fair value gains on financial assets
SFIABRZEMEEZ at fair value through profit or loss
NAEEB WG 5 (53,940) (13,239)
HEME BEAREEEB Loss on disposal of items of
2518 property, plant and equipment 6 43,332 10,730
REFRAEEEER 2WE  Gain on disposal of items of
right-of-use assets 6 (48) (1,620)
ME-ERAREBEBEEITE Depreciation of items of
property, plant and equipment 6 974,479 933,358
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6 65,509 84,596
BT EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 6 13,878 12,695
6,325,361 6,398,820
giEL 7 (g Decrease/(increase) in inventories 470,971 (44,979)
FE%ZEE Rk EARIZ AN Increase in trade and bills receivables (518,792) (83,989)
T8 A5 7R I8 e L FE U (Increase)/decrease in prepayments
;I (g R and other receivables (367,222) 178,230
FE IS BE B A\ =R I8 Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
B, (1) from related parties 154 (15)
Wfﬁﬁﬁﬁi il Increase in trade payables 178,892 68,257
SH8E Cal) 1 (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (27,234) 9,680
Hﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁmlﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁr%ﬂﬂ Increase/(decrease) in other payables
@, CRib and accruals 284,296 (110,469)
FE — SRl A T8 Increase/(decrease) in an amount
wm, CRisb due to a related party 2,101 (1,882)
REXKMEBRE Cash generated from operations 6,348,527 6,413,659
BAIF] B Interest paid (109,594) (87,821)
BN EEFER Hong Kong profits tax paid (20,575) (11,514)
B8 INEINHR Overseas withholding tax paid (4,913) (4,341)
B Rt EMmE Vietnam corporate income tax paid (33,082) -
BB EMER PRC corporate income tax paid (425,793) (705,623)
IREEEFASIREMEFEE  NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,754,570 5,604,360
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_Z_ZF+_HA=+—HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

—EZEHE “E-NEF
2020 2019
M 5 ARBT T ARE®ETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
CEEFFFARIRSMEFE  Net cash flows from operating activities 5,754,570 5,604,360
RETHFIARERE CASH FLOWS USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BUFIE Interest received 321,822 302,103
BEW—EEHEATRE Dividends received from an associate 10,132 -
BEVE - BEMZEEB Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (2,307,532) (2,541,971)
HEWE BB Proceeds from disposal of items of
RBERZENIE property, plant and equipment 287,078 175,396
HERFEEZMERIE Proceeds from disposal of
intangible assets 3,774 -
ENFREEERE Prepayments for right-of-use assets (170,803) (213,875)
EHEMRERLD Decrease in long-term prepayments - 80,817
WEREEE Purchases of intangible assets (21,324) (13,625)
WEEIEE R AN EFE Purchases of equity investments
Bt AEMEEIWIE 2 designated at fair value through
@& other comprehensive income 19 (720)
R 17 =R D Decrease in pledged deposits - 500,000
BERANESE Net proceeds from acquisition of
BEBTABECEMEZE  financial assets at fair value
ZPSFIEFRE through profit or loss (1,318,759) (1,040,000)
HEEMEMEE Net proceeds from disposal of
ZFT1EFIE 3 5E other financial assets 200,000 1,280,000
TeERIAER=ER = Decrease/(increase) in bank
IRITERCRL (g h0) deposits with an initial term of
over three months 439,154 (1,681,152)
KREEHFAAREMREEE  NET CASH FLOWS USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,557,178) (3,152,307)
RMEEBFIARERE CASH FLOWS USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MERITER New bank loans 33 5,882,116 3,828,808
BIRIBITEM Repayment of bank loans 33 (3,242,391) (2,376,979)
HMENRHNAEZHH Principal portion of lease payments 33 (23,812) (37,234)
B8 REHE KR E Dividends paid to owners of the parent (2,582,326) (2,402,751)
MEEBFE (FRA) NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)
HEREFEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES 33,587 (988,156)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_E_ZF+_H=+—HLZFE Year ended 31 December 2020

—E"EH§ —E—NE
2020 2019
M5 ARBT T ARBEFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HERRELEYWIEMELZE  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,230,979 1,463,897
FYRERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 5,060,896 3,565,916
EXEB & FEE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (64,815) 31,083
FREEKRAEEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 8,227,060 5,060,896
HERRELEWEIRDIT  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RE MIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 25 5,802,800 2,466,184
REREREDHR=ZMEABEE Time deposits with original maturity
ZEHBEFER of less than three months when
acquired 2,424,260 2,594,712
WERERMINZIRER Cash and cash equivalents as stated
BEEEY in the statement of cash flows 25 8,227,060 5,060,896

Annual Report 2020 ¥ 223



224

RAFSER R M 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

REIREBRER

BENEBRERZERERRE (TAR
BN _2EHRFARAZ+=HTH
ERETMBUUABRERERRE -
5E M ¥ 3 &= it A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islandse°
ARBRHBE_EERE+—B
“H+HNBERETEEARAMERBMARA
Bl FEMR (TFEMHR) o

ERABRHEAMB LT (M TAEE))
TERFRERBPEHBREER
(TEH AR )) ©

EERRD TEBREARAR (—X
REBEYESE (RBEXEE))
ML Z RE) "ARB ZREIERA
Ble HRARRE (RN EBELE
EEMMILZAT) BERBTZHRNIE

T o

MEBATER
AABMBATZEFBUNT ¢

SRR AR

o EABRZME

Place of incorporation/

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”).

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

KAREL
EHaNtt TEEBR
BETRE B# M EEE

Percentage of
equity attributable to

registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Top Always Investments Ltd. BVI, USD30,002 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Top Always”) limited liability company and property leasing in
Hong Kong
XRBREERAT (k&) HERUHEE 30,002% 7t REBBEUHBUFREER
BREARA RIREENEEERS
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, USD185,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Shenzhou Khnitting”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
EREMHBERAD HESAEEELE 185,000,000% 7T RAPBEAENEREE
(TeRi #r40) HEREER

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

1. AEIKREBREN @

MEBABER (&

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continueq)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NI
B AT EY BEADL TEEBR
i EABRZHE BEITRA E# M EEnE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear Printing PRC, USD2,100,000 - 100% Printing and sale of knitwear
Co., Ltd. (“Shixing Printing”) wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland China
enterprise
BERUTEFEINTEERAR HESAEEELE 2,100,000% 7t R AR R HE
(M E ) HEREER
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion Garment ~ PRC, USD10,000,000 - 91%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Yongmian Fashion”) foreign equity joint venture knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERAREEERAR FE MERERE 10,000,000% 75 RPEAENEREE
(TB#meEE)) HARKER
Ningbo Shendie Fashion Co., Ltd. PRC, USD5,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Shendie Fashion”) foreign equity joint venture knitwear products in
Mainland China
BERRREEEERAR FE SMERERE 5,000,000% 7% RABEAENEREE
(TERdRBTE ) HARKER
Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, USD30,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Shenzhou Cambodia”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
Bl (RIER) BRAR RERIE HIEBEELE 30,000,000% 7% RRAERNERHEE
(remisesms)) HARKER
Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. PRC, USD328,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERATHERERAF FED MRS R 328,000,000% 7t RAPBEAENEREE
(TRF44%0) HBREER
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., Ltd. PRC, USD1,050,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(“Linlin Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
BERMMHEERAR HESEEELE 1,050,000%7¢ RAPBEAERERMNT
(zvsag 1) SHEREER
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Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

1. AEIKREBREN @

MEBABER (&

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continueq)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NI
MBI Gt Rt 2 R EEAS TEEBR
i EABRZEE BEIRE E# Mg KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. PRC, USD7,060,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Ningbo Tuton”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERERRERAD FED SMEEE R 7,060,000 7T RAPEAERERNT
(r=RERE) HARKER
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, USD20,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Shenzhou Anhui”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
A (ZH) BIRAT HESEEELE 20,000,000% 7% RABEAERERMNT
(TR =) HEREER
Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou) Co., PRC, USD8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Quzhou”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
B4 () BIRAR HESAEEELE 8,000,000 7t RABEAERERMNT
(TERIETII) HBREER
Shanghai Maxwin Garments Co., PRC, RMB2,000,000 - 51%  Trading in Mainland China
Ltd. (“Shanghai Maxwin”) sole proprietorship
company
LERERAERAST HE BELE AT AR #2,000,0007 RABEARETEZEH
(TLB5R)
Ningbo Dagian Import & Export Co.,  PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Import and export of
Ltd. (‘Dagian Import & Export”) limited liability company commodities in Mainland
China
BERATELOEREEAR HE BRERAAT AE #10,000,0007T RAEAREELOE R
(TAFELO)
Shenzhou Trading Co., Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability HKD100 - 100%  Trading in Hong Kong
(“Shenzhou Trading”) company
BMNEZBRAA &8 BREAERAR 1007 7T REBETEREH
(FRME )

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

1. AEIKREBREN @

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continueq)

MEBARIEN (& Information about subsidiaries (continued)
NI
MBI Rt 2 R EEAS TEEBR
218 EABRZEE BETRE E# M KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Top Always (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability HKD100 - 100% Investment holding and import
Investment Limited company and export of commodities
(“Top Always HK”) in Hong Kong
X& (BE) REERRF &8 BREAEAR 1007 7T REBREERKEL OB
(kREH)
Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing Detection ~ PRC, RMB8,000,000 - 100%  Quality check of garments in
Co., Ltd. (“Hengzhi”) limited liability company Mainland China
BEREEREBAERAT FE EREART AR #8,000,0007T RAPEAREETHRESHA
(Me&))
Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. Japan, JPY5,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Japan
(“Shenzhou Japan”) limited liability company
RIS 7SS Ax BEREEAF 5,000,0006E RERETEREH
(T &)
Ningbo Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB80,000,000 - 51% Retail in Mainland China
(“Ningbo Maxwin”) limited liability company
ERERRIERAD FE EREART AE#80,000,0007T RPBAAREETEEER
(=R B E)
Anging Shenzhou Import & Export PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Import and export of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Anging”) limited liability company commodities in Mainland
China
ZERMELOBRAT FE EREART A K #5,000,0007T RAPEAEEL OB
(T =E)
Shanghai Maxwin Industry Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property management in
(“Maxwin Industry”) limited liability company Mainland China
LERHE£ARAT HE BREAAT AE #10,000,0007T RABEARETYEEEEH
(EREZ))
Superior Enterprises Investments BVI, USD10,000 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
Limited (“Superior Investments”) limited liability company
SHEEREERAT HERUHEES EREART 10,000% 7T REBEUHBENFRELER
(T=#RE)
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F+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2020

REREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEBATER (& Information about subsidiaries (continued)
NI
MBI Gt Rt 2 R EEAS TEEBR
i EABRZHE BEIRE E# Mg KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Maxwin (BVI) Limited BVI, USD10,000 51% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Maxwin BVI") limited liability company
ERBVIERAF HERUHEE EREART 10,000% 7T REBEYHENFRERER
(TEmBVII)
Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, HKD10,000 - 51% Investment holding in Hong
(“Maxwin HK") limited liability company Kong
5 (B8 ERAT &5E BREAAH 10,0007 7T REBREREER
(ERE#)
Maxwin (China) Limited PRC, USD50,000,000 - 51% Trading in Mainland China
(“Maxwin China”) wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise
5R (RE) BRAS RED SMEEE R 50,000,000% 7% RPBEAREETERER
(TEEHE))

Huayao Textile Limited (‘Huayao”) PRC, USD60,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China

ERGHERAD FED MRS R 60,000,000% 7t RAPBEAENEREE

(T8 HEREER

Buddies (Macao Commercial Macao, MOP100,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao

Offshore) Limited limited liability company
(‘Buddies Macao”)
BEE (RMBEEERD) R BREAEAR 100,000% RRMETEREH
BRAR ((EEEEM))
Dagian Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.  Kingdom of Cambodia, USD40,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Cambodia”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
ATHE FER) BRAT RERIE HIEEELE 40,000,000% 7% RRBEUERHE
(TRFRHE) HARKER

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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F+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2020

REKREBER @ 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEBATER (& Information about subsidiaries (continued)
NI
MBI Rt 2 R EEAS TEEBR
i EABRZEE BETRE E# M KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Buddies Group Limited BVI, USD1 - 100%  Investment holding in the BVI
(“Buddies Group”) limited liability company
BEEEEERAT HERUHEE EREART S REBBEUHBETRERR
(rBzE£H)
Dagian Textile (Anhui) Co., Ltd. PRC, USD8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Anhui”) wholly-foreign owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
AFH8 (2B BRAF RED SMEBE R 8,000,000% 7t RPEAENEREE
(TRF=#) HEREER
Gain Lucky Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky”) — BVI, USD10,000 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
limited liability company
BRIBRA (MEH)) HERUHEE BEREART 10,000% 7T REBBEYHBETRERER
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, USD50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Gain Lucky Vietnam”) limited liability company knitwear products in
Vietnam
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. MR BREALT 50,000,000 7 RS aE
(=22 =A)) REER
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, USD36,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(“Worldon Vietnam”) limited liability company of knitwear products in
Vietnam
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. HE BREAAE 36,000,000% 75 REERERNT
(Mt@Hm)) HEREER
Anhui Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 51% Retail in Mainland China
(“Anhui Maxwin”) limited liability company
ZHERRIFERASD FE EREART A K 15,000,007t RPEAREETEEER
(o301 1))
Ningbo Ruiding New Materials PRC, RMB44,932,428 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Ruiding”) limited liability company knitwear products in
Mainland China
BERIBRMMEERAR HE BRERAAT AR 44,932,428 RABEAERERHEE

(M85m0

HEREER
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PEIREBEN @ 1.

MEBABER (&)

(continueq)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NI
B AT Y BEENL TEEBR
i EABRZHE BEITRA E# M EEmE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Vogue Apparel Limited Malaysia, USD10,000 - 100%  Pre-operating
(“Vogue Apparel’) limited liability company
B REERAR BRAD EREEAH 10,000% 7t R3]
("B i AR )
Fly Safety Limited (‘Fly Safety”) BVI, USD10,000 - 100%  Aircraft leasing in Hong Kong
limited liability company
Z2RITBRAA HERUHEE EREART 10,000% 7T REBETREEEER
(rz2®7))
Rong Win Garment Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, USD8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Rong Win”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
Rong Win Garment Co., Ltd. RRERTE SIEBERE 8,000,000% 7% RRIBERER
() HEHBREER
Marvel Garment Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, USD30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(*Marvel Garment”) limited liability company knitwear products in
Cambodia
Marvel Garment Co., Ltd. FERIE AREFRH 30,000,000% 7% RRBERER
(MERER)) HEHBREER
Wangjiang Baiyi Shenzhou Knitting ~ PRC, RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. (“Wangjiang Baiyi") limited liability company of knitwear products in
Mainland China
YIEERNHAERAR FE EREART A 60,000,000 RAPEAERERNT
(IBE) HEREER
Ningbo Changging Household PRC, RMB65,915,521 - 100% Dormant
Co.,Ltd. (“Changging Household”) limited liability company
ERREXEARERAR HE BREAAT AR 65,915,521 BEH
IRERE)
Master Limited (“Master Macao”) Macao, MOP1,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao
limited liability company
EFEBRAD ((BFERM) R BREAEAR 1,000,000% RRMETEREH

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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21 REEE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

ZEMBREDBESESHMLE
(TEEAGHMAR) BHEZEBMBE
WREER ((EAMBREEN -HE
EFESAMBREERN - FBgsTE
gu (TERAGEN) 28 - FERQ
FEFRANKREEAER IR ER
ERE o IR RTDIZE S A EFE
R WRANEHENETEMER
KEDEERINBRIEBBEE > TH
LERBHREUARE TARK)) 2
P FAERESREERAALARER
BT Lo

agE

GEMBREOEAADRENBAR
GTETAER) BE-T_SE+-
B=+—ALEEZHERE-WE

ANRDHARABDERNERE 2 BE

\]' i
l> i

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure

accounting

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain wealth management products and equity
investments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),

(BG4S |“$,aﬁﬂ) cEAEEBH directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
REHREEMES 2 JEOFHRATRE is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
MR =EEN BREEREHKEY variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has

KzBNREZFORMES BIRT
AEEEERENSEBEFTREE
NZHEREN) B BRAEREH -

HEABERNEERAEELVRREY
KRZHR BB LR BIREF] > Al
SRR EEETEEHREHRN
BORgEEE—VHEBFEERBER &
EEE

(@ HREHREMKEFEANEG
HZHE

b) HMEHNRBREENERN; &

) TEEZREEKREBEETRRE-

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group

considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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21 REEE

RABRE (B
MBABDNMBRERNDEA NG
STEER > AR B A A B AR B R S HAf
RE-WBABNEBEHEIERRSG
ZEHRERGRSAR IREESHE
EZFENRRLEERRLE-

B ;e H A 2 U e & 8 A2 B BB 0 1T
BENTEBEGREHEE ARIFES
MR BIEIL R ERIHER TS
BH -FAEEERERDBRZME
ENFEEEARRIBEERER &
mN WA RIBEERENN G HE

WEEFERBERERLEXTE =@
EHEITER A—ERNU L HRE
2 IAEEGENFEETEFRE
HR-—RWBLARZFIAEEERELE
2E) (TEAEENE ZERXHA
AR

MEAEBREH —RWE LS 2 ZH
B H& FBOZMNE AT ZEE
(BEEE) R&aE - (i)ERIFZEHMT
HHEZEREERINPEREATHEZR
FHAEER  RESROFTRKEZR R
B ()T REBEARE Z A D E (i)
mARPEARALLEEEZ BERIEE L
FIRNEMEERERABR ZAER
FEMGERD  BREMAEEEIZHEERE
EENBGERENERAEZEENT A
RHEBETHRERY GRAEBEEE) o

21

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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K%E‘Kfﬁﬁ;@ﬁk%&%ﬂpéﬁﬁéﬁm

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for

— N FHBEREHSELE LT Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for
,\%ﬂi‘ J*%Hﬁ‘“ﬁi&ﬁu ° the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
BRI BRREZED EBNTE Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
R4 CHES

ERMBREENESR FHEREENE
BRG]

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

FEIFRE BRI
REEBETHRZ
(EHE
BERUBIRSEL HCovid- 191865897 Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
F163FE 2B A ZEF (RAIHM) (early adopted)
EREHENEIRKR EEUNEE Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
BB G ERFe5 and HKAS 8
PACH
T E— )\ FHBREMSERREE The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework

SEBMBREEINMEERTEN
X

@ ZF-NFHEFERSHSER
(THEBHEZR)) M BRE R E

for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are

described below:

(@)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive

AR ERE—RBEMS LAY set of concepts for financial reporting and standard
BHRERUEFE - EETI setting, and provides guidance for preparers of financial

RIBHMISS WBIFTE AL EMR
FRBER - S ERBIEHH
AERBREMBRENTES
EREERGRKIEERNNE
S BHEREEREEESR
RIERIRE - ZFERIT WA
EE-BEAREETEEEEY

statements in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes
new chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies

B EPNER - S IES N IE the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
2R Hh 83 0T A E A uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual

GEENEAEFNBINE
R2Z E-BESEREEAERNY
BRRRRBWEERTE

Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts
contained therein override the concepts or requirements
in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did not
have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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HEMEHF -ZFETEHEE
LSRR S E S NI

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(0)

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other
events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the pandemic and only
if () the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and
shall be applied retrospectively. During the year ended
31 December 2020, no lease payments for the leases of
the Group’s office buildings have been reduced or waived
by the lessors as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
there are no other changes to the terms of the leases.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
or both. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Bl S ER|

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

AERTERLEEMHERETEAT
5 B Ma B i R E MBI ET RASERT

SR HHRESER - these financial statements.

AN BREZEL ERNEE Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
ERL A CHEN

SEMEEREEL FIEEENE Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
FOMBEGHE -F_BE HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 - Phase 2!

RIZE39%% A and HKFRS 16
REEDETH

BEEMBREEL

BAFRE AT HIR

SEAE16RY

(CHEN

BRI BRREZED REZHRBELF Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
BIORKREAGEH REELEGNEE and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
ERFBF 2 EIIR  HEXTE Joint Venture?

(CE——5)

BRI BRREZED REEEAP HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
$17%%

BRI BRREZED =y Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® 6
BT ZET K

BEGHEL HEETEE TS Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
FIF BT E/ /e Non-current’ 5

BEGHEL WE -BERZE . Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

ER(S AT REHZFH Proceeds before Intended Use?
Friga B

BEGHE] BEEA-BITEAH Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
ERYL AT i Contract?

—E-|FF EBMBREER Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
ZECEFEHC ERE AL HKFRSs 2018-2020 llustrative Examples accompanying
EEGBHE REEQEINR HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412
BRI ELIHE BEUBREZED

H163EiEEBESR
flRERAG AR
BT IEFT AR
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23 BHEMFMERKREMNEEI 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HIimE 2R @ HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
1 A B —F—HF—H¥®zEREBEZ ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
FEBRBER
2 A _F—HF—H¥zEREBEZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
FEBRBER
8 AE_=F—HF—H¥zEREBEZ 8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
FEBRBER
‘ B R T SR I A HA > R 4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
° HREEGEREIF BT 5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
ERBRERSRUBREXNEHR 1B Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
INHHBEIZEREEGFEZNTHE Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
D EER ST F+BETE Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
aT UEEEERARE —UMERT align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
6 HRRZEZEF+ABEKNEEY 6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
FREERFI17THRZAET A BB October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
i‘xiﬁiﬁﬁu FAE BT LB ARG exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
BE AFREABNR - =F— HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

H BzrifRz FERBEREE
G EREISRMIFEBU B REE
85595
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23 BHEMFMERKREMNEEI 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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EBGHENEITHREE BEERGH
BREREZRER) —REF2IFHER
HNEaErIREEMS  HEEEEE
BEEEMIFNEBRSHTPES  BIE
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BI2EEBEHENEITHRAEE (E
R HREREEEY) —2EFE217
MIEMESMELZR o IS HEE T A BS
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AIBE MR Z E BT AR c HN B BT
RETEMEEARWERRAE XER
B iz BNERSH FAILAE®ER
BERRRIESZEEITEANTE.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continuea)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR.
The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting
the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence
of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis
for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that
could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively,
but entities are not required to restate the comparative
information.

PR EE ML A IR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

23 BHEMFMERKREMNEEI 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

RS ER @

AEBR_ZE-ZF+"B=+—H
BETFLUBTRIINESTENT RIRT
B UESBRITEEREX K MR
TRIEZERFEFRZE (TLIBOR)) AEZE-
HEZEBRNAEETRE—ERFERN
W E A ETEA REERTERE
M&HE FERNEER TERZSE
EBRNRAZEREE 2 WE T
TRERAZESIENBIIAMELES
KBRS E518

BERAVBRESERFI0RNREEG
R F28 (Z2——F) BT AR
REBMBREERFI0REEES
SHEERISE285 (CE——F) REER
EEHEHMERTHSELEZEHN
BEHESTERNREN T M-
ZEEITAREREERABE LT
WEECXEZBANEEHESTER
—REFR > AR YEBBE - ERN
BRIABREBNEENR S RBE
ENEBRREENIBIES  HEYU
FEEREENZBELARNNGEDR
EHNRE AR - ZFEIRNBRIE
B-BEAEMAETER T —RE—
REBEEEMBREZERFIORRE
BESTERFE28RE (ZT——F) BE
5] B9 S Al SR I M A XX B HA > AT SRl
MERBBHER RSB ELRARE
ETEENES T BRRERE -2
ZEEST AR AR o

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”) as at 31 December
2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this practical
expedient upon the modification of these borrowings when
the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and expects that
no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

241



242

HUME

B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

2.3 ENEMERKRERNERM

RS ER @

BEEREHENSIFNETRBEBERE
BREARBBIERBNRTE ZFE
s]AN$5RR 0 (0 B BRI B (E 2 B | AV R
ZRNZEBRAMSRERMS  BIMEZ
ERENSEQZARGS EARRE
STHREEEEER -BEHNIETRE
ZERTEENTEEEERENAE
MR B - ZFEIT RN B BRRAE
BEAENBR ZFEIEIN 2=
F-A-—BRzERABZFERBE
Mo WEEHRER NFIREEA -Z
FEITAFERIENFEENTBR
REERAERTE-

*%@%ﬁwwm%m%ﬂﬁﬁtg

RUYE BB RREBRB AT
GREEEZIEEERTE < EENE
PREUERFHEBETELENEBHE
EZEMMEMRE - HER BRERARE
mPEBIEEEANARMEREEZFEMR
BERZEBEBZHAE - ZFET AN
T TF-A—REZERGBZEE
HAR AR WEBMERANERE RE
BZEEI AN BREPME5H
REHEMGEHZ B HERNYE
BEKREEmEE A RFEA -ZF
B RFAHAEHAEBNMBRE
EERERERTE-

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable
to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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POLICIES

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of the associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investments in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When investment in an associate is classified as held for sale,
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continueq)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continueq)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

PR EE ML A IR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

F—Hh - EREREEXEERE Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
BMig 2 |RE REHEE) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FM — ERNGmERN EFAERAZ Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
HAnBEFEMEBEK lowest level input that is significant to the
ZRBEREABIETDS fair value measurement is observable, either
BENERERmME directly or indirectly

B — ERMGERN EMERZ Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques for which the

HAREFEMSBEK lowest level input that is significant to the fair
ZREBHRB AT value measurement is unobservable
AR

MM BRERANRESEREERIN
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vij the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for this
purpose are as follows:

&5t oT 1A FlerEE

Estimated Residual

]| Category useful life value

BF Buildings 20E 254 0% — 10%
20 - 25 years

[ S Bt 23 Plant and machinery 104 0% — 10%
10 years

EwmTH Vehicles 5ZE 154 0% — 10%
5 - 15 years

R EEEE Furniture and fixtures 5% 0% — 10%
5 years
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GRERERSZ HENERED R
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery, vehicles, furniture and fixtures under construction
or pending installation, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:

£l {h &t o] RS HA Category Estimated useful life
;i AE104E Software 4 - 10 years
FAok#E 204 Water use right 20 years
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a
right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

30 - 50 years
3 - 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade and bills receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal

MENERASNASRFEZ SR amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
,\éﬁﬁ’&ﬁbﬁﬁrgﬁ“ FFAB@m not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
M emEEHBER A o profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in

the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

263



264

24 TESHHEHNE @

B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

TRMEERE (@)

—RE%E (&
REBHRAIRNEMEERE —K
FETHE BZETREER U TS
ERREEERENBERANE  HUNT
N EABIED ENEEERR AR
IR o

F1fEER — FERBRBVPEEEL
EBAREMAEBEERR
2B B AREERE
ZERBEENEMIA

FofEER — FERBRBVTEEEL
BABEMELIFEER
BETRMEENGEEHR
ERAERFHBERES
BEZEHEAENERT
A

B3fEER — RIRESAPELEEERE
(BERBAHNEEFRFRE
EEERE RBEERE
BERPERFHREBRE
EERZEHAENTR

BE

B1E75 %
MASEEARERDAECERCE
BARBEAMERND ZFENAT
BEDENBUERRNRZERMS  &~5&
BERBICH At BERMEEBE R
BEMER % ~EBTEERES AR
g8 MERKRSARRERIERFEH
BHREEEREREIEERF -~EEE
REELEEHEKREIREER
A R B A R OB IR IR 45 TE O A BE M
PNES (S oE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
and bills receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

EWMAR Financial liabilities

L EE Rt E Initial recognition and measurement
TREENRVBEEIEILREBERDE Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
ABEANEFEEEHFTAEBETNE financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

MEE  BERRERUARBARIE
EAEMHARRIEEAHN A TR
£IHR-

FiEsMEaRIRERFRANER
B0 M B 8 7k & 8 MUK &R IE
BB ENERER G A -

AEEZEHEEREBMERT A
HthEARERESRBEZERERE
M st BiR1TEE -

BENE
TRERZBREFSEIANRKREZS
2o WS

BEBERETAEZEHEE (BARE
B)

PRIFALIFMR W TR > Bl 5t BIR1T &
B AT SRE B 5T R
IRITEEHBUB R XL BN
KB -HZEEEEBERNKEHE
BERIEES WmkEEENEGR
FREESD o

et E#IEm AR Bt KRB Z AR
EREE TEEERSBERNERAT
EREB D 2 B AR RN o B R A R
BREGRGEmRZMEMER-

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

265



266

HUME

B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

24 FEGHEBERHME @

RIERTERER
TREEREA AIE\"FfTﬂ&Eﬁ%HR
o B JE i B AR L FE SR

HERERETHEEURA-—EHREM
FERMARB O ARz EBERL HIBEEE
RIFRERIBEST > A ARSI EEST
BRRIEEIREEERESTEER
B MARKREEZZRINGSETD
RHEST o

BHEMIA
ERBEA R RGINIT ZERERN
DURsHFEsR 8 zE BEAR R A IE
B oUFRBEREENRMEEERF TR
EEREMEESHOTHE > MZPEAR
SR BN TRAR

=15
FERBARABREFEME T IR
BEFIR AEMEFHEEETE
MB TR READ ERAGIEER
MEER BRIBRZBEELASER
ZHREER EBRFERGHEER
TEHAST A & & PR B 2 AR A 5T Ak A
8o

RERREEEY

e RERERME  RekREF
BYEEFERERERTFRURT
&Eﬁ%%ﬁi%e%ﬂ%{%‘ﬁfﬁﬁzlﬁgiﬁi

Tit IHHEI Hy%ﬁﬁmé_mﬁ
ﬁq  BIIRREE KRR AEEREMASE
ERtEE E—ETELD BT
B0

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

PR EE ML A IR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

24 FESHHEHRE @ 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

RekREFEY (@)
MREHMBRREME  RERFEE
BYBRBEFERRTRES ETEEE
HE URMERRSHERBERES
RZEE-

i
HERBEEEZEHIIRAERE
BEECEZREIETE) METEBEE
FIREERHBRERML > WA A FE1h
SAERITEEMS TR BETWE

=7
& ©

HERTEBEA LEGEMERZE
BARHBITEEMEZARKRAXRN
BERRZERE REBRTMIRNZ
RFEZEMEFAGESEDTERA
ZRE R o

FRiSH

PRSI B 1A BN A R AE IR 1A © R FR 1S 1R
HEBmRIINER ZIREMERE ) AIFE
MItE @ EE%ZEWJ%EH&U\YE&
e R B ST

RBERBESHAREBRMIARREEM
ZMER (RiE) L EBEFEREE
EHMERRZRITERERIES B
MEBEEEREE RAHBERBHEK
ERERBHEN SR -

BERBERNREPAREERERZ
MELERUBREAEZRAERZ
FREERZ8 UBEEFHER-

POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

267



268

B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

24 FETHEBEREHME » 2.4

FRISH (42
EIER BB ARRN G FERR
HESD > M T AIB BRSO

e EEMEBEERRBVHEERZE
BUHIFEBEHIZMEEN
BENEE BRETXEHER
EHEANBNERNRA HIHE
BREREE R

e WMEARKBARDK—HBEAF
ZREBMZERNEEZEAM
S A MR R ERERY
Ry ] s B B = BRI AT RRE 2R K
Pl AEHE[E]

EIERIBE ETTA P NN E R AR
HEARFBRBBERREM RS BR
THE RS - EIER RS E RS IULR
FEERRNABUS AT NREG & E
BUREERGBRBIBE R AKREA
MIBRE DR HETHERERS

e BREMBEERYRERDIFES
EHRZEENEENERESE
ZHHRMEREEAR BNE
TRZFRRAEH G HHER
MIBEREEBRAEE &

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of knitwear products

Revenue from the sale of knitwear products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery or pick-up of the knitwear
products.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods

to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (continueq)

Pension schemes (continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

273



B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

24 FEGHEBERHME @ 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

274

2

REARBERIRRAE LERRAE
BRIANEE BERABRENHYHR
RMFEIREE -

THRENEZAREIRK ERAETQF
ZHEBERRRESERTHRE
It FEAR BN T IR E BN RS
afge

s

ZEMBRRUETRBDZEINEEA
REZ5| AEEZHEIRREHER 2
HER MIARBEMBERERZEE
ZBEEDNRZNEERAE-FEEE
AR ZINERZERN X7 BH
ZEBZBETHEERERYT AR
PONEHIEZ EREERBRERS
HRBRAZIMEEEERRE KRB
ERMEEBZZEN R BmERA
BESD

LUNEEEASHEZIFERIER &
R ZHMZEXRE  mUIMER
ARESHEZIFERER ARFER
HEEAZEXRBRE -BMERANES
EZFEREEMELEN =GR
RERZEE AIERNEME2ERE N
BmEBEA N ER@ENEENER
HMBEEZBT DR AEMEE W= K
Bm sl NAREBEEZHWRmEEE
—HBHERE

POLICIES (continuea)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own presentation currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD”). The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
located outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the average exchange rates for the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
and bills receivables. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance,
if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
a customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade and bills receivables is
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Inventory excess and obsolescence provisions

The management of the Group reviews the ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are not suitable for use in current production. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such raw materials, work
in progress and finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
the industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. No deferred tax assets were
recognised for tax losses at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). The
amount of accumulated tax losses at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB1,156,259,000 (2019: RMB747,122,000),
which will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Further details are given in note 30 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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4. BEHHWEN @ 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
& &k Geographical information
(a) SIEBEFIRA (a) Revenue from external customers
—EZEHE “E-NEF
2020 2019
AR¥%FT AEEBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
el NS Mainland China 7,322,624 7,142,756
SN Japan 4,795,807 3,542,572
B ER European Union 3,679,117 3,890,278
EH United States of America 3,115,229 3,475,427
Hih@ g Other regions 4,117,871 4,614,239

23,030,648 22,665,272

LU A BT % E R AT R The revenue information above is based on the delivery
Ella destinations of the products.
(b) FETEEE (b) Non-current assets
—EIEHF —E—NF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R A Mainland China 5,531,156 6,222,984
g Vietnam 4,674,347 4,232,091
TR Cambodia 1,384,194 467,015
Hih& g Other regions 269,574 308,295
11,859,271 11,230,385
LHIEREBEEE N A REEM The non-current asset information above is based on
EME D A BERATEHR the locations of the assets and excludes long-term
TEF - R—REBERARZRE time deposits at banks, investment in an associate and
FAREFRIEE /= o deferred tax assets.
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4. BEFWEM @ 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FERRZEN Information about major customers
KEFERER (DAMEAEBEUWAI10% Revenue from major customers which individually accounts for
) ZIWATT 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
—EZTHF —Z—hnF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
X P H Customer A 6,168,401 6,780,535
ERZ Customer B 5,717,403 4,501,484
B S, Customer C 5,031,035 5,036,340
B2RT Customer D 2,572,198 2,455,838
5. WA~ Hthig A Bz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WA DT : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
ZETEF “E-NEF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AEEBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEERMA Revenue from contracts with customers
HEEmR-NEERBE  Sale of goods - at a point in time 23,030,648 22,665,272
ZRAEHIKA Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) TRINTHRARSEPREERZTA () The following table shows the amounts of revenue
RIFEHTALOBENIALEE - recognised in the current reporting period that were

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

3= 3
2020
ARYTT
RMB’000
SFARSHTEH Revenue recognised that was included in
BENTERWA ©  contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
HE Sales of goods 29,948
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5. gA~HMWARWE @) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(continueq)

BEEEHKA (&) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) BHEF (i) Performance obligations
AEBZBHETEHBREE The Group’s performance obligation is satisfied upon
R IR BN E R > RIEE delivery or pick-up of the knitwear products and payment
R AZATEEFT30E180H W EIH is generally due within 30 to 180 days from delivery.

X fTe
ZEZEE —E—hEF
2020 2019
AR¥%FT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hanug A Other income
AT #8580 Government grants 329,586 361,647
RITH B WA Bank interest income 314,150 281,845
xkERANEBESER Other interest income from
EBHEFABRZEMEE  financial assets at fair value
Z HAMAF B WA through profit or loss 18,105 -
KEEMEMEES Other interest income from
HF] U A other financial assets = 966
A ON Rental income 31,118 22,717
692,959 667,175
Yz Gains
BARESFEBREEt A Fair value gains on financial assets
BRrzesMEEZ at fair value through profit or loss
NaEEFHE 53,940 13,233
EEFAEEEEER Gain on disposal of items of
2 Wi right-of-use assets 48 1,620
PE R UL F %R Exchange gains, net - 48,496
53,988 63,349
746,947 730,524

280 BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



RAFSER R MIEE

Notes to Financial Statements

—E-ZTHE+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

B A% Al #1 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REEZBRRAIFBEEMNR S GEA) - The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—ECEHF ZE-NEF
2020 2019
M5 ARBETT ARTFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEFERA Cost of inventories sold 15,832,781 15,782,021
ME-WEREZE Depreciation of items of property,

HEE plant and equipment 15 974,479 933,358
FTREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16(a) 65,509 84,596
mTEE#H Amortisation of intangible assets 17 13,878 12,695
FFEREEERITER Lease payments not included

SFANEE TR in the measurement of lease

liabilities 16(c) 10,787 61,294
Bt el <= Auditor’s remuneration 3,452 3,331
BERAMES (BFEEE Employee benefit expense (including

kEETHABME directors’ and chief executive’s

(FF5F9)) : remuneration (note 9)):

TEK#HE Wages and salaries 5,420,615 5,312,155

BIKEHEIHERR Pension scheme contributions 489,551 516,852

HaH) Other benefits 241,128 184,762

6,151,294 6,013,769
fE R AR PR Foreign exchange differences, net 482,594 (48,496)
B K fREF S Reversal of excess and
obsolete inventories (2,666) (20,127)
HRITH B UA Bank interest income (314,150) (281,845)
REBANETEEEE Other interest income from financial

STAEBRZEMEET  assets at fair value through

HAuF B WA profit or loss (18,105) -
REBHMEMEEZ Other interest income from other

HAF) WA financial assets - (966)
HEME - -BER Loss on disposal of items of property,

REBEEEZER plant and equipment 7 43,332 10,730
BARESE RSBt A Fair value gains on financial assets at

BRzEMEEZ fair value through profit or loss

ArEEEFNE (53,940) (13,233)
EEGREEE Gain on disposal of items of

BBz W@ right-of-use assets (48) (1,620)
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7. Hthpx 7. OTHER EXPENSES
HMEZ oMo : An analysis of other expenses is as follows:
—EZTHF —Z—hnF
2020 2019
ARBTT AEREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
fERESIEFER Exchange loss, net 482,594 -
HEME- -BER Loss on disposal of items of
RBEEZEE property, plant and equipment 43,332 10,730
Hith Others 13,785 10,260
539,711 20,990
8. RABEMZ 8. FINANCE COSTS
MEMADTWT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—EEHE —E—nF
2020 2019
M ex AR¥T T AREBEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RTEEZHE Interest on bank borrowings 102,918 80,987
HEaGZME Interest on lease liabilities 16(b) 5,332 8,191
108,250 89,178
9. EERESITHAEBZME 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
RIEEBHMEXZMARABFES L Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
mRA (T EMmRE) FHUE~FERQ disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing
SHMEHI5E383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) R HIEHI R the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
ERAT RBESMNHER) RAIE2 Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(@), (b), (c)
MR AEFEEEERRSTHAEZ and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
i ENT - the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
—EZF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR®TT AEREBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wWE Fees 192 192
e RLEREYA G Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 20,675 6,032
BRE B Pension scheme contributions 120 112
20,795 6,144
20,987 6,336
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9. EENEETHAEZME 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#) REMUNERATION (continued)
HITES (BERETERAR) KB Executive directors (including the chief executive) and
EHITESE independent non-executive directors
HEEMR RIKETE
wE BEYFE H i & 45 %8
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARBTR AR®BTn AR®TR AR%Txn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZEZEE 2020
HITES ! Executive directors:
BEREE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 4,819 30 4,849
=AML E Mr. Huang Guanlin
(TTE#E#) (Chief executive) - 4,328 30 4,358
BLCMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 4,512 30 4,542
TERKLE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 3,659 30 3,689
BRZHeL Ms. Chen Zhifen - 3,277 - 3,277
- 20,595 120 20,715
BUIEMITESE . Independent non-executive
directors:
BERLE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 40 - 136
RIRAESE Mr. Zhang Bingsheng 96 40 - 136
REELE Mr. Qiu Weiguo - - - =
PBRABSE 4 Mr. Chen Xu - = = =
192 80 - 272
192 20,675 120 20,987
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9. EFERESITHAGZHME o

(&)

BITES (BERBITHRAR) KB

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

Executive directors (including the chief executive) and

ERITESE (& independent non-executive directors (continued)
e EMR RIRETE
e EEyRlES = =488
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
ARBFRT ARETRT ARBTFRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“E-hE 2019
HITES ! Executive directors:
BERELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,266 29 1,295
ERAMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(TTE#E#) (Chief executive) - 1,314 29 1,343
BLCMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 1,129 29 1,158
THEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 1,097 13 1,110
BRZHeL Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,074 12 1,086
- 5,880 112 5,992
BUIEMITESE . Independent non-executive
directors:
BERLE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 38 - 134
RIEELE Mr. Qiu Weiguo - 38 - 38
BRAB 54 Mr. Chen Xu - 38 - 38
RIRELE Mr. Zhang Bingsheng 96 38 - 134
192 152 - 344
192 6,032 112 6,336

RIBEKEERKRBRECHIBIIF
WITESE BT _—F=A—HEE
MeFR TEEFARSITHRAER
RUABERREAMEZ 28

Mr. Qiu Weiguo and Mr. Chen Xu resigned as independent non-
executive directors with effect from March 1, 2021. There was
no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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10. TR EEHMNES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FRNREEReHFNESEBIE=%ES The five highest paid employees during the year included three
BiEEsTERAR) ZTZT—NF: directors including the chief executive (2019: Nil), details of
/) > HErsE B8 L fysEo - F whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
Hegms CE—NF 7R FEART the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2019: five)
EERRSTHRAEBNEESFHNES highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
ZEIEFEBOT executive of the Company are as follows:
ZEZEE “E-NEF
2020 2019
AR%FT AR®TFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e RLEREYA G Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,428 13,167
BRRETEIHER Pension scheme contributions 14 67
9,442 13,234
MENFUTENZIFESERIEFRS The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
THRABRSHNES AZ : paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
pands is as follows:
BE A
Number of employees
—EEF —E—NEF
2020 2019
2,000,001 B TE HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,500,000/ 7 - 1
2,500,001 B TE HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
3,000,0007 75 - 1
3,000,001 B5E HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000
3,500,000/ 7T - 3
4,500,001 B E HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000
5,000,000/ 71 1 -
6,000,001 BT E HKD®6,000,001 to HKD6,500,000
6,500,0007 75 1 -
2 5
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11. BAKREF 11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
bt St 3> 5 —E—nF
2020 2019
ARBEFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RiEEEm&xP I Charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
—IRIREF =R — Retirement benefit contributions 489,551 516,852

AEERPEREZZ2BES ZRA
BHZZEHBNFEN 2 RINEFE
PRRIE > IRz E5T 8 AERBAFY
ZRBEERBAHERZEEH TR
ZETEDHAE UREET LEREA
i WRAEBBNE RS-

7 £ B 7R AR 3% 58 I 1% 2 AR = 5T 8RB
REBRGERSEARRETEZE
E2HE—BAREH-REE - HRIRE
BEAHEZREB DL WRE
BIREFERNERLZAFRIESE
mERMG e BREFECEEFABIL
BEZESN BXAEENEEDRE
BoAEBRZEBREMRRNEBETFE
EHEMFE T2 BIRES -

RRBEIEAAEBEEMNLIZEZE
BB AB ERNRIEER S R TR R
BN BN A EEEA
REEHEMREZ AEREENE
AR R & A 5 B itk (FRE fK) o

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salaries of employees,
subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant
government authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution scheme,
the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou Cambodia, Dagian Cambodia, Rong Win, Marvel
Garment, Gain Lucky Vietnam and Worldon Vietnam, wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia
and Vietnam, are required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant local authorities.
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11.

12.

BAEH &
RRPIEMA L2 2 EHBABDES
EAPIR B EERPY AR E AR
PIRERBRERHEFLET S8
2

B SRRt 2 (RSN » RE B B A AR
HBR KRB BN A EFEATEZEE-

FRiS#
HE S BER-F-NET A
S —HLEEZEREEEEN

AN I

11.

12.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuead)

Buddies Macao and Master Macao, wholly-owned subsidiaries
incorporated in Macao, are required to contribute a certain
amount to the retirement benefit scheme as stipulated by the
relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond the contributions in respect of the
above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are:

—EEF —Z—NEF

2020 2019

AR#F ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FHRZ BHFER Current Hong Kong profits tax 6,972 25,076

BNz EEATEINIR Current overseas withholding tax 4,606 4,418

2 B HFIER Current Vietnam profits tax 67,484 -

B2 BHAFER Current Macao profits tax 2,042 -
FEAE B Current Mainland China corporate

PRigin (T EF1ER) income tax (“CIT") 302,898 498,677

IRIEFRIA (MI5E30) Deferred taxation (note 30) 45,779 85,036

429,781 613,207

REMERENBEBZE —ANNE
BETHR) F8fF > X AR EEREHRES
BMESRTHREAE BEFBLEXL
PIH AR B HHEEBFEFE WA
Wi S Ig E AR

EAMERBRERNBEBEEN MG
FERIEF116.5% (ZT—HFE
16.5%) MR KR EHE > AR EIR
S KRB ABBERERARZZS—1/
TEZTZRNFEERINER AR
IR E S - A A B 2,000,000 7T (=
T —F4E © 2,000,000 7T) B FEER AR A
TI28.25% MM T > 7 THIERR
FIESR3%16.5%BI R KR o

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits,
income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its
operations.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for the Company which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
effective from the year of assessment 2019/2020. The first
HKD2,000,000 (2019: HKD2,000,000) of assessable profits of
the Company are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%.
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12. FR1§1R = 12. INCOME TAX (continued)

288

RABERESEMRILIZWE RS
BABMAEN RARZENB AT
REBERZESTESEME (REE
MMER) BN EBRE L EET
ERER-

RRBARTEIMAR L ZME LA
¥20% (ZE—N5FE 1 20%) IR R BN FR
B -RBERIBELRERER > BTH
BEARERERENEERNFEERS
BRAFER -BRFRERNBARR
RERETEEEEERNT)BHRE R
FANFTISAR > B R (F H SR I AR 12
T

RABEEMBRIZHBELASRELD S
M ERLFIRMIREI0% (ZF—N
F:130%) MR EBAEEZERRFE
BMPTS K - BN FER AR B LR RN
H A A £ R AR O E A
PRSI -

REmEEMRIZ M EARBERRE
20%BIMFT ISR - MIBWm AR KA
B ETHE QB ZBRERFE10%HE
MFF SR tboh > ETHEB AT ENE
P ERRBMFT SN R ERNERR
H50%Fr1F75

RECRPIBRAR L BEERPINAEF
EERRHIORPIFER - BEERM

(FRRPFIEMA IS — BB R E)
ARPRPIEENBRREFL12%
IR RGPS

BREPEARANMBEEEMTRE
(TR ERBRE)  STERBEAL
BN FAARERRUAIZ26%Z M
KR IRBEMEERSREEE) o —
BNBEARDNESMRMERE (T
RifEE) BN - HEEE T —NF
—R—BE=FFZHA15%ZMERE
BiR%-

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (but only a registered office) or carry on any business
in the BVI.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia,
are subject to income tax at a rate of 20% (2019: 20%). Under
the laws and regulations of Cambodia, certain subsidiaries
are entitled to an exemption from income tax for the first four
profit-making years. No provision for Cambodia income tax has
been made as the subsidiaries either had no assessable profits
arising in Cambodia or were entitled to an exemption from
income tax during the year.

The subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of
Taxation in Japan, is subject to income tax at a rate of 30%
(2019: 30%) of the assessable profits arising in Japan. No
provision for income tax has been made as the subsidiary had
no assessable profits arising in Japan during the year.

The subsidiaries incorporated in Vietnam, are subject to
income tax at a rate of 20%. Under the laws and regulations
of Vietnam, certain subsidiaries are entitled to enjoy a lower
profits tax rate of 10%. Furthermore, certain subsidiaries are
entitled to an exemption from income tax for four years and a
50% reduction for the nine years thereafter.

Pursuant to Macao’s relevant tax legislations, Buddies Macao
is exempted from Macao Complementary Tax during the
current year. Master Macao, the other subsidiary incorporated
in Macao is subject to income tax at a rate of 12% of the
accessible profits arising in Macao.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries
as determined for the year in accordance with the New CIT
Law are subject to tax at a rate of 25% on their assessable
income. A subsidiary is qualified as a High-New Technology
Enterprise (“HNTE”), and is entitled to a concessionary rate
of income tax at 15% for three years commencing 1 January
2019.
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12. FRi5# =

BHE_Z_FFER_ZFT—NFE+H
—t+—HIERREE  RIBERZ AT
FEFEUFEIEAREZ RBENHIR

12. INCOME TAX (continued)
A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as

wr: follows:
—EEF —Z—NEF
2020 2019
AR#F ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI BIF Profit before tax 5,512,426 5,571,743
DUEEME25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
(ZZ2—NF 1 25%) (2019: 25%)
STEZRNE 1,378,107 1,392,936
BEBEREIM T Lower tax rates for specific jurisdictions or
B PIEE 2 BRIERE enacted by local authorities (1,044,705) (853,791)
HU A EBREN Adjustments in respect of current tax of
FHE previous periods (16,675) (7,185)
FE (L — R B A B ) Profits attributable to an associate (1,568) (1,454)
BERBUTA Income not subject to tax (29) (1,299)
AEMNMREZH Expenses not deductible for tax 5,104 3,177
BRI Overseas withholding tax 4,606 4,418
FRRERZNIERIB Tax losses not recognised during the year 105,446 76,906
AU B R R Utilisation of previously unrecognised
RIEES 18 tax losses (505) (501)
429,781 613,207
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13. B2 13. DIVIDENDS
—EEHE —E—-NF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHE— &R @ A20.907 7T Interim — HKDO0.90 (2019: HKDO0.90)
(Z=—H4F :0.90/%7c) per ordinary share 1,235,739 1,217,340
BRI E — Proposed final - HKD1.10
SRE®ER1.108T (2019: HKD1.00) per ordinary share
(ZZ2— N4 :1.008T) 1,391,623 1,346,587
2,627,362 2,563,927

AEEZHKRBREABERTR
RREERRBEFAG Lt

14. BACIEBRKREITEALRE
LEREF

SERELABANLRESATZERR
EEEAEBGERNBURERE %
T @RI F9%01,503,222,397 5%

ZE— R 1 1,503,222,397) =t
%o

14.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,503,222,397 (2019: 1,503,222,397) in
issue during the year.
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14. B ARG EERIGHEIZBEAE  14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

HEREF @ TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)
HE_Z - ZHF+"HA=+—HKZ The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
E-NEF+_B=+—HIEEFEE K& during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
EwEEBTEHEELE 2 EETER 2019.
fi% o
BREARBERA ZTEWT . The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on:
el Earnings
ZEIEHF —Z—hE
2020 2019
AREFT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

SAEEREARAREERN  Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
FIRBz 8 BB of the parent used in the basic and

A ARAA]E diluted earnings per share calculation 5,106,736 5,095,206
&% Shares
B #E
Number of shares
—EEHE —E—-hEF
2020 2019

SAEESREARREERF]  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

PRz BB used in the basic and diluted earnings
AT 8 per share calculation 1,503,222,397 1,503,222,397
BRER Earnings per share
ZEZEHF —E-hEF
2020 2019
AR®TT AR
RMB RMB
BEARRK#E Basic and diluted 3.40 3.39
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15. Y E BB R

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BER &
BF e BHIA EERE EEIR Eeh
Furniture
Plant and and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery Vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR AREFR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-NE+”ZB=+—H At 31 December 2019 4,346,881 3,824,839 373,307 131,446 915,841 9,592,314
A - Cost:
RZE-EE-A-H At 1 January 2020 5,929,156 7,062,474 504,853 380,633 915,841 14,792,957
"E Additions 76,757 406,083 16,455 33,123 1,657,659 2,190,077
e Disposals (66,985)  (151,715) (4.944)  (24978)  (273,786)  (522,409)
a5 Transfers 563606 647,488 13,959 8279 (1,261,153  (27,731)
ERERVEE Transfers to intangible assets - - - - (10) (10)
ERHE Exchange realignment (146,486) (175,199) (23,237) (5,302) (42,115) (392,339)
RZEZEF+"H=1+—H At 31 December 2020 6,356,137 7,789,131 507,086 391,755 996,436 16,040,545
RE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-EF-A—H At 1 January 2020 1,582,275 3,237,635 131,546 249,187 - 5,200,643
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year 341,534 550,677 39,540 42,728 - 974,479
HE Disposals (44,943) (124,641) (4,126) (18,289) - (191,999)
e Transfers (27,731) 2,899 - (2,899) - (27,731)
ERHE Exchange realignment (20,902) (55,406) (2,403) (2,955) - (81,666)
RZEZFE+IA=1—H  At31 December 2020 183028 3611164 164557 267,772 - 5813726
RESE: Net book value:
RIZZZE+ZB=+—-H At 31 December 2020 4,525004 4,177,967 342,529 123,983 996,436 10,166,819
REFE: Net book value:
RZE—-N\E+”-B=+—H At 31 December 2018 3,670,315 3,568,297 206,647 131,464 426,001 8,002,724
P - Cost:
RZE-hE-A—H At 1 January 2019 5,101,931 6,450,794 323,318 369,924 426,001 12,671,968
HE Additions 21,502 414,480 334,587 383,843 1,773,086 2,577,498
e Disposals (180,005 (118,151  (161,751) (37,642) - (497,549)
a5 Transfers 917,192 266,306 4197 12,707 (1,289,181) (88,779)
BREOFRAEESE Transfers from right-of-use assets 30,300 - - - - 30,300
BREEVEE Transfers to intangible assets - - - - (772) (772)
BRAE Exchange realignment 38,236 49,045 4,502 1,801 6,707 100,291
RZZ-AETZB=+—H A1 December 2019 5920156 7062474 504853 380633 915841 14792957
ZENE ! Accumulated depreciation:
RZZE-nE—-RB-H At 1 January 2019 1431616 2,882,497 116,671 238,460 - 4,669,244
FENMERE Depreciation provided during the year 325,885 526,343 34,583 46,547 - 933,358
e Disposals (175608  (100,145) (20,304) (36,736) - (332883
@ Transfers (5,200) (83,579) - - - (88,779)
ERHEE Exchange realignment 5,582 12,519 686 916 - 19,703
RZE—HhE+”-B=1—H At 31 December 2019 1,582,275 3,237,635 131,546 249,187 - 5,200,643
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-NE+”-B=+—H At 31 December 2019 4,346,881 3,824,839 373,307 131,446 915,841 9,592,314
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15.

16.

ME - -BER=E @

AZEZTE+ZRA=T—H K&
BZBF BMERRETREER (CF
—NE+ZA=+—H 8-

REABREAH AEBEAHEETIET
RBEFMARD ZEBFR_ZZF
+ZBE=1+—HEEFELBOAR
#1,637,458,5107c (ZE—HFE . A
K #1,694,008,0007T) ° A A B EEHR
AEREBARGETEREE RER
FMEF -ARABEENABAH LIS
BEAEHAERAR _S_FTE+_1
=—t+—BHNHBRREEAFE-

HE

AEEMEEBEEMEANZEL
W BFREMBEYEEEIEEE
G -AEECHAEEARSHEELS
HAEH — BRI TAN AR BHB30E
50F > MiREZE L MEENKRER 2
BB A MERRIE - EFHERHE
HE B R3E20F - HthHEY X 897H
HBER12ERHUT > K/ HER B
BEEHRE - —RMs ' c&EA AH
AERLOUNNTHEERDBREEE -

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 31 December 2020, there were no mortgages over
buildings, plant and machinery of the Group (31 December
2019: Nil).

As at the date of this report, the Group was in the process
of applying for the title certificates of certain of its buildings
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,637,458,510 as at 31 December 2020(2019:
RMB1,694,008,000). The directors of the Company are of the
view that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy
and use the above-mentioned buildings. The directors of the
Company are also of the opinion that the aforesaid matters
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position as at 31 December 2020.

LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land,
buildings and other leasehold properties used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 30 to 50 years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between 3 and 20 years. Other leasehold properties generally
has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of
low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
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16. & = 16. LEASES (continued)
(a) FRAEEE (a) Right-of-use assets
FRAEEFRAEEENREE The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
REBUWT ! and the movements during the year are as follows:
HELH 1g¥F Ht
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
ARETTT ARETTT AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ATEZTFE—F—H  At1 January 2020 1,390,082 144,758 1,534,840
wE Additions 170,803 - 170,803
RE Disposals - (1,777) (1,777)
WEER Depreciation charge (39,120) (26,389) (65,509)
EREE Exchange realignment (44,437) (8,365) (52,802)
SRR At 31 December 2020
+ZA=+—H 1,477,328 108,227 1,585,555
RIE—AF—FE—H At1January 2019 1,200,501 250,805 1,451,306
wE Additions 213,875 19,708 233,583
RE Disposals - (48,588) (48,588)
EEEYE  ERRZME  Transfers to property,
plant and equipment - (80,300) (830,300)
TEER Depreciation charge (35,356) (49,240) (84,596)
ERHE Exchange realignment 11,062 2,373 13,435
RIE—NEF At 31 December 2019
+ZA=+—H 1,390,082 144,758 1,534,840
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16. A& =)
(b) HEAEE

FRHEAENREERESHU

16. LEASES (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

o movements during the year are as follows:
—EIEFE ZE-NEF
2020 2019
AR%FT AEREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—HBHRmEE Carrying amount at 1 January 149,736 215,056
WHEE New leases - 19,708
BEE Disposals (1,825) (50,208)
FANEIHNRANE Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 5,332 8,191
NEN Payments (29,144) (45,425)
PE R AR Exchange realignment (8,771) 2,414
B+-_B=+—H® Carrying amount at 31 December
AREIE 115,328 149,736
W% Analysed into:
TRENER Current portion 11,407 26,522
IERBNI Non-current portion 103,921 123,214

HESRNEBMA DTN HMBER

RMIFT40I% T o

note 40 to the financial statements.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
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16. A& =

(c)

B 70 5 AE B 70 48 26 FE AR O SRR AN

16. LEASES (continued)

(c)

The amounts recognised

in profit or loss in relation to

™ leases are as follows:
—ETEHF —E-NEF
2020 2019
AREFT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEaEZHE Interest on lease liabilities 5,332 8,191
FTRAEEEZ Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
TEER 65,509 84,596
BREHREE Expense relating to short-term leases
KR TAREAR and other leases with remaining
+ZA=+—H8% lease terms ended on or before
ZHIAERD 31 December
HMEEMNMX 6,285 21,292
EHHEREBEE Expense relating to leases of
WX low-value assets 4,502 13,335
FEEEaER Variable lease payments not included in
st AR the measurement of lease liabilities
EIE-LiEN-ENEN - 26,667
EEFRAEEEER Gain on disposal of items of
Z Wee right-of-use assets (48) (1,620)
PE R = %R 3 %R Foreign exchange differences, net - 41
18w e ER BV AR 2R Total amount recognised in profit or loss 81,580 152,502

(d HERSRHMARTEREE KR (d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
MEEEENRKFRRLE D 5

T B 7 SR 3% M 733 (b) 40K B -

relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 33(b) and 40, respectively, to the
financial statements.
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7. BICEE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
s ki mat
Water use

Software right Total
ARBFT ARETT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

REFE: Net carrying amount:

RZE—NEF At 31 December 2019
+-A=+—H 47,093 54,288 101,381
BN Cost:

K2 -_EF—H—H At 1 January 2020 72,910 129,000 201,910
NE Additions 21,324 - 21,324
BEATRIR Transfers from construction in

progress 10 - 10
HE Disposals (7,752) - (7,752)
FERAE Exchange realignment (63) - (63)
AN_ETERE At 31 December 2020
+-B=+—H 86,429 129,000 215,429
Kt Accumulated amortisation:

A_E"TFE—-F—H At 1 January 2020 25,817 74,712 100,529
FEBHEE Amortisation provided during the year 7,427 6,451 13,878
HE Disposals (3,978) - (3,978)
B R A% Exchange realignment (47) - (47)

R_BZEF At 31 December 2020
+-BA=+—H 29,219 81,163 110,382
IREFE - Net carrying amount:
PR TTE At 31 December 2020
+-B=+—H 57,210 47,837 105,047
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17. BB E &

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

ey Fa oK “Et
Water Use
Software Right Total
ARBFT AREF T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REFE: Net carrying amount:
ATE-N\EF At 31 December 2018
+-A=+—H 38,936 60,738 99,674
B Cost:
RZE—hF—HF—H At 1 January 2019 59,261 129,000 188,261
NE Additions 13,625 - 13,625
BEATRIR Transfers from construction in
progress 772 - 772
HE Disposals (782) - (782)
FERAE Exchange realignment 34 - 34
RZE—NEF At 31 December 2019
+ZB=+—H 72,910 129,000 201,910
Kt Accumulated amortisation:
A ZE-NEF—A—H At 1 January 2019 20,325 68,262 88,587
FEBHEE Amortisation provided during the year 6,245 6,450 12,695
HE Disposals (782) - (782)
ERAE Exchange realignment 29 - 29
RIE—NF At 31 December 2019
+ZA=+—H 25,817 74,712 100,529
IREFE - Net carrying amount:
P -E—hE At 31 December 2019
+ZA=+—H 47,093 54,288 101,381
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18. R—HE AT ZIK’E 18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
bt St 3> 5 —E—nF
2020 2019
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BLEEFRE Share of net assets 14,319 18,181

BERUAEBEMNHBMEDTERRAE (M2
BIF ) AEEE—FHBMEAT > WK
RIEREB A - A EBRZBE
NBZFREBBBAQT —REMNE
RNEFH Z30%M D °

TRALAERREAD ZHMBER !

Ningbo Avery Dennison Shenzhou Knitting and Printing Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Avery”) is an associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group. The Group’s
shareholding in the associate represents the 30% equity shares
held through a subsidiary of the Company.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the
Group’s associate:

-3 3 —2-NF
2020 2019
ARETT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
n—HA—H At 1 January 18,181 12,365
FE(GBt= A B EER B Share of the associate’s profit
Hit=2ma and other comprehensive income
for the year 6,270 5,816
ENBIMAEETIKA  Dividends declared by the associate
BN AEENEER attributable to the Group for the year (10,132) -
EBERBEATIREL  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
IRE{EARZE investment in the associate 14,319 18,181
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19. EERRAAMEHEEEE  19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
sFARMEEN D ZE@m R AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

= COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
—ECEE —E-hEF
2020 2019
AR®Fx AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREFEDN Unlisted equity investments, at fair value
JELHHEREE 720 -

RIBE_ZTF+—F > REBLERE
AR #720,0007c U 88 #1710 = & 55 B
BERAD (THE®BE)) 0.9%H KR

Be

In November 2020, the Group acquired 0.9% equity shares
of Zhejiang Zhongying Wind Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongying Wind”) at a total consideration of RMB720,000.

i EnRESTHEBEEREA
AESFEBEH St AR MEE R
REEEDIRZEREBRBMLEE -

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

20. 78 20. INVENTORIES
—ECEF —E—hE
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R4 Raw materials 1,194,287 1,070,080
85 Work in progress 2,217,369 2,233,058
SN Finished goods 1,499,560 2,081,715
4,911,216 5,384,853
B Provision (99,782) (102,448)
4,811,434 5,282,405
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21. BEIRERA R ERE 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
_— —vE :><_jh|4£'5
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEU AR AR = i Trade and bills receivables 4,167,602 3,648,810

AERARRZESEREIBUEE
RETT EEMANER LA -S4k
EEEEERBRSARARTER K&
B E EERRMRBRRGHRTE

FAEFRIFEEMREAEEER

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables

ZHE FEBIRR R BIE AR FI B o are non-interest-bearing.
REEHFR RIBEZEHAGTEZEW An ageing analysis of the trade and bill receivables as at the
IR ZHRERE DT - end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

k- Jant- 3> 5 —E—HE

2020 2019

ARBTT AR®TFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—EAX Within three months 4,134,203 3,596,677

—@EAMUE Over three months 33,399 52,133

4,167,602 3,648,810

WEBHALRRESEREZEIK
EEME’Z%%ZE&%’%%*&&DT :

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

—EEHF —E—NE

2020 2019

AR¥T T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FREHAT B Neither past due nor impaired 4,100,398 3,590,370
B DR =@ B Less than three months past due 55,271 34,955
BEA=E B L Lt Over three months past due 11,933 23,485
4,167,602 3,648,810
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21.

FEWBRF KR E 1 @)
Sk 360 HA B L (2 E AT R I B O R AT 4
MR ERAR-

BEAERAEZEEMIBERETE
UERER ZEERRAERMTRZ
EERREF -RBEBTERAMNELRE
Ko RARBERR N HREEERT
BEAEY BZEERDEERTE
glo MEAMZ S AR IRTAHRE
BEEEE-

R+ZA=+—8H BRERRRREN
THE®ESHE !

21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience and forward-
looking information, the directors of the Company were of
the opinion that no provision for expected credit losses was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

At 31 December, the trade and bills receivables were
denominated in the following currencies:

—E-EE “E-NEF
2020 2019

Fl HEARE R HaARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Fr ARETT Fr AREBTT
in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB’000
ET Usb 381,203 2,487,313 305,808 2,133,375
AR RMB 1,680,289 1,515,435
4,167,602 3,648,810

BWERARBEZREEEERARE
RE-

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
approximate to their fair values.
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22, FATRRIER HAE WA 22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
—EZTHF —E—NE
2020 2019
AR®TF AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BPHA Current
FBNMIEBERZE Prepayments and deposits
—BEREMR - Purchase of raw materials 258,974 61,891
—BEYE -BEX - Purchase of items of property,

REIEE plant and equipment 213,019 168,438
—REFREMIENR - CIT advance payment 85,372 -
—HE®RE - Rental deposits 34,998 47,093
—H - Others 24,137 28,559

JFE U Bz BT UK [B] 34 (B 7R VAT receivable and recoverable 190,097 77,903

FEWHI 2 Interest receivable 93,772 83,339

H IR IE Other receivables 57,291 68,201

957,660 535,424

—EZTHF —E—NE

2020 2019

AREF ARF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

JEBNEA Non-current

REBTENFRIE Long-term prepayments* 1,850 1,850
it E EE A AT R E o L AR R None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
BEZE/MEEMTIAY E XN The financial assets included in the above balances relate to

ZEWRIERR -

AN MIEREMEWARIAZ IRE(E A

HRARERS- receivables approximate to their fair values.
* EHBEMRERIMEREZ BN * Long-term prepayments represent the prepayments for land use
Ig o rights.

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of the prepayments and other
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23.

24,

BARBEFEHEEFAE
mZEMEE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—EEF —Z—NEF
2020 2019
AR#F ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEREBEETH Financial products issued by
E Rl @ financial institutions 2,425,932 1,053,233

Eil < BRE GRS R R B A 2 SR AT
BTHNEMER HRZFERNEY
RERBUFEBRESTRIE > KE
BB DBABANREFEREY
SAABEZERMEE-FHRBEZSE
MEMNEBERRENAGERSMC
6% MEEBEBAET LHRA
BTHERTFAMIRZZHE

HthERMEE

The above financial products were wealth management
products issued by banks in Mainland China. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows were not solely
payments of principal and interest. The applicable size test
results in respect of the purchases of these financial products
are all below 5% and thus these purchases are not subject to
the notifiable transaction requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

k- Jant- 3> 5 —ZE—hnF
2020 2019
ARYFT AR®TFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEREEEITH Financial products issued by
TRIEM® financial institutions - 200,000

R_Z—hE+_RA=+—H0'&TH
RSB TNSRERD REBH
AN - RBEBENIEN ZE
ETRERAREIKREFHRFRE

As at 31 December 2019, the financial products were issued
by financial institutions which were stated at amortised cost.
Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, these financial
products are capital and return guaranteed.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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25. NE& HIBITEGRTERESE 25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME

DEPOSITS

—EZTHF —Z—hnF
2020 2019
AR®TF AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R & KIRTTAE ER Cash and bank balances 5,802,800 2,466,184
EHER Time deposits 6,795,936 7,405,542
12,598,736 9,871,726

B R TER A Less: Bank deposits with an initial term of
—@BZIRITER over three months (2,961,676) (4,710,830)
IRITREAEHREFEN Long-term time deposits at banks (1,410,000) (100,000)
BERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,227,060 5,060,896

R|ERFR AEBUAREFEZIR
ERIBTEREEREROAARE
2,912,217,0007c (ZE—NF+ZA
=+—H : AR#¥4,441,024,0007T) ©
ARBEATTEHRBRABEMERK R
T > AR 15 o B oA B 2 SO B AR B R A
E-EERNESEETE  NEBEH
EEBEREOTLETERER 2R
TRARBRRAHME

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB2,912,217,000 (31 December
2019: RMB4,441,024,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

ERRBRTZRERBTZ2EHER
FZDUF ENFZZBEENA B o ERRTF A
—BHEBBEAAEZAEHREEE R
FAERZBNEIRESERME » Wi immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
FECEERF REEF B o IRIT4ERE at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are
FARELEBAOGZHKZEERETIER deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
Ho-ReEMRRELEEBYZREESEER
AEEE

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and 36 months depending on the

default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.
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25. NE& HIBITEGRTERESE 25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME

(#) DEPOSITS (continuea)

RekBcEEBEYEELAEEFRE
ERIPABB=EBEMNERTENR
RIE_EE+-_HA=+—H K&
EFFERIFHBE=EE BA#E
FELBMBITHER TERERLQHN
IRITEHA AR®632,000,0007T (=
E—NE+_RBR=+—H: AR
460,000,0007T) ©

26. FE{TER®X 26. TRADE PAYABLES

REBSHR REEZERFER/IR

Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months held by the Group. As at
31 December 2020, bank deposits held by the Group with
original maturity of more than three months, which can be
withdrawn on demand without prior notice to banks, were
RMB632,000,000 (31 December 2019: RMB460,000,000).

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

ERE DT - reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—EZTHF —Z—hnF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AEREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
~NEA R Within six months 1,024,298 855,313
NEBE—F Six months to one year 12,158 12,653
—FEEWME One year to two years 13,953 6,094
MAELL Over two years 9,427 6,884
1,059,836 880,944

PR BRARA ST B - R AR Z IR E 42
HAREREE-

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.

The carrying

amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair values.
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27. 8 &FE 27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
bt St 3> 5 —E—nF
2020 2019
ARBTT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
aHasE Contract liabilities 6,607 33,841
SHEGEIEMHAREE RFTWES Contract liabilities represent short-term advances received for
KHRTAEWRRIE © knitwear products.
28. HMFE(I I K BT RIA 28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
k- Jant- 3> 5 —ZE—hnF
2020 2019
ARBTT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
fESTRESZ Accrued expenses 863,299 810,223
BEME -BEM Payables for purchase of property,
BB ERIE plant and equipment 58,788 131,661
BREEBREIREZ Payables and guarantee deposits related to
FEFRIB R (ReE & construction projects 81,600 45,652
HERE Rental deposits = 9,758
HMERIE Other taxes payable 285,401 85,531
Hih Others 102,060 96,900
1,391,148 1,179,725
HME RIE R EHRIBEZ BREE A The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
BEAAEBEHRE HMMEMNHKIERGTE approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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29. st ERITEE 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
ZECEE E-NE
2020 2019
ik RS
(E) %8 ARETR (E) IHR ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
E Current
ROER-RIER Bank loans - unsecured HIBOR HIBOR
(REREN) (due for repayment +0.6/ +0.70-0.90
on demand) 1M-LIBOR /IM-LIBOR
+0.55-1.8 +1.1 2020
/3M-LIBOR 2021- /6M-LIBOR
+0.75 2024* 3,398,415 +0.75 2024* 678,670
ROER-HBIER Bank loans - unsecured 25-32
(BERERN) (due for repayment /HIBOR
on demand) 2.1 -3.35/ +0.55-0.68
HIBOR /IM-LIBOR
+0.55 +2.2
/AM-LIBOR /3M-LIBOR
+0.5-0.6 2021 2,812,014 +2.2 2020 2,513,494
6,210,429 3,192,164
FERE Non-current
RTED-RIER Bank loans - unsecured 1M-LIBOR 1M-LIBOR
+1.8 2023 97,874 +1.8 2023 113,675
RTER-BAER Bank loans - unsecured 1M-LIBOR
+1-18 2020
/3M-LIBOR
3.25 2022 300,000 +1.8 2024 662,739
397,874 776,414
6,608,303 3,968,578
* ZERTEESFARDEBERRRA * These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as the
BIRTTHRBRBE N IR ZRMUIR banks have an overriding right to call for cash repayment on
FEM o demand at any time.
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29.

SERITEE @

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continueq)
—EZTHF —Z—hnF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR Analysed into:
ERTHHREERZ Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
IRITERRES
—FERFFER Within one year or on demand 6,210,429 3,192,164
B _F In the second year 300,000 313,929
EZFEEFERE In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEMFBIETN) 97,874 462,485
6,608,303 3,968,578
@ WN—ZE_Z=FE+_A=+— (@) As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing balances of

HOi#ETEEEFNARE
3,527,583,000 (Z&—H
F+ZA=+—8B: AR
1,276,978,0007T) U=t E
# AR #1,430,720,00070 (Z &
—hE+ZBE=+—H: AE®K
1,791,600,0007t) U BTt B K&
# AR #1,650,000,0007t (Z &
—hE+ZBE=+—H: AE®K
900,000,0007T) U A FRHEEEHE ©

approximately RMB3,527,583,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,276,978,000) were denominated in United States
dollars, of which approximately RMB1,430,720,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,791,600,000) were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximately
RMB1,650,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB900,000,000) were denominated in RMB.
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30. IEFEFRIA
EERAEEREMERERNZ B |

(a)

30. DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows:

RERIEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
—EEF —E—AF
2020 2019
ARBT T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TRBEERE Impairment of financial assets
w—B—H At 1 January 12,054 13,696
RAREEERFTAS Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(0BR) ZRIER IR to the statement of profit or loss
during the year 1,547 (1,642)
R+—B=+—H At 31 December 13,601 12,054

A_E_EE+_"_FB=+—H>
FEBERPEAE RIBFET
BErUEEEZRTREEER
# AR 11,156,259,0007t (Z &
—hEFE+ZBE=+—H: AR
747,122,00070) R —E AR &F
WEIER > B LUEIE R FERR IR F)
HeoAEBUW AL ERIBAIR
MRIELEREBEEE FREZHER
AR KA BEB BRRR AU
HZEMIBERIE -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had accumulated
tax losses of approximately RMB1,156,259,000 (31
December 2019: RMB747,122,000) arising in Mainland
China, the Kingdom of Cambodia and Vietnam, which
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these tax losses as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which these tax losses can be utilised.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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30. IREMRIA =

(b)

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RERIBEERE (b) Deferred tax liabilities
—EEF —E—AF
2020 2019
ARBET T ARBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ITERFEH Depreciation allowance in excess of
ERFENESE related depreciation
*—H—H At 1 January 179,185 95,791
RAFEERKITR Deferred tax charged to the statement of
I SRR 1B profit or loss during the year 47,326 83,394
R+-—B=+—H At 31 December 226,511 179,185
RIEFREEEMERE R Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%

ZNF-B—HELBEBRR_-ZF
TLtFE+_A=+—BH%®BZE
o RABRKERILZBIMNEE
TEEMBEIRZKREAFBI0%TE
iR - WP ARERBINREE
PREBEAREAERBHE A
EARBZEANRI -SAEER
EOEAMERE% MBI
KRBT NF_A -+ "HEM
F12(2008)5615% > STEAM IS — &
TtHE+_A=+—HNREE
MERMREHFEZRSER R
BARTRINGR

RWZIEZEF+ZA=+—H>
MERAEBMNPPBEKRERILZ
WEAB BMITENRZKE
&N B TR0 R TR
ERIB-EERA —?ﬁﬁfﬂ:’“
BERARBRDRZERMZ
AEMEARAR - RIZTIEF+Z
B=+—HB > ®BEERFEKX
FEMY B AR AR M AR ERIEL
MEBBRZERNEBEHOS
AR #17,941,840,00070 (Z &
—hE+-"RB=+—8: AR
17,479,682,0007%) °

withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB17,941,840,000 at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB17,479,682,000).
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31. & 31. SHARE CAPITAL
&R Shares
ZEIBFE “E-hE
2020 2019
TET AREFR TET AREFR
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
BETRERE Issued and fully paid:
1,503,222,3978% 1,503,222,397 (2019;
(ZE2—nE: 1,503,222,397) ordinary
1,503,222,397k%) P& shares of HKD0.10 each
EE010BTZ EBR 150,322 151,200 150,322 151,200

32. (#E

32. RESERVES

AEEREARBEEE HESE
RESHE 2T M RE H2208E 5
aREEDE-

(i)

(i)

(iii)

EEBGBARE (MEERGLAR
EA))

R 3 P EA B A e P B A B B a8
NBZHABEZERME SHEKX
BEWB AT AR RBREAR
FstRABEEZHRREFNE10%
BAZLIERBLAEES BEEA
ARBEEINFMRAZ50%%
oW EERBLABBEAARN
WINEERA > EEAREEZER
BARRDREMREZ25%

BE SR B

b 52 0 B et 8 95 (R A 558 SN B
RBAZHMBRREEZERZE
LED

Hitf#
HihEmis S RRIERENER
TOBOHENB AT FMESH
REBBRRZ B HAIFEHMEE
mAREESD -

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 220 of

the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China subsidiaries,
each of the Mainland China subsidiaries is required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Part of the SSR may be converted
to increase paid-up capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the excess of the consideration
received for partial disposal of a subsidiary without loss
of control, over the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests as at the transaction date.



RAFSER R M 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

3. RERERERME

(a)

METHENZAEED

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
2020

HEaE RITER
Lease
liabilities Bank loans
AR®FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A ZEZEF—F—H At 1 January 2020 149,736 3,968,578
MEREREL 2EH Changes from financing
cash flows (23,812) 2,639,725
i’élJJ:*ElE Termination of leases (1,825) -
BEH Foreign exchange movement (8,771) -
5F'J BERx% Interest expense 5,332 102,918
NEEAKEIESHE DN B Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows (5,332) (102,918)
N _ECEF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 115,328 6,608,303
“Z-NEF 2019
HEas IRITEMN
Lease
liabilities Bank loans
AR®TF T AR®TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
nZ_Z2—n%—HF—H At 1 January 2019 215,056 2,516,749
MERERELEZEH Changes from financing
cash flows (37,234) 1,451,829
s New leases 19,708 -
BIFFEE Termination of leases (50,208) -
PE R H) Foreign exchange movement 2,414 -
FMEREX Interest expense 8,191 80,987
NEAKSRSHEZEMFIE  Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows (8,191) (80,987)
RZE2—nF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 149,736 3,968,578
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FEeRERERME @ 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continuea)

(b) THERERHEEE (b) Total cash outflow for leases
FARERERNEERESR The total cash outflow for leases included in the
AEERUH statement of cash flows is as follows:

ZEIEHF
2020
ARET T
RMB’000
REEEHENRN Within operating activities (16,119)
REEEEA Within investing activities (170,803)
REEEEA Within financing activities (23,812)
(210,734)
34. FAREE 34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
N_ZZZ2F+"_A=+—H &&H As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant
TmEBEARRAEE contingent liabilities.
35. EERNR 35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
A CETEFE+ B =+—H > KxEE As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no pledge of assets.
W& ER
36. i 36. COMMITMENTS

(a) FTEENBEHEREUTERK (@) The Group had the following capital commitments at

#7 . the end of the reporting period:
ZEZEF —E-AF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EETAERERE Contracted, but not provided for:
BEME -BENZE Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 915,096 617,291
ST RE Acquisition of land use right 16,405 6,606
931,501 623,897
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37. A LR S

(a)

(b)

TEFFEEEAEZME

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
—ETE —E—NF
2020 2019
AR¥T T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EELEMREEAEME  Remuneration of directors and
senior management 50,947 27,055

EREFERRSTHRABHEZ
E—DHBHNMBRERMFI

BRBALZHERS

PRAMBRREMM G572
SO0 AEBRFERN S HERHA

statements.

Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial

(b) Continuing transactions with related parties

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material

THETTINERRS ! transactions with related parties during the year:
—EEF “E—NF
2020 2019
AREBT T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERENEBEEAR/AS Lease of apparel production properties
(TERNE )~ from Ningbo Shenzhou Properties
HERESEYE Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) * 16,080 7,398
M48 R EETS Purchase of packaging materials from
BERERAT Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
(MEFaERAs) ™ Materials Company Limited
REE S YR (“Huaxi Packaging Company”) ** - 16,016
B2 X7 R Printing service provided by
REENTEARTS Ningbo Avery*** 134,824 121,771
5] B8 57 S FI) Sales and marketing services and
RHHE R EHRS general support services provided to
Mk — g 2 3R AR %5 Ningbo Avery*** 6,456 6,581

Annual Report 2020 £ R



316

B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

37. B ALRS @ 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) HEBMALTZFERS (&) (b) Continuing transactions with related parties
(continued)
* BANEXRARE—BWITE * Shenzhou Properties is controlled by one of the

E S el

» ZEEESAFHAAT %
PITEE MBS

o BH TR ARERBZBER
B RERER 2B A T o
RZu KR EHRAISE14A
ERATENFRHERERS

HEMA T ZRZTREBERR
ABEFERRRHEZARER

Company’s executive directors.

> Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of
one of the Company’s executive directors.

** Ningbo Avery is an associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group. This
transaction does not constitute a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions with the related parties were made
according to the published prices and conditions offered

R ARFRAETT © by the related companies to their major customers.

(c) BRI ALTZRERLEER (c) Outstanding balances with related parties
AEBRBEERBBATBEUTLE The Group had the following balances with its related
B parties:

—EEF —E—AF
2020 2019
AR#F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE IS BE Bk N\ =018 Amounts due from related parties
— BB ZHE — trade related:
BN E % Shenzhou Properties 173 617
8% Ningbo Avery 2,313 2,023
2,486 2,640
FEfS —S Bl A T8 Amount due to a related party
— BB 5 — trade related:
RN E 2 Shenzhou Properties 2,101 -

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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38. MAEHENZzZERMTA

RBEHR SENERITAZEREE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

mr instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EMEE Financial assets
—EEHF 2020
BARE
BAREHE HHEREH
BE#iA HAZE bg 50
Bz 6P TEEZ
EREE EREE EREE st
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at through Financial
fair value other assets at
through comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
G e Trade and bill receivables - - 4,167,602 4,167,602
FABEMTRER Financial assets included in
HMEWHIBE REE prepayments and other receivables - - 151,063 151,063
PRI A L5018 Amounts due from related parties - - 2,486 2,486
BAREEREH Financial assets at fair value through
SABHZERBE profit or loss 2,425,932 - - 2,425,932
EEARANEHEREE Equity investments designated at
FARMEANGZZ fair value through other
BERE comprehensive income - 720 - 720
MeERPE=ER2 Bank deposits with an initial term
RITER of over three months - - 4,371,676 4,371,676
RERRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents - - 8,227,060 8,227,060
2,425,932 720 16,919,887 19,346,539
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38. AR E Dz T A = 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
EWMEE @) Financial assets (continued)
“E-NF 2019
BNSMETE
BE#HFA R H X
BHZ REEZ
EREE TRMEE Hast
Financial
assets Financial
at fair value assets at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
ARETT ARETTT ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEW R R 4 Trade and bills receivables - 3,648,810 3,648,810
StATRNMIAR Financial assets included in
HthEWRIEZ &R EE  prepayments and other receivables - 151,540 151,540
FEUR B B A T F0E Amounts due from related parties - 2,640 2,640
BRANBEERE Financial assets at fair value through
SFABGZERMEE profit or loss 1,053,233 - 1,053,233
HittemEE Other financial assets - 200,000 200,000
MpEZEa=ER2 Bank deposits with an initial term
RITEM of over three months - 4,810,830 4,810,830
R kRLFEY Cash and cash equivalents - 5,060,896 5,060,896

1,053,233 13,874,716 14,927,949

318 BRI B R S [ #2E iR 7 BR /A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



B TSR R MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

38. BB D ZzEMT R @

39.

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
EMEE Financial liabilities
ZEIEHF —ZT—hE
2020 2019
AREFT ARTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RSHEHR A EZ Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Eofi=R
FETER TR Trade payables 1,059,836 880,944
5T A E M RRIE K Financial liabilities included in
FEEtRIE TREaE other payables and accruals 242,448 283,971
FEfT— BB A T RIE Amount due to a related party 2,101 -
FEIIRITTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 6,608,303 3,968,578
HEaE Lease liabilities 115,328 149,736
8,028,016 5,283,229

EMIAZARERARE

& &%

rEBZERTIAREERANE (H
FREEHEAABESEMREERIN W

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

T reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:
IREE [RME
Carrying amounts Fair values
ZEIEE “E-hE BEIEE _"E-AhE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARETT AR®TT ARETR ARETE®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERHEE: Financial assets:
RTRIEHER Long-term time deposits at banks 1,410,000 100,000 1,425,762 99,389
BAREFEEEEHA Financial assets at fair value
BRZEREE through profit or loss 2,425,932 1,053,233 2,425,932 1,053,233
EEARAnEHER Equity investments designated
BEHAEMEZERG at fair value through other
BakE comprehensive income 720 - 720 -
ERafE: Financial liabilities:
STRRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 6,608,303 3,968,578 6,140,251 3,926,688
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30. ERITEHZARBRAMNE  39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

320

=8
BEETE B RESZEY DB
GREBB=EEZBTERME
WA BARESBAESEH AR
SRHEE HM2REE FEIERE
ZiEEMIRZ AT RERE
FEWEIBY SRMEE 5 A tERR
TE R FE 5t 2R IE > < Bl & 18 LUK FE I B8
BATRENA A EREEEERES
TEERRAZZETAREHATIE-

ETMEERBRZAAEBUAZIAR
BREX5Z75 (MIFRENFREE) E
A1 5% TR R Z AR TH75%
RBRIDBREEANE

RTRAEHERKGRBTEEZ
AREDHERRBELUFR EERR
RETHHAZITARKAIREZH
KALFRFRIAR RIS REME -

EERBELANEFEHEH T AHAM
E2ERBDZIFLTRIELENANE
BRTHANZ ZERGE  BEERER
A Ak As A B #6720,0007T ©

AEERENRIFLHRE  FEREAM
RITHITHNEMER - FEEENAA
BUFEREkRBRZ TRZHHEHR &
BMBRREREHERNEFTHEF
EHREZRARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, the current portion of bank deposits with
an initial term of over three months, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, other financial assets, trade and
bills receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and amounts due from related
parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of long-term time deposits at banks and
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income have been
estimated at the most recent transaction price which equals to
the original cost amounting to RMB720,000.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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30. ERITEHZARBRAMNE  39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

B4k &
ARERE R

TRITFEERERMIAZ ARES

sEk

BAREHABEZEE:

R-ZE-_ZEE+-A=+—H

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

BRAUNTHEZRAAENE
Fair value measurement using
EXTHE EXFUER
BARE BARE
(BZH4) (B=%4) a5t
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AE#BFR AE®ETR AE#ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EBEARANEHE Equity investments designated at
B2 AR teENREZ fair value through other
RERE comprehensive income - 720 720
BAREFEEREFTA Financial assets at fair value through
BRCEREE profit or loss 2,425,932 - 2,425,932
2,425,932 720 2,426,652
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30. ERITEHZARBRAMNE  39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

B4k & OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NAERBHR E Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HAAEHEZEE | (& Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
N2 —hhF+HA=+—H As at 31 December 2019
FERAEKX
AR E A
ik
NAEFE
&gt ))
Fair value
measurement
using
Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
AEB®TIT
RMB’000
BAREFEREHtABERZ Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 1,053,233
FREMEEMS S —REAFE 4k During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
ZEBETAANESNEER THEE measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
BEFEHE=ZR(CE—NIEFE ) - into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2019: Nil).

40. HMBEKREEBRRER 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEBZFESRTEGERITER The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
RREURBITER ZEEmMTAEE loans and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of
BEEANEEEEEEMEES K these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
EETEZBEAMEREERER  F operations. The Group has various other financial assets
WEBREEELEZBRERRERE and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade
WU B FEATBRFX © payables, which arise directly from its operations.
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40. B EMEEBEREEEK ® 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

rEEEMIAEELEZFTERRAT The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments

XRR -ERE-EERRNKABE are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and

TRE - EFEERMAPEBRRUETE liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies

ZIEE S > BRABEER T Xt for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

MR B Interest rate risk

AEBFEEMBNEEFHRABTE The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest

BAEEIERPEHEMT (BEHEA rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations

BERERBEXHBR —FEIAE (including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year

BZIRTEE) B which contain a repayment on demand clause) with floating
interest rates.

N _EZEF+ZA=1+—H 4&&H At 31 December 2020, approximately 25% (2019: 23%) of
4925% (ZE—NF 1 23%) Wt EEE the Group's interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed
BEEFEFTR rates.

TRITPIEEMBHAZE ZIERT The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
AEBRRAFNBRBYESEENE possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
BRANESEA S ZHHEDT constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact
on floating rate borrowings.
FRIR Al
i A,
(F#R) &2 GRD)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
ARBTT
RMB’000
—E°EH 2020
WA K LB If interest rate increases 50 (7,546)
WH)ZE T 5H If interest rate decreases (50) 7,546
—N&F 2019
WMF]ZE 5 If interest rate increases 50 (4,162)
WA ETH If interest rate decreases (50) 4,162
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HHERAESIEEERBE @ 40.
kBB LI
AEEEHTEEEAR ZEABK

@LXi?F%Z%%FE%ﬁEEﬂ%Zfﬁ%“
EZBETZHE - REENE8% (°F
— N 1 68%) HHEUINESHE > TIF
DUETIHE Z A EBUEERKStE

—F%@U/‘T—E’:‘iﬁ%,ﬁﬂﬁi’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁﬁ

TEZBERT AEBERRATFEHEE
E&EEEKE\ET“%@HZ@ZWF
o (HREBEEREBEZANENR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 68%
(2019: 68%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign
currencies other than the functional currencies of the operating
units making the sales.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
USD and HKD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in

BFREY) o

the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

SMNEER  HBERRATEZ LA/
L#H/ (FB) #/ (FH) (F#%)~
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase/
foreign profit (decrease) in
currency rate before tax equity*
ARBETR ARETT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ZEZZF 2020
HMARBRETAE If RMB strengthens against USD 5 (330,268) (78,201)
MARBRETERZE If RMB weakens against USD (5) 330,268 78,201
—h&E 2019
MARERETHE If RMB strengthens against USD 5 (80,820) (80,735)
MARBRETRE If RMB weakens against USD (5) 80,820 80,735
—E_E 2020
MARBRAETAE If RMB strengthens against HKD 5 12 71,373
MARERBTEE If RMB weakens against HKD (5) (12) (71,373)
—hE 2019
HMARBRETAE If RMB strengthens against HKD 5 165 80,053
MARERBTEE If RMB weakens against HKD (5) (165) (80,058)

* REBEFIFRIN

*
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40.

HHEEREEEEREE @

EER
rERERNAREERTZE=
ETRG - AEBZHRAFANIZE
EETRBZER W AKBEER
BREF I FERRFEER B
RS BAERE SN 2 IRRER I A
EXe

FEBEMERNEE (ORFAEARRS
FEY VaEFERPAa=-—EAZRTHF
FToRAREFEEEFFARDZE
MEE HMEMEE STARNRUR
T ELAFE WGRR IR 2 SRR & 2 K R Bt
ANLRIBR) 2 EERBRRERZHTE
WoMARERSRBBEERZETIAZ
AREE-

HRAEERENABEEERTFZE
—HETRS ALBAEKRR - EE
EhRBREER /XZHFEE KR
SR - AEEBEETEEETRE
RAAEE20% (ZE—NEF 1 22%) K&
94% (ZE—HNFE : 93%) BWERI KX
ERSNREAEEZEATEARE
ABEF - HRAEEZFERAH AN
RELREAT HBEALEEERLE
BEBREGR Bt AEETYSEIE
EEEFRARR-

AR ERRERBRERRER S
HEKRE— BILUE REBRER
H1RE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits with an
initial term of over three months, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, other financial assets, financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 20% (2019: 22%) and
94% (2019: 93%) of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively. As the major customers of
the Group are all world-famous brand companies, which have
established long-term business relationships with the Group,
concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 21 to the financial statements.
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40. ¥ HFRAMBEBIEEEREE @ 40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BB AR

AEREEBRRADESSE TAR
FETERAR -BEMTATEHS
MTAKSRMEE GIURBERERKAE
B) ZEHBURKEEERH AN RS

REEHR > BBEFT A ERMIR N RE
EorEEsmefZIABBBERA
T

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Z3C%%
2020
~ERE
BEX  ORABA OR+ZRE -ERE mEME st
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6months 12 months years 2 years Total

AE®Tn AEETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00

L Trade payables

EfERFE Other payables
Efi—2B@BALHE Amount due 10 a related party
HEAR Lease liabiiies

HERMEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings

35,588 1,024,298 = = - 1,059,836
242,448 - - - - 242,448
2,101 - - - - 2,101

- 8,062 7,838 14,126 110,918 140,944

- 3709929 1,222,032 836,125 955,677 6,723,763

280,087 4,742,289 1,229,870 860,251 1,066,595 8,169,092
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40. AR EEEERBE @

RBEEAR (E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
Liquidity risk (continued)

ENE
2019

~ERE
BEX  ORAER ORTZER -EmE MENE st

6to

Less than less than 1102 Over

On demand Gmonths 12 months years 2 years Total
AEETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iR Trade payables 25,631 855,313 - - - 680,944
EHERZE Qther payables 283,971 - - - - 283,971
EVREL Lease liabiities - 14,774 14,530 15,514 120,355 165,178
SEEAEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 1,620,483 1,753,785 337,191 502,290 413,749
309,602 2,390,570 1,768,315 362,705 622,645 5,443,837

HAEE
FEEEAEE T B RENESE
AEEFESE A NREBRITE
AT WS FHEBRAREFINEG
AMEME

AEERBEBRNNEHEERFE
HEARB BEFNHARELRRE
AEBDEBBERARRIKTZRE
ARREBEANEFTHIR - BEZZT
“EFF+_A=+—HRZZT-NF
+TZRA=+t—HLEEE FREEER
NER BRSEFILEES-

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019.

Annual Report 2020 £ R

327



328

RAFSER R M 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

ZEZZTHE+T"H=+—H 31 December 2020

40. AR EEEERBE @

BEXEHE (&

rEERBELAARBLLEX BMEFFER
BREANEE TR SEEL-EHF
BREESAERTEE - HEASR BY
AR R DU R L Ath A5 7R 1B e & 51 7R I8 2 R
RENFSEBEY BEACESAEDE
BEABGERZE -REREHR BXEE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continueq)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank borrowings, leases liabilities, trade
payables and other payables and accruals, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting

EEZEWT - periods were as follows:
- a3 3 “E-NEFE
2020 2019
ARBTT AR®TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFEIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 6,608,303 3,968,578
HEaE Lease liabilities 115,328 149,736
FE 1 BR TR Trade payables 1,059,836 880,944
HMhEMIE & EStFIE  Other payables and accruals 242,448 283,971
e — BB A TRIE Amount due to a related party 2,101 -
B IRERIREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (8,227,060) (5,060,896)
B35 Net debt (199,044) 222,333
&R Capital 27,276,060 25,172,450
BAKREHFEE Capital and net debt 27,077,016 25,394,783
BEXREGELX Gearing ratio (0.7%) 0.9%
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41, XTI BFER AR 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

BRABRABRERR M BARREXTZ Information about the statement of financial position of the

BEREIWMT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
bt St 3> 5 —E—hnF
2020 2019
ARBTT AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
L EN V=Y Property, plant and equipment 2 5
KRB RABZRE Investments in subsidiaries 883,681 883,681
BTHEBABIZEMR Loans to subsidiaries 978,735 2,860,242
FRBEERE Total non-current assets 1,862,418 3,743,928
MEEE CURRENT ASSETS
& IS AR TR Trade receivables 10,955 115,691
FEMIIEREMEWIE  Prepayments and other receivables 23,986 1,081
HTHWBREZEMR Loans to subsidiaries 3,135,638 2,459,240
NN B S Amounts due from subsidiaries 5,701,953 4,361,242
HERREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 58,107 55,964
HREEE Total current assets 8,930,639 6,993,218
Bk A=K CURRENT LIABILITIES
HMEMFIE R EStFIE  Other payables and accruals 4,110 3,057
FFEIRTTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 2,605,202 1,612,440
FETH B AT R IE Amount due to subsidiaries = 1,258,858
B HRIE Tax payable = 14,387
HmREaE Total current liabilities 2,609,312 2,888,742
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M. XREMBIRAR @ 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
—EIEHF —E—hEF
2020 2019
AR¥T T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,321,327 4,104,476
HMEERTEAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 8,183,745 7,848,404
ERBER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
KEWRB AT ER Loans from subsidiaries 1,806,575 2,094,109
FEE Net assets 6,377,170 5,754,295
L EQUITY
Bz Share capital 151,200 151,200
HHE Reserves 6,225,970 5,603,095
R Total equity 6,377,170 5,754,295
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41.

42,

EREMBRAER @ 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
MIEE - Note:
KRABINHEBEMDT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
i ERHE
(EL RARES fkfe RERR L H
Share Exchange
premium Capital fluctuation Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
ARBTr  ARETn ARETR ARETx ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RIE-NE—F-B A 1 January 2019 1,514,523 727,430 (298421) 2963950 4,907,482
FEZEWREE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 105,392 2,992,972 3,098,364
BR-B-N\ERERE Final 2018 dividend declared - - - (185411)  (1,185411)
“E-NERERE Interim 2019 dividend (1,217,340) - - - (1217,340)
RZE-nE+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2019 297,183 727,430 (198,029) 4,771,511 5,603,095
FERANRLRE Total comprehensive income for the year - - (223,028) 3,428,229 3,205,201
BR_E-NERERE Final 2019 dividend declared - - - (1346587)  (1,346,587)
CERCEERERE Interim 2020 dividend - - - (1235739 (1,235,739)
RZZEZE£+°A=1+-H At 31 December 2020 297,183 727,430 (416,057) 5,617,414 6,225,970

HEMBRR

EFERE_—F=-RA”-+1nB#
BRI K -

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021.
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Financial Information Summary

R BEHBAN FASEUARE T TIIW)

FEBERBAMBERERFMBEERRUED
BV BEFEZEAHEEUREE - BEK
DEREE@mBEEHIAWT

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+-_A=+—HLEE R+-A=+—H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—EFEF “F-NFE E-)N\F T—tFE EF—REF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AR¥TRT ARETRT ARETx AREBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
£ Results
WA Revenue 23,030,648 22,665,272 20,950,205 18,085,247 15,099,076
BB R A Finance costs (108,250) (89,178) (61,049) (123,016) (119,834)
BRIQ A1 F Profit before tax 5,512,426 5,571,743 5,090,346 4,288,231 3,642,947
iR Income tax expense (429,781) (613,207) (597,803) (528,280) (695,267)
FEFH Profit for the year 5,082,645 4,958,536 4,492,543 3,759,951 2,947,680
MTFALFEERER Attributable to:
ISYNCIE =N Owners of the parent 5,106,736 5,095,206 4,540,487 3,762,721 2,947,673
FEPEHE T Non-controlling interests (24,091) (136,670) (47,944) (2,770) 7
5,082,645 4,958,536 4,492,543 3,759,951 2,947,680
BE-BER Assets, Liabilities and
FEEETI M R Non-controlling
Interests
mEE Total assets 36,851,761 31,854,858 27,552,064 24,093,205 21,816,062
maE Total liabilities 9,580,931 6,663,531  (5,097,775)  (4,268,552)  (6,506,460)
FIEHIM R Non-controlling interests 5,230 (18,877) (155,541) (203,472) (216,658)
27,276,060 25,172,450 22,298,738 19,621,181 15,092,944

Hisk: AEBRE-S-NER-B-BE+-
A=+ BLEMBEESEZEAE XM
MRR-B-—NER-E-SE+ A
St-RAZELEE BERIFEHER
M ERRE2IEE BN ERNE -

Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2019
and 2020 are those set out on pages 216 to 331 of the financial
statements.

ERIN B B & @42 fR A IR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



SHENZHOU INTERNATIONAL
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Ningbo Office
ERMSE

18 Yongjiang Road
Ningbo Economic and Technical
Development Zone
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, PRC

s E T & R
ERICERIAEE
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Tel E5E: (86) 574 8698 0102
Fax f2K.: (86) 574 8698 0162

Hong Kong Office
ERMSEE

Unit 2708, 27th Floor
Billion Plaza

8 Cheung Yue Street

Kowloon, Hong Kong

EANFERWBESE
BRER2TIE27T08FE

Tel EsE: (852) 23104919
Fax f8K: (852) 2310 4929

Shanghai Office
LB E

26th Floor You Yi Time Building
159 Zhao Jia Bang Road

Xu Hui District

Shanghai, PRC
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